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... enabling them to focus on
what they do best: delivering care.




We empower healthcare professionals to practice
medicine with confidence, while working to build

value for our shareholders.

As a leading provider of medical professional liability insurance, FPIC strives to deliver first-

class service to our policyholders. At the same time, we are committed to building long-term

value for our shareholders. To meet these commitments, we continue to focus on the core

strategies that have served us well over the past several years.

COMPETITIVE PRODUCTS SUPPORTED
BY RESPONSIVE SERVICE

FPIC strives to be the medical professional
liability insurance carrier of choice for
healthcare professionals in our markets,
Our deep expertise, financial strength and
commitment to providing superior products
and services serve to differentiate us in

the marketplace. We offer our customers
extensive risk management services and we
believe we provide them with unsurpassed
claims defense.

PRUDENT CAPITAL UTILIZATION
AND ALLOCATION

We are committed to maintaining a disci-
plined and focused approach to allocating
our capital effectively. Our strong capital
position supports writing profitable busi-
ness in our underwriting operations and
enables us to take advantage of growth
oppertunities, allocating capital to those
areas that will achieve attractive returns for
our shareholders. We are also committed
to other capital initiatives that benefit our
shareholders.

FOCUS ON KEY GEOGRAPHIC
MARKETS

We have achieved enduring competitive
advantages by focusing on targeted markets.
In Florida, we are the largest medical profes-
sional liability insurance underwriter, and
we are among the top five in other key states.
Success in a given market requires an in-
depth understanding of the particular state’s
regulatory, judicial and legislative environ-
ment, Our deep expertise in our targeted
markets provides us with significant benefits
in terms of underwriting, pricing, claims
management and policyholder service.

EXCELLENCE IN CORE DISCIPLINES
A key contributor to our long-term success

is our commitment to remaining true to

our core disciplines, which we identify as
disciplined underwriting, reasoned pricing,
effective claims and risk management and
appropriately conservative reserving, Main-
taining strict underwriting standards and
reasoned pricing is absclutely essential to sus-
tainable success in our line of business. And,
our aggressive claims philosophy and proac-
tive risk management programs have con-
tributed to favorable loss experience, thereby
further enhancing our financial position.

MAINTAINING FINANCIAL
STRENGTH

Meeting the needs of our policyholders while
building shareholder value is only possible
with a strong financial foundation, In recent
years, we have further enhanced our financial
strength, including our capital and reserve
positions. Our financial strength is rated

A- (Excellent) by AM Best Company and

A- (Strong) by Fitch, With a strong and grow-
ing capital position, we have the financial
strength, flexibility and discipline to continue
to expand profitably within our markets.

MANAGEMENT EXPERTISE
Leveraging the strengths and expertise of
our people is critical to successfully execut-
ing our long-term business strategy. Qur
organization is well respected and known
for its integrity, vision and leadership in
key areas, including tort reform, We are
committed to being a well-managed and
efficient organization with strong gover-
nance and a management team and Board
committed to enhancing shareholder value.

A clear focus on these long-term business strategies has delivered strong results

for us and will continue to drive our decision making as we continue to build

value for our shareholders and create peace of mind for our policyholders.



Dear Fellow Shareholders,

We are pleased to report that 2006 was a year of significant
strategic and financial achievement for our organization.
QOur successes once again demonstrate our ability

to translate our business strategies and core disciplines
into strong financial results and attractive returns for our
shareholders. We remain committed to being a financially
disciplined company with an unyielding commitment to
providing superior products and services to our customers
and to delivering long-term value to our shareholders.

During 2006, we made the strategic decision to sell
our New York-based insurance management business for
total cash consideration of approximately $45 million.
While this business was an important part of our organiza-
tion from the time of its acquisition in 1999, its relative
size and strategic significance diminished in recent years
with the substantial growth and increased profitability
of our insurance underwriting operations. Given the
unique characteristics, challenges and uncertainties of
the New York market, we determined that the sale was in
the best long-term interests of our shareholders. The sale
provides us with additional financial flexibility and bal-
ance sheet strength, further sharpens our focus on growth
in our core underwriting business, and underscores our
commitment to deploying capital in ways that maximize
shareholder value.

Once again, we effectively put our capital to work in
2006, achieving a 13% return on average equity for our
shareholders from continuing operations, excluding the
$11.6 million gain on the sale of our insurance manage-
ment business. [ncome from continuing operations
increased 29% to $32.9 million, despite an extraordinary
$5.8 million after-tax charge for guaranty fund assessments
levied by the Florida Insurance Guaranty Association
related to the insolvency of a group of Florida property
insurance companies. Shareholders’ equity increased 14%
to $285.3 million, and conselidated statutory surplus of our
insurance subsidiaries increased 17% to $226.0 million.

Our continued strong results and capital position
afforded us the opportunity to engage in several strategic
and capital management initiatives in 2006 and carrying

over into 2007, including significant share repurchases
and the commutations of our net account quota share
reinsurance treaty with Hannover Re and our assumed
reinsurance treaties with Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers.
We remain committed to utilizing our capital in ways we
believe will be most beneficial to our shareholders.

The continuation of favorable claims trends, high-
lighted by a 13% decline in newiy reported claims and
incidents during the year, resulted in an improvement in
our 2006 loss ratio and further enhanced our reserve posi-
tion. Our 2006 results also benefited from favorable prior
year loss development of $5.1 million pre-tax, primarily
resulting from lower expected ultimate losses for the 2004
and 2005 accident years.

Not unexpectedly, written premiums were lower
for the year compared to 2005 primarily due to a change
in our business mix to lower risk specialties, a modest
decline in policyholders, a migration to lower policy limits
by our Florida physicians, and the impact of a 9.2% overall
effective rate decrease at our largest subsidiary in Florida
effective December 1, 2006. Although we are seeing
increased price competition, we will not compromise a
key part of our business strategy, which calls for reasoned
pricing and protecting our margins through any market
cycle — even if this results in a decline in the top-line.
When necessary, we have taken substantial rate increases
in the past to cover our costs and protect our margins.

As a result of the dramatically improved claims results,
we have also determined that we can lower our rates in
certain markets while protecting and maintaining our
margins. This reasoned approach to pricing benefits both

our shareholders and our policyholders.

FOCUSING ON THE CUSTOMER During 2006, we
reaffirmed the core values that differentiate us from our
competitors. Qur customer retention initiatives have been
successful, particularly in Florida, where we achieved a
strong 94% retention rate in 2006. We continued to oper-
ate as a customer-focused organization, capitalizing on
three decades of leadership in our core Florida market.




ROBERT O. BARATTA, MD
Chairman of the Board

Our 2006 risk management activities, for example,
encompassed more than 115 lectures and education pro-
grams and were attended by more than 4,870 healthcare
professionals. We conducted risk assessments for more
than 420 insureds and 125 clinics and group practices.
Qur policyholders also appreciate our claims manage-
ment approach, which includes vigorous defense and the
active involvement of our claims department. Qur claims
personnel, with a total of 462 combined years of Florida-
specific claims experience, are recognized as experts in the
industry. Their efforts and our disciplined underwriting
and effective risk management programs have contributed

to a significant improvement in our claims results.

BUILDING SHAREHOLDER VALUE Our commitment to
our policyholders is matched by our relentless drive to
build sustainable long-term value for our shareholders. Our
efforts increased book value per commeon share in 2006 by
$4.20, or 17%, to $28.34 per share. We are confident that
we can continue to drive attractive returns for our share-
holders. We are well positioned to maintain our strong
leadership positions in our core markets, including Florida,
where we are the largest medical professional insurance
underwriter, and Georgia, Missouri and Arkansas, where
we are among the top five writers. Licensed in 28 states,
we continue to see and assess growth opportunities that
are presented 1o us as a result of our strong relationships in
the medical and agent communities, our expertise and our

strong capital position.

LOOKING AHEAD The underwriting cycle in our larg-

est market, Florida, is in a softening market. With our
absolute commitment to maintaining appropriate margins
despite increasing price competition, achieving top-line
growth in the near-term will be increasingly difficult.
Nevertheless, we believe that our disciplined focus on
what we do best will continue to build value for both
policyholders and shareholders. In fact, we believe that
our strong capital and market positions, together with our
expertise and relationships in our industry, will continue
to afford us attractive growth opportunities. While we
will not write or acquire business that does not comply

JOHN R. BYERS
President and Chief Executive Officer

with our business standards and strategies merely to
build up the top-line results, shareholders can be assured
that we remain fuily committed to and focused on tak-
ing advantage of opportunities that are conducive to
enhancing long-term shareholder value. For example, in
2006, we launched an initiative to provide management
services to the self-insured market in Florida and other
jurisdictions. This initiative, while still in an early phase,
is progressing well and is expected to provide an attrac-
tive complement to our core underwriting operations.

Although we remain committed to capitalizing on our
strengths in the Florida market, we continually evaluate
opportunities in other markets. Qur Anesthesiologists
Professional Assurance Company (APAC) subsidiary repre-
sents a particularly attractive vehicle for penetrating new
markets with a profitable, highly regarded niche product.

As we enter 2007, we are today a financially strong
and well-positioned organization, as evidenced by our
recent upgrade by AM Best to an A- {Excellent) financial
strength rating and by our A- (Strong) insurer financial
strength rating by Fitch. We're obviously delighted with
the AM Best rating upgrade, which reflects our strong
capital position and operating results, our significant
progress over the past several years and our outlook for
the future. We remain confident in our ability to con-
tinue to execute our long-term business strategies and
to achieve attractive returns for our shareholders.

Cur success in 2006 would not have been possible
without the dedication, talent and hard work of our
employees and Board of Directors. As we move confidently
forward, we will continue to rely on them to leverage
all of the capabilities of our organization to achieve our
objectives. We would also like to thank our shareholders
for their continued confidence and support, and we look

forward to reporting additional progress next year.

y‘?%—
John R. Byers

President and
Chief Executive Officer

L5

Robert O. Baratta, MD
Chairman of the Board




Five-year Summary and Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data presented for the fiscal years ending
December 31 should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, which

are included elsewhere herein.

{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE

AMOUNTS AND ELSEWHERE AS NOTED) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 ‘
CONSOLIDATED \
Revenues $§ 259,772 250,708 174,807 152,947 178,425 :
Income from continuing operations $ 32939 25482 17,855 9,264 10,241 ‘[
Net income (loss)® @ $ 51,588 35,022 28,181 16,572 (14,702)
i
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY :
Net investment income $ 32,242 25,005 20,627 18,285 20,793 |
Net realized investment gains (losses) $ 80 (980) 3,867 2,052 4,688 i
OTHER SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA !
Total cash and investments $ 865997 764,079 671,116 608,672 526,242 !
Total assets $1,219,059 1,308,541 1,271,321 1,182,756 1,026,431
Loss and loss adjustment expense (LAE) reserves $ 642955 663,466 635,118 574,529 440,166
Revalving credit facility $ — — — — 37,000
Term loan 3 — — — — 10,208
Long-term debt $ 46,083 46,083 46,083 46,083 —
Shareholders’ equity® $ 285,254 249,590 217,120 186,657 165,913
Common shares outstanding 10,064 10,339 10,070 9,771 9,391
PER SHARE DATA
Diluted earnings from continuing operations $ 3.09 ° 2.37 171 0.96 1.09
Diluted earnings (loss)® @ $ 483 3.26 270 171 {1.56) ‘
Book value $ 2834 2414 21.56 19.10 17.67 ;
Year-end market price 5 3397 3470 35.38 25.09 6.90
UNDERWRITING
Direct and assurmed
premiums written $ 251424 289,022 312,728 340,741 344727
Net premiums written § 222,423 251,814 192,532 143,134 140,248
Net premiums earned $ 226,965 226,042 149,676 131,665 151,684
Consolidated statutory surplus $ 225983 193,584 160,242 133,882 125,470
GAAP combined ratio:
Loss and LAE ratio® 67% 74% 84% 90% 92%
Underwriting expense ratio™ 22% 16% 8% 8% 1%
Combined ratio 89% 90% 92% 98% 103%

3 2006 and 2005 net income include gains on dispositions of discontinued operations of $12.0 million and $1.7 million, respectively.

) In 2002, FPIC adopted FAS 142, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, and recorded a non-cash after-tax charge of $29.6 million.
@ 70022005 loss and expense ratios include the impact of a large reinsurance agreement, which contained ceding commissions that offset expenses.

) 2006 expense ratio includes $9.4 miflion for assessments made by the Florida Insurance Guaranty Association related to the insolvency

of the insurance subsidiaries of Pee Firancial Group.
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” contains forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that, if they do not materialize or prove
correct, could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical fact are
statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements, including statements: of our
plans, strategies and objectives for future operations; concerning new products, services, or
developments; regarding future economic conditions, performance, or outlook; as to the
outcome of contingencies; of beliefs or expectations; and of assumptions underlying any of the
foregoing.

Forward-looking statements may be identified by their use of forward-looking
terminology, such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “should,” “would,” "will,” “intends,” “plans,”
“estimates,” “anticipates,” “projects” and similar words or expressions. You should not place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect our management’s opinions
only as of the date of the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Factors that might cause
our results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, those discussed in ftem 1A. Risk Factors and Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,
below. Forward-looking statements are made in reliance upon the safe harbor provisions of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and we undertake no obligation, other than that imposed
by law, to update forward-looking statements to reflect further developments or information
obtained after the date of filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or, in the case of any
document incorporated by reference, the date of that document.

Part|

item 1. Business
Overview

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. was formed in a reorganization of First Professionals
Insurance Company, Inc., formerly named Florida Physicians insurance Company, Inc. ("First
Professionals”), in 1996. We operate in the medical professional liability (*MPL") insurance
sector of the property and casualty insurance industry as an insurance carrier. Our primary
insurance products provide protection for physicians, dentists and other healthcare providers as
individual practitioners or as members of practice groups. Our insurance protects policyholders
against losses arising from professional liability claims and the related defense costs with
respect to injuries alleged to have been caused by medical error or malpractice. Optional
coverage is available for professional corporations under which physicians or dentists practice.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” "our,” “us,” the “Company,” and
“FPIC” as used in this report refer to FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries.
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Through our insurance subsidiaries, we are the largest provider of MPL insurance in
Florida. Based on 2005 premium data published by A.M. Best Company (“A.M. Best"), Florida
is the third largest market for MPL insurance in the United States. We have chosen to focus on
selected markets where we believe we have advantages in terms of our market knowledge,
well-established reputation, significant market presence, and resources.

Our former insurance management operations, which provided insurance management
services in New York and Pennsylvania, were discontinued in September 2006 in connection
with the sale of these operations to a private investor. Our former third party administration
(“TPA") operations, which provided administrative and claims management services to
employers, primarily in Florida were discontinued in 2005. For additional information on our
discontinued operations, see ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 17,
Discontinued Operations.

At December 31, 2006, we employed 160 people. Our employees are not covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. We believe our relationships with our employees are very
important. We also believe that the significant number of long-term employees we have is
indicative of good employee relations.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is designed to provide long-term value for our shareholders, while
providing our clients with competitive products and superior service. Over the 10 years ended
December 31, 2006, we, on average, have achieved a return on average equity of 11%
{excluding the cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles and gains on the
disposition of discontinued operations), with a high of 15% in 2006, and a low of 0.4% in 2000.
Our primary objective is to maintain a financially strong, stable and consistently profitable
organization by adhering to the following principles:

Focus on selected markets where we have extensive knowledge and expertise;
Pursue disciplined growth;

Maintain disciplined underwriting and pricing;

Maintain our financial strength and manage our capital wisely;

Aggressively manage loss costs through effective claims handling and risk
management programs; and

e Recruit and retain experienced management.

Focus on selected markets where we have extensive knowledge and expertise.
We target selected market areas where we can establish a meaningful presence and leverage
local market knowledge and experience. MPL insurance markets vary substantially on a state-
by-state basis, with each state having its own unique regulatory, legislative, judicial, and
competitive environment. We believe our understanding of our target markets provides us with
competitive advantages in terms of underwriting, pricing, claims management and policyholder
service. In addition, our focus on selected markets has allowed us to achieve meaningful
positions in those markets, especially Florida, providing benefits in terms of brand recognition,
resources, and efficiencies. We believe that the ability to manage our business effectively and
compete within the unique environment of each state is critical to our success.
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Pursue disciplined growth. We believe that pursuing disciplined growth and prudent
expansion into new markets is critical to sustained profitability over the long-term. We
continually explore strategies for disciplined growth in the MPL insurance market. We believe
that additional growth opportunities exist in our core markets, and that our market positions will
allow us to continue to compete for quality business. We also employ a systematic process to
evaluate new markets based on a number of strategic considerations. Market conditions in our
largest market, Florida, have stabilized in terms of pricing over the past few years, and in 2006
pricing began to decline as a result of, among other things, improved claims experience and
increased competition. In the face of these conditions, growth in Florida may reasonably be
expected to be difficult to achieve in the near future.

Maintain disciplined underwriting and pricing. We maintain a disciplined focus on
selecting appropriate risks and pricing those risks in order to achieve our financial objectives,
and we individually underwrite each of our insureds. We believe that our extensive market
knowledge provides us with a competitive advantage in establishing appropriate pricing and risk
selection. We underwrite and price risks based on a wide range of factors, with a particular
focus on the professional’s training, medical specialty, claims history and geographic region of
practice. Within our chosen markets, we do not manage our business to achieve specified
market share goals. Rather, we seek to maximize our profitability by competing for quality
business based on factors other than price alone. In the face of declining premium rates and
increased competition in our primary markets it will continue to be important for us to maintain
appropriate pricing and risk selection.

Maintain our financial strength and manage our capital wisely. We are committed
to maintaining the strength and liquidity of our balance sheet by prudently managing our
financial and operating leverage, appropriately investing our assets, stringently maintaining
strong capital and reserve positions and pursuing growth in a disciptined way. In addition, we
have a strong focus on measuring the key areas of our business and utilize enhanced financial
and actuarial systems for the purpose of evaluating and controlling our business. We are also
committed to managing our capital wisely. Because of our strong capital position, we expanded
our stock repurchase program and during 2006 repurchased 683,955 shares of our common
stock at an aggregate cost of $26.0 million, or $38.05 per share. Through March 2, 2007, we
had repurchased an additional 166,890 of our shares, including 116,890 shares under our Rule
10b5-1 plan, at an aggregate cost of $6.6 million, or $39.48 per share and had remaining
authority from our Board of Directors to repurchase 437,635 more shares. We will continue to
evaluate further stock repurchases in light of market conditions, our capital requirements and
financial and business outlook. Our strong capital position also allowed First Professionals to
commute its net account quota share reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re effective
December 31, 2006. In connection with this commutation, First Professionals assumed loss
and loss adjustment expense (“LAE") reserves previously ceded of approximately $84.0 million
and in exchange Hannover Re released to First Professionals the $84.0 million of funds
previously withheld under the agreement. We will continue to evaluate opportunities to enhance
the return on our capital.
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Aggressively manage loss costs through effective claims handling and risk
management programs. In addition to prudent risk selection, we manage our loss costs
through effective claims handling and risk management initiatives. We seek to minimize our
incidence of claims by offering our insureds risk management programs that are designed to
assist them in successfully managing their individual risk factors. Once claims are made, we
seek to aggressively defend non-meritorious claims and expeditiously settle meritorious claims
in order to lower our overall loss costs. Because of this strategy, during the last few years, we
have settled fewer cases and taken more cases to court. Our claims management philosophy is
intended to minimize the number of claims settled with an indemnity payment. In furtherance of
our policy, we employ personnel with significant MPL claims experience and training. In
addition, we utilize a select network of defense attorneys to assist us in executing our claims
management philosophy.

Recruit and retain experienced management. We have an experienced management
team with diverse expertise in insurance, accounting, finance, and legal disciplines. Our
management team has an average of more than 20 years of experience in the insurance
industry and professions serving the insurance industry. We establish performance
expectations and measure performance of our management team consistent with our strategies
for creating shareholder value.

Insurance Operations

Prior to the dispositions of our former TPA operations in June 2005 and our former
insurance management operations in September 2006, we operated in multiple segments.
Currently, we engage only in insurance operations, which we conduct through the foliowing
subsidiaries:

. Anesthesiologists'Professional Assurance Company (“APAC"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
FPIC
FPIC Insurance Agency, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC
First Professionals, a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC
o The Tenere Group, Inc. ("Tenere”), a wholly owned subsidiary of First Professionals
e [ntermed Insurance Company (“Intermed”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tenere
e [nterlex Insurance Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed
e Insurance Services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed
e Trout Insurance Services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed

At December 31, 2006, our insurance subsidiaries insured 13,402 MPL policyholders.
Our primary focus is on individual professionals, whether or not they practice individually or as a
member of a group. We do not provide insurance to hospitals, nursing homes or other large
healthcare institutions.

Our MPL insurance line comprised 99.8% of our direct and assumed premiums written
for the year ended December 31, 2006. Effective June 30, 2004, all of our fronting programs
were terminated and are in run-off. Our Florida market generated 83% of our direct and
assumed premiums written for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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The following table summarizes our direct and assumed premiums written, subdivided
by state.

(in thousands) For the year ended December 31,

2006 % of Total 2005 % of Total 2004 % of Total
Florida $ 208,198 B83% 234,024 81% 231,112 74%
Georgia 13,577 5% 14,281 5% 12,326 4%
Arkansas 8,920 4% 8,969 3% 8,360 3%
Missouri 7,084 3% 10,230 4% 13,179 4%
New York 5221 2% 5,804 2% 9,187 3%
Texas 3,129 1% 5,147 2% 5,466 2%
Tennessee —_ 0% 2,656 1% 14,869 5%
All other 5,295 2% 7,821 3% 18,229 6%
All states $ 251,424 100% 289,022 100% 312,728 100%

We reinsure portions of our business, principally through our excess of loss reinsurance
program. Although reinsurance does not legally discharge us from our obligations to
policyholders as the primary insurer, it does make the reinsurers liable to us to the extent of the
risks ceded. The placement of reinsurance with a number of individual companies and
syndicates mitigates the concentration of credit risks under our excess of loss reinsurance
program. We monitor the financial condition and credltworthlness of our reinsurers periodically
and use reinsurance brokers and intermediaries to assist in the process of the placement of our
reinsurance. Most of our reinsurers are rated “A-" or better by A.M. Best. Reinsurers that are
not authorized or accredited are required to provide collateral in the form of an irrevocable letter

of credit or investment securities held in a trust account to secure their respective balances due.

The following table summarizes our ceded premiums written by program.

{in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Excess of loss reinsurance $ (25,584) (29,135) (39,614)
Net account quota share reinsurance — (660) (50,357)
Fronting and other programs (3,417) (7,413) (30,225)

Total ceded premiums written $ {29,001) (37,208) {120,196)
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Net premiums written are direct and assumed premiums net of reinsurance ceded. The
following table summarizes our net premiums written, subdivided by state, and presents the
insurance business and underwriting risks we retain for our own account after reinsurance
ceded to others.

{in thousands) For the year ended December 31,

2006 % of Total 2005 % of Total 2004 % of Total
Florida $ 186,253 84% 208,847 83% 150,184 78%
Georgia 11,595 5% 12,086 5% 7,957 4%
Arkansas 7,690 3% 7,749 3% 6,353 3%
Missouri 5,503 2% 7,933 3% 10,050 5%
New York 5,221 2% 5,894 2% 9,187 5%
Texas 2,592 1% 4,264 2% 4,285 2%
All other 3,569 3% 4,941 2% 4,516 3%
All states $ 222,423 100% 251,814 100% 192 532 100%

Our net written premiums grew significantly through 2005 because of significant
increases in our premium rates and policyholder growth resulting from withdrawn market
capacity. In 2002, we entered into a net account quota share reinsurance agreement under
which we ceded a significant portion of our premiums to reinsurers to support our growth.
Effective July 1, 2004, we eliminated further cessions under this agreement, thereby allowing us
to retain business for our own account that would otherwise have been ceded. During 2006, net
written premiums declined, primarily because of a shift in business mix to lower risk specialties,
a continued migration to lower policy limits for Florida-based physicians, a lower number of
policyholders and an effective rate decrease of 9.2% at First Professionals beginning December
1, 2006. Effective December 31, 2006, we commuted our net account quota share reinsurance
agreement with Hannover Re. Also, during February 2007, we commuted, effective January 1,
2007, all assumed reinsurance treaties with Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers. For additional
information, see lftem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, and ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 19,
Subsequent Events.

Our principal insurance subsidiary, First Professionals, was established by Florida
physicians, and has served the Florida market for more than 30 years. In Florida, we are
endorsed by the Florida Medical Association, the Florida Osteopathic Medical Association, the
Florida Dental Association, 20 county medical societies, and 10 state specialty societies. These
endorsements, however, do not require us to accept applicants who do not meet our
underwriting criteria. Our years in the Florida market have enabled us to develop extensive
resources in the state and an extensive understanding of the market, and its regulatory and
judicial environments. We believe this market understanding provides us with competitive
advantages in terms of underwriting, pricing, claims management and policyholder service.
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In addition, we believe our physician-oriented culture and reputation for outstanding
client service, among both agents and policyholders, have allowed us to attract and retain many
of the preferred risks that we seek in the marketplace. We market our coverage primarily
through an established network of independent agents who have specialized knowledge in our
markets and many of whom have long-standing relationships with us. We emphasize client
service, physician advocacy, commitment to our markets, established relationships with
organized medicine and aggressive claims defense, and we believe these emphases
differentiate us from our competition. For the year ended December 31, 2006, our policyholder
retention rate in Florida was 94% compared to 95% during 2005 and 2004, For the year ended
December 31, 20086, national policyholder retention was 92% compared to 94% and 89% during
2005 and 2004, respectively.

We believe that careful risk selection is also integral to our success. Accordingly, we
focus on a wide range of underwriting factors, including the individual professional’s practice
environment, training, claims history, professional reputation, medical specialty, and geographic
location of practice. We underwrite professionals individually, whether they practice individually
or as a member of a group. We generally require board certification or board eligibility from an
appropriate American specialty board as a prerequisite for coverage.

We also provide comprehensive risk management services to our insureds designed to
heighten their awareness of situations giving rise to potential liability, to educate them on ways
to improve administration and operation of their medical practices and to assist them in
implementing risk management processes. In addition, we conduct risk management surveys
for clinics and large medical groups to help improve their practice procedures. Complete
reports of these surveys that specify areas of the insured’s medical or dental practice that may
need attention are provided to the policyholder on a confidential basis. We author three risk
management newsletters, contribute multiple articles to professional journals, and provide
comprehensive risk management reference materials to our policyholders. We also participate
in periodic seminars on risk management to medical societies and other groups. These
educational offerings are designed to increase risk awareness and the effectiveness of loss
prevention.

A majority of the policies we offer are on a claims-made basis, where only claims
reported to us prior to the expiration of the policy period are covered. We believe our claims-
made approach allows us to more accurately estimate our loss exposures and price our
coverage than policies written on an occurrence basis, where losses may be reported for a
number of years after a policy’s coverage period. We also offer tail policies, which are written
on an occurrence basis, to policyholders who meet certain requirements upon the non-renewal
or cancellation of their policy, or upon their death, disability or retirement from practice. In our
largest market, Florida, many physicians and other medical professionals have responded to
increasing MPL insurance premiums by purchasing lower coverage limits. As a result, our
purchased policy limits in Florida are lower on average than in many other markets.
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The following table shows the distribution of the policy limits of our insured Florida
physicians:

As of Dec 31, 2006 As of Dec 31, 2005 As of Dec 31, 2004
Policy limits of Policy limits of Policy limits of Policy imits of $0.5 Policy limits of Policy limits of $0.5
$0.25 million per $0.5 millfon per $0.25 million per million per loss or $0.25 million per million per loss or
loss or less loss or less loss or less less loss or less less
67% 83% 64% 81% 61% 79%

We believe lower policy limits, among other things, contribute to reduced volatility in our
loss severity relative to other companies and markets where higher insured limits are prevalent.
A decrease in the policy limit distribution may result in an increase in exposure to extra-
contractual obligations ("ECO") and claims in excess of policy limits (“XPL"}). Our excess of loss
reinsurance program includes coverage for such claims, subject to the coverage limits
described in lfem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 5, Reinsurance.

Industry Overview

According to the latest data published by A.M. Best, the medical malpractice insurance
market in the United States totaled $11.5 billion in direct premiums written for the year ended
December 31, 2005, an increase of one percent over the prior year. The financial performance
of the property and casualty insurance industry, and of the MPL insurance sector, has tended to
fluctuate in cyclical patterns characterized by periods of greater competition in pricing,
underwriting terms and conditions {a soft insurance market) followed by periods of capacity
shortage and lesser competition {(a hard insurance market).

We operated under soft market conditions during the latter part of the 1990s. Beginning
in 2000, the MPL insurance sector began reporting higher loss costs on coverage written in prior
years than had initially been established in loss reserves. These increased loss costs, in certain
cases, led to reduced capital to support current and future business and to downgrades in the
financial strength ratings of a number of companies in the industry. As a result, through 2003,
the market saw significant withdrawal of capacity, including the departure of a number of firms
that were market leaders at the time of their withdrawal. Many of the firms that remained in the
market responded by significantly raising premium rates, reducing or eliminating discounts and
tightening underwriting terms and conditions. Medical professionals responded to the resulting
hard market conditions, in some cases, by practicing without coverage, seeking to join with
other practitioners to form self-insured groups or purchasing lower limits of coverage. We are
now in a softening market, with start-ups in Florida and other markets aggressively seeking
market share and with other competitors reducing premium rates in light of favorable claims
trends. Due to improved claims results (in particular, dramatically lower claims frequency
combined with relatively stable claim severity) effective December 1, 2006, First Professionals
implemented the premium rate decrease discussed below. We expect these market conditions
to continue through 2007 and expect to continue to see lower premium rates. For a description
of certain regulatory and legislative actions being considered with respect to MPL insurance
premium rates in Florida, see the discussion of Industry Overview — Insurance Regulation
below.
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Insurance Ratings

Insurance-specific ratings represent the opinion of rating agencies about the financial
strength of a company and its capacity to meet its insurance obligations. These ratings are
based on factors most relevant to policyholders, agents, and intermediaries and are not
specifically directed toward the protection of investors. They are not recommendations to buy,
sell, or hold a company’s securities. The significance of individual agencies and their ratings
vary among different users. They can be significant to investors and lenders, among other
factors, as an indication of a company’s suitability for investment or creditworthiness. A.M. Best
and Fitch Ratings, Ltd. (“Fitch”) are our primary rating organizations and the only insurance
rating agencies that we have engaged to provide a rating on an interactive basis. Other
organizations that rate us develop their ratings independently using publicly available data and
without consulting with us. These ratings are generally consumer-oriented and involuntary on
the part of the company being rated.

An insurance company’s rating, and particularly its A.M. Best rating, is a potential source
of competitive advantage or disadvantage in the marketplace. In addition, certain independent
agents and brokers may establish a minimum A.M. Best rating for participation in a potential
market. The significance of the A.M. Best rating to a given company varies depending upon the
products involved, the customers and agents and competition and market conditions. In
addition, the significance of the A.M. Best rating may vary from state to state. Our insurance
subsidiaries have a group financial strength rating from A.M. Best of “A-" (Excellent) with a
stable outlook, which is within the secure range of available ratings and represents the fourth
highest of 16 rating levels. Our insurance subsidiaries have a group insurer financial strength
rating of “A-" (Strong) from Fitch, which represents the third highest of nine rating levels.

Competition
The MPL insurance markets in which we operate are highly competitive from the

perspective of pricing and the number of competitors writing business. In Florida, our primary
competitors are MAG Mutual Insurance Company, The Doctors Company, ProAssurance
Corporation, and The Medical Protective Company. In addition, during the last few years there
have been five start-up competitors and more competitors may enter our markets in the future.
We also believe that the number of healthcare entities that insure their affiliated physicians
through self-insurance may affect our operations, particularly in Florida and Missouri. Many of
our competitors and potential entrants to our markets are larger and have considerably greater
resources than we have. In addition, because substantial portions of our products are marketed
through independent insurance agencies, all of which represent more than one company, we
face competition amongst our own agents. We compete within this environment on the basis of
our leadership position in our core markets and our relationships with the medical and
professional communities we serve.
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We believe that the principal competitive factors affecting our business are service,
name recognition, and price, and that we are competitive in all of these areas. We enjoy
particularly strong name recognition in Florida, our primary market, by virtue of having been
organized by, and initially operated for the benefit of, Florida physicians. The services offered to
our insureds, as well as the healthcare community in general, are intended to promote name
recognition and to maintain and improve loyalty among our insureds. The Florida Medical
Association and the Florida Dental Association exclusively endorse First Professionals’ MPL
insurance. We are also endorsed by various county and state medical societies. In general,
local carriers that have been able to maintain strong customer loyalty dominate the MPL market
in their respective states. We seek to grow our position in other chosen markets outside of
Fiorida by targeting certain specialties and focusing on physicians who are claims-free, which
has served us well. In 2005, the last year for which statistics were available from the Florida
Office of Insurance Regulation {the “Florida OIR”), there were 94 companies writing MPL
insurance for physicians and surgeons in the state. The top five writers had 61% of the market,
the second largest of which is a captive program. First Professionals was the largest writer in
the state in 2006 and had a market share of 25%. APAC was the ninth largest writer in the state
in 2006 and had a market share of two percent.

Insurance Regulation

Each of the insurance subsidiaries we own is regulated at the state level. The state
insurance departments of Florida and Missouri, where our insurance subsidiaries are domiciled,
are the primary regulators. Our insurance subsidiaries are also subject to regulations in other
states where they do business. State insurance laws also regulate us as an insurance holding
company. Our insurance subsidiaries are required to register and furnish information about
operations, management, and financial condition to state insurance departments, primarily in
Florida and Missouri. The insurance departments periodically perform financial examinations
and market conduct examinations of the insurance companies they regulate. They also require
disclosure or approval of material transactions, such as dividends above certain levels from our
insurance subsidiaries to the holding company. All transactions within the holding company
structure involving our insurance subsidiaries must also be fair and reasonable.

Except as described below, Florida insurance laws do not allow any person to acquire,
directly or indirectly, five percent or more of the voting securities of an insurance company
without the prior written approval of the Florida OIR. Any purchaser of five percent or more of
our commeon stock is presumed to have acquired a similar level of control of our insurance
subsidiaries. Instead of obtaining prior approval, a purchaser of more than five percent, but not
more than ten percent, of an insurance company may file a disclaimer of affiliation and control
with the Florida OIR. Similar laws exist in Missouri, except that the approval threshold is ten
percent or more of a company's voting securities.

The primary purpose or mission of insurance regulation is the protection of
policyholders. State insurance laws generally delegate broad regulatory powers to insurance
departments, including granting and revoking licenses, approving policy forms and premium -
rates, regulating trade practices, establishing minimum cagpital and surplus levels for companies,
prescribing or permitting required statutory accounting and financial reporting rules, and
prescribing the types and amounts of investments permitted.
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Beginning December 1, 2006, First Professionals implemented an effective rate
decrease of 9.2% (11.2% before giving effect to the factor included in our rate filings with
respect to the July 2006 Florida Insurance Guaranty Association assessment discussed below )
in its MPL premium rates in Florida. At the request of the Florida Insurance Consumer
Advocate (the “Consumer Advocate”), the Florida OIR held a public hearing in late January
2007 at which the Consumer Advocate asserted that MPL insurance carriers operating in
Florida, including First Professionals and APAC, should be required to implement much larger
rate decreases because of improved claims experience due to the tort reforms enacted in
Florida in 2003. The Florida OIR has not yet taken any action or made any formal
announcement as a result of this hearing. In addition, bills have been introduced in the Florida
Senate and House of Representatives that, if passed and enacted into law, would, among other
things, require a prospective reduction in MPL rates for policies issued or renewed on or after
October 1, 2007 to rate levels that are at least 25 percent less than the rates for the same
coverage that were in effect on October 1, 2004 (under the Florida Senate bill) or September
15, 2003 (under the Florida House of Representatives bill). We cannot predict what, if any,
future regulatory or legislative action may be taken with respect to Florida MPL premium rates
or what effect any such action may have on our operations, but we believe that our premium
rates are appropriate

Insurance companies are required to file detailed annual reports in each state in which
they do business. The financial statements contained in these reports are prepared using
regulatory accounting principles, or statutory-basis financial statements, as they are referred to
in the insurance industry. Statutory accounting principles represent a comprehensive basis of
accounting that is different from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ("GAAP"), and so the accounting practices used by the insurance subsidiaries in their
regulatory financial statements are different in certain material respects from the accounting
policies used in preparing the consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC") has adopted the
Caodification of Statutory Accounting Principles (the “NAIC Codification”). The NAIC Ccdification
became applicable to all statutory-basis financial statements issued after January 1, 2001.
While the NAIC Codification represents the official guidance on the statutory-basis of
accounting, the individual states and insurance departments continue to have the discretion to
modify this guidance or establish their own statutory accounting principles for insurance
companies.

Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to assessment by the financial guaranty
associations in the states in which they conduct business for the provision of funds necessary
for the settlement of covered claims under certain policies of insolvent insurers. Generally,
these associations can assess insurers on the basis of written premiums in their particular
states. See /fem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 16, Commitments
and Contingencies, for additional information on the assessments levied in 2006 by the Florida
OIR as a result of the insolvency of the insurance subsidiaries of Poe Financial Group resulting
from hurricane activity in 2005 and 2004.
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In addition to standard guaranty fund assessments, the Florida and Missouri legislatures
may also levy special assessments to settle claims caused by certain catastrophic losses. No
special assessments for catastrophic losses were made in 2004, 2005, or 2006. Medical
malpractice policies have been exempt from assessment by the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe
Fund, but this exemption expires on May 31, 2007.

Discussions continue in the United States Congress concerning the future of the
McCarran-Ferguson Act, which exempts the "business of insurance” from most federal laws,
including anti-trust laws, to the extent such business is subject to state regulation. Itis not
possible to predict the effect on our operations of repeal, modification, or any narrowed
interpretation of the McCarran-Ferguson Act.

Tort Reform
Some of the states in which we operate have passed tort reform, including three of our
more significant markets, Florida, Georgia and Missouri.

During 2003, Florida enacted legislation specifically directed at MPL insurance reforms.
The most significant aspects of this legislation included a $0.5 million cap on non-economic
damages, subject to certain conditions, as well as reforms to bad faith statutes with respect to
MPL insurance claims.

In 2004, three constitutional amendments relating to medical professional liability were
passed by Florida voters. The first amendment, Amendment 3, places limits on fees plaintiffs’
attorneys may collect in medical liability cases. In September 2006, the Florida Supreme Court
approved a rule that creates an affirmative obligation on the part of an attorney contemplating a
contingency fee contract with respect to a medical liability claim to notify a potential client of the
limitations provided in that constitutional provision. The rule, however, allows the potential client
to waive that right, if the waiver is in writing and under oath using an approved form. The
second amendment, Amendment 7, gives the public greater rights to view previously
confidential state complaints filed against doctors and institutions, incident reports filed after
medical errors, and documents from error reviews performed by hospitals. In 2005, Florida
enacted legislation that places certain limitations on the rights created by Amendment 7 and
restricts the application of Amendment 7 to records created, incidents occurring or actions
arising after November 2, 2004 and to records created within four years of the request. The
third amendment, Amendment 8, would take away the license of any physician who has three
malpractice judgments or adverse findings, or “strikes,” by a licensing review organization.
During 2005, Florida enacted legislation providing, among other things, that only incidents that
occur after November 2, 2004 can be considered a “strike.” This legislation also requires that
“strikes” must be determined on the basis of “clear and convincing” evidence, rather than the
much lower standard of proof ordinarily required in civil cases, and provides that settlements in
disciplinary cases and in civil cases cannot be considered a “strike.”

During 2008, the Florida legislature abolished the doctrine of joint and severa! liability for
MPL cases related to occurrences after April 26, 2006, subject to limited exceptions. Instead,
Florida courts will be required to apportion damages in these cases pursuant to a “comparative
fault” approach, whereby a defendant's degree of liability will generally be limited to his or her
own percentage of fault.
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During February 2005, Georgia passed a comprehensive tort reform bill that provided
for, among other things,

+ a $350,000 cap on non-economic damages for all claimants seeking damages for
injury or death of a single patient regardless of the number of physician defendants;

e the elimination of joint and several liability;
higher standards to qualify as an expert in a medical malpractice case; and

e a “clear and convincing evidence” standard and a gross negligence burden of proof
for cases involving emergency care, surgical care or obstetrical care.

During March 2005, Missouri passed a comprehensive tort reform bill that provided for,
among other things,

» a $350,000 cap for non-economic damages for all plaintiffs regardless of the number
of defendants; and

+ the elimination of joint and several liability for defendants found to be less than 51%
at fault.

In general, we believe that these reforms may provide an additional level of stability.
Given, however, the recent nature of these developments and the uncertainties surrounding
how courts will interpret these laws, as well as the uncertainties surrounding future legislative or
voter initiatives, we are unable to determine what specific effect, if any, these developments
have had on our claims experience or to predict what their effect may be in the future.

Discontinued Operations - Insurance Management and Third Party Administration
For additional information on our discontinued operations see ltem 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Additional Information with Respect to Our Business

We will provide our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and
current reports on Form 8-K, including exhibits and amendments to those reports, filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably
practicable, after electronically filing such materials with or furnishing them to, the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Such materials will be provided without charge
through our Internet website at www.fpic.com. We also make available free of charge on our
website our annual report to shareholders, code of ethics and certain committee charters. QOur
website and the information posted thereon are not incorporated into this Annual Report on
Form 10-K or any other report that we file with or furnish to the SEC.
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item 1A. Risk Factors
Because of our significant concentration in MPL insurance, our profitability may be
adversely affected by negative developments and cyclical changes in that industry.
Substantially all of our revenues are generated from our involvement in the MPL
insurance industry. Because of our concentration in this line of business, negative
developments in the business or economic, competitive, or regulatory conditions affecting the
MPL insurance industry, broadly or in our markets, could have a negative effect on our
profitability and would have a more pronounced effect on us compared to more diversified
companies. The MPL insurance industry historically is cyclical in nature, characterized by
periods of severe price competition and excess underwriting capacity followed by periods of
high premium rates and shortages of underwriting capacity. During 2006, favorable ctaims
results and increased competition resulted in premium rate decreases in our markets. We
cannot predict how market conditions will continue to change, or the manner in which, or the
extent to which, any such changes may adversely impact our profitability.

We operate in a competitive environment.

We compete with specialty insurers and self-insurance entities whose activities are
limited to regional and local markets, as well as other large national property and casualty
insurance companies that write MPL insurance. Our competitors include companies that have
substantially greater financial resources and higher financial strength ratings than we have and
companies, particularly mutual insurers, reciprocals or trusts that may have lower return on
capital objectives than we have. We also face competition from other insurance companies for
the services and allegiance of independent agents and brokers, on whose services we depend
in marketing our insurance products. Increased competition could adversely affect our ability to
attract and retain business at adequate prices and reduce our profits, which could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our geographic concentration means that our performance may be affected by
economic, regulatory, and demographic conditions of states in which we operate.

Our business is affected by general economic conditions in the markets in which we
operate, which in turn are affected by national general economic conditions. Because our
business is concentrated in a limited number of markets, particularly Florida, adverse
developments that are limited to a geographic area in which we do business may have a
disproportionately greater affect on us than they would have if we did business in markets
outside that particular geographic area.

Our success depends on our ability to underwrite risks accurately and to price our
products accurately.

The nature of the insurance business is such that the pricing must be determined before
the underlying costs are fully known. This requires significant reliance on estimates and
assumptions in setting prices. If we fail to assess accurately the risks that we assume, we may
fail to charge adequate premium rates, which could reduce income and have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Our ability to assess our policyholder
risks and to price our products accurately is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties,
including, but not limited to:

® Competition from other providers of MPL insurance;
® Price regulation by domiciliary insurance departments;
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e Selection and implementation of appropriate rating formulae or other pricing
methodologies;

Availability of sufficient reliable data;

Uncertainties inherent in estimates and assumptions, generally;

Incorrect or incomplete analysis of available data;

Our ability to predict retention, investment yields and the duration of our liability for
losses and LAE accurately; and

¢ Unanticipated court decisions or legislation.

These risks and uncertainties could cause us to underprice our policies, which would negatively
affect our results of operations, or to overprice our policies, which could reduce our
competitiveness. Either event could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial condition.

Our results and financial condition may be affected by our failure to establish adequate
loss and LAE reserves.

Our liability for losses and LAE (also referred to as our loss and LAE reserves) is our
largest liability and represents the financial statement item most sensitive to estimation and
judgment. In developing our estimates of losses and LAE, we utilize actuarial projection
techniques based on our assessment of facts and circumstances then known, historical loss
experience data and estimates of anticipated trends. This process assumes that past
experience, adjusted for the effects of current developments, changes in operations and
anticipated trends, constitutes an appropriate basis for predicting future events. While we
believe that our loss and LAE reserves are appropriate, to the extent that such reserves prove
to be inadequate or excessive in the future, we would adjust them and incur a charge or credit
to earnings, as the case may be, in the period the reserves are adjusted. Any such adjustment
could have a material impact on our results of operations and financial condition. For additional
information on our loss and LAE reserves, see ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The unpredictability of court decisions may expose us to claims for extra-contractual
obligations and losses in excess of policy limits and could have a material adverse
impact on our results of operations.

Our results of operations may be adversely affected by court decisions that expand the
liability on our policies after they have been issued and priced or by a judicial body’s decision to
accelerate the resolution of claims through an expedited court calendar, thereby reducing the
amount of investment income we would have earned on related investments. Additionally, a
significant jury award, or series of awards, against one or more of our insureds could require us
to pay large sums of money in excess of our reserved amounts and may increase our exposure
to losses in excess of our policy limits. Our policy to aggressively litigate claims made against
our insureds that we consider unwarranted or claims where reasonable settlement cannot be
achieved may increase the risk that we may be required to make such payments. An award
against us for extra-contractual liability or losses in excess of policy limits in an amount in
excess of the reinsurance coverage we maintain for such liabilities could have a material
adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
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We are heavily regulated by the states in which we operate and are subject to legislative
initiatives and, indirectly, to pressure from consumer groups, which may affect the
adequacy of our premium rates, and we may be limited in the way we operate.

We are subject to extensive regulation by the insurance regulatory agencies in each
state in which we operate. Regulation is intended for the benefit of the policyholders rather than
shareholders. In addition to restricting the amount of dividends and other payments that can be
made by our insurance subsidiaries, these regulatory authorities have broad administrative and
supervisory power relating to, among other things:

Rates charged to insurance customers;
Permitted investments and practices;
Trade practices;

Licensing requirements; and

Minimum capital and surplus requirements.

® ® & 8 »

These regulations may impede or impose burdensome conditions on rate increases or
other actions that we may desire to take to enhance our operating results. In addition, we may
incur significant costs in the course of complying with regulatory requirements. Our premium
rates are also subject to legislative action and, indirectly, to pressure from consumer groups.
For information concerning certain regulatory and legislative actions being considered with
respect to MPL premium rates in Florida, see ltemm 1. Business — Industry Overview - Insurance
Regulation.

The passage of additional tort reforms and the subsequent review of such laws by the
courts could have a material impact on our operations.

Tort reforms generally restrict the ability of a plaintiff to recover damages by imposing
one or more limitations, including, among other limitations, eliminating certain claims that may
be heard in a court, limiting the amount or types of damages, changing statutes of limitation or
the period of time to make a claim, and/or limiting venue or court selection. Certain states in
which we do business have enacted tort reform legislation. Florida has enacted significant MPL
insurance reforms since 2003. For additional discussion on tort reforms passed in some of our
markets, see ftern 1. Business — Industry Overview — Tort Reform, above. While the effects of
tort reform would appear to be beneficial to our business generally, there can be no assurance
that such reforms will be effective or ultimately upheld by the courts in the various states if
challenged. Further, if tort reforms are effective, the business of providing professional and
other liability insurance may become more attractive, thereby causing an increase in
competition for our business. In addition, there can be no assurance that the benefits of tort
reform will not be accompanied by regulatory actions by state insurance authorities or legislative
actions that may be detrimental to our business such as expanded coverage requirements and
premium rate limitations or rollbacks.
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f market conditions cause reinsurance to be more costly or unavailable, we may be
required to bear increased risks or reduce the level of our underwriting commitments.

As part of our overall risk management strategy, we purchase reinsurance for significant
amounts of risk underwritten by our insurance subsidiaries. Market conditions beyond our
control determine the availability and cost of the reinsurance we purchase, which may affect the
level of our business and profitability. We may be unable to maintain our current reinsurance
coverage or to obtain other reinsurance coverage in adequate amounts or at acceptable rates.
If we were unable to renew our expiring coverage or to obtain new reinsurance coverage, our
net exposure to risk would increase or, if we were unwilling to bear an increase in net risk
exposures we would have to reduce the amount of risk we write.

We cannot guarantee that our reinsurers will pay us in a timely fashion, if at all. In
addition, we remain primarily liable to our insureds, whether our reinsurers pay or not,
and could therefore experience losses.

We transfer a portion of the risk we have assumed to reinsurance companies in
exchange for part of the premium we receive in connection with the risk. Although reinsurance
makes the reinsurer liable to us to the extent the risk is transferred, it does not relieve us of our
tiability to our policyholders. If our reinsurers fail to pay us or fail to pay us on a timely basis, our
results and financial condition would be adversely affected.

Our revenues may fluctuate with interest rates, investment results, and developments in
the securities markets.

We maintain an investment portfolio substantially comprised of fixed income securities.
We rely on the investment income produced by our investment portfolio to contribute to our
profitability. The fair market value of our fixed income securities and their carrying values can
fluctuate depending on changes in financial and credit markets, interest rates and credit quality.
Generally, the fair market value of fixed income securities will increase or decrease in an
inverse relationship with changes in interest rates, while net investment income earned from
fixed income securities will generally follow increases or decreases in interest rates over time.
Future changes in interest rates and credit quality may result in fluctuations in the income
derived from, the valuation of, and in the case of declines in credit quality, payment defaults on,
our fixed income securities, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition. Our investment portfolio is also subject to prepayment risk
primarily due to our investments in mortgage-backed securities. An investment has prepayment
risk when there is a risk that the timing of cash flows that resuit from the repayment of principal
might occur earlier than anticipated because of declining interest rates or because of later than
anticipated payments due to rising interest rates.

Our business could be adversely affected by the loss of one or more key employees.

Our success has been, and will continue to be, dependent on our ability to retain the
services of our senior management and other key employees and to attract and retain additional
qualified personnel in the future. The loss of the services of any of our senior management or
any other key employee, or the inability to identify, hire and retain other highly qualified
personnel in the future, could adversely affect the quality and profitability of our business
operations.
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We are subject to assessment by state financial guaranty associations.

State insurance guaranty associations or other insurance regulatory bodies may assess
us, generally on the basis of insurance written in their states, for the purposes of funding the
unpaid claims and policyholder benefits of insolvent insurers or for catastrophes in their states.
In 2006, we were assessed $9.4 million at the request of the Florida Insurance Guaranty
Association with respect to the insolvency of the insurance subsidiaries of Poe Financial Group
resulting primarily from losses sustained in the 2005 and 2004 hurricane seasons. See /tem 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 16, Commitments and Contingencies, for
additional information on the guaranty assessments levied in 2006. There can be no assurance
that we will not be subject to additional assessments with respect to the Poe Insurance Group
insolvencies. Although these assessments are generally passed on to our policyholders, such
additional assessments or assessments related to other property and casualty insurers that may
become insolvent because of hurricane activity or otherwise, could adversely impact our results
of operations. To date we are not aware of the need for additional assessments.

If we are unable to maintain a favorable financial strength rating, it may be more difficult
for us to write new business or renew our existing business.

Third party rating agencies assess and rate the claims paying ability of insurers based
upon criteria established by the agencies. Financial strength ratings are used by agents and
clients as an important means of assessing the financial strength and quality of insurers. A
significant downgrade or withdrawal of any such rating could adversely affect our ability to sell
insurance policies and inhibit us from competing effectively. If market conditions for our
insurance products become more competitive, competitors with higher financial strength ratings
might have a competitive advantage over us.

A decline in our profitability or expected profitability could result in the impairment of
assets, including goodwill, deferred policy acquisition costs, and deferred tax assets.

A decline in profitability could call into question the recoverability of our deferred
acquisition costs, deferred tax assets, or goodwill and require us to write down or write off these
assets or, in the case of deferred tax assets, recognize a valuation allowance through a charge
to income. Such an occurrence could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments - None
ftem 2. Properties

The physical properties used by us are summarized in the table below. We believe that
these properties are suitable and adequate for our business as presently conducted.

Approximate

Type of Owned Square

Description Location Property orlLeased  Footage
Corporate headquarters  Jacksonville, FL Offices Leased 13,300
Insurance subsidiaries Jacksonville, FL Offices Owned 72,000
insurance subsidiaries Plantation, Tampa, Sanford, Offices Leased 20,300

Coral Gables and Maitland,
FL and Springfield, MO




FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. Form 10-K: 19

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We, in common with the insurance industry in general, are subject to litigation involving
claims under our insurance paelicies in the normal course of business. Though we may be
involved in routine litigation as a matter of course, we do not expect these cases to have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. For
additional information concerning our commitments and contingencies, see ftem 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations as
well as ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and Note 16, Commitments and
Contingencies.

We may also become involved in legal actions not involving claims under our insurance
policies from time to time. We have evaluated such exposures as of December 31, 2006, and in
all cases, believe our position and defenses are meritorious. However, there can be no
absolute assurance as to the outcome of such exposures. Liabilities for loss contingencies
arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties and other sources are recorded
when it is determined to be probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
assessment and/or remediation can be reasonably estimated.

in addition, our insurance subsidiaries may become subject to claims for extra-
contractual obligations or risks in excess of policy limits in connection with their insurance
claims, particularly in Florida. These claims are sometimes referred to as “bad faith” actions as
it is alleged that the insurance company acted in bad faith in the administration of a claim
against an insured. Bad faith actions are infrequent and generally occur in instances where a
jury verdict exceeds the insured's policy limits. Under such circumstances, it is routinely alleged
that the insurance company failed to negotiate a settlement of a ctaim in good faith within the
insured’s policy limit. We have evaluated such exposures as of December 31, 2006, and
believe our position and defenses are meritorious. However, there can be no absolute
assurance as to the outcome of such exposures. An award for a bad faith claim against one of
our insurance subsidiaries in excess of the applicable reinsurance could have an adverse effect
on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of
2006.

Partll

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol
“FPIC.” We estimate that as of March 1, 2007, there were approximately 2,165 shareholders of
record of our common stock.
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The following table shows the high and low sales prices per share of our common stock
on the NASDAQ Global Select Market for each quarter of 2006 and 2005.

2006 2005
High Low High Low
First quarter $ 3847 33.93 $ 36.00 29.30
Second quarter $ 40.49 35.12 $ 3296 24.13
Third quarter $ 4149 35.04 $ 36.75 29.10
Fourth quarter $ 41.13 34.35 $ 3984 34.14

We have not paid any dividends since our initial public offering in 1996, as we have
elected to retain our earnings to support our growth and financial strength. Our Board of
Directors will periodically review our dividend policy in the future taking into consideration capital
adequacy and assessments of future capital needs. As a holding company with no direct
operations other than the management of our subsidiaries, we would rely on cash dividends and
other permitted payments from our subsidiaries to pay any future dividends to our shareholders.
State insurance laws limit the dividends or other amounts that may be paid to us by our
insurance subsidiaries. For further information, see the discussion under the heading “Liquidity
and Capital Resources” in ftem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Stock Repurchase Plans

Under our stock repurchase program, we may repurchase shares at such times, and in
such amounts, as management deems appropriate. Under certain circumstances, limitations
may be placed on our ability to repurchase our capital stock by the terms of agreements relating
to our junior subordinated debentures. For information regarding these limitations, refer to /tem
8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 10, Long-term Debt, as well as the
discussion under the heading “Liquidity and Capital Resources” in fftem 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, below. During 2006,
we repurchased 683,955 shares of our common stock at an average price per share of $38.05.

The following table summarizes our common stock repurchases for the three-month
period ended December 31, 2006:
Maximum Number
Total Number of  of Shares that May
Shares Purchased Yet Be Purchased

Total Number of as Part of Publicly Under the Plans or
Shares Average Price Announced Plans or Programs at End of
Period Purchased Paid per Share Programs Month
October 1 - 31, 2006 — 8 — — 569,525
November 1 - 30, 2006 * 258608 $ 38.34 258,608 310,917
December 1 - 31, 2006 ** 206,392 3 39.04 206,392 604,525 ***
* Includes 149,858 shares repurchased in November 2006 and settled in December
2006. ,
b Includes 68,300 shares repurchased in December 2006 and settled in January 2007.
ax In December 2006, our Board of Directors approved an additional 500,000 shares

available for repurchase under our current stock repurchase program.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following performance graph does not conslitute soliciting material and shall not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into any other previous or future filings by us under the
Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent thaf we
specifically incorporate this report by reference therein.

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total return for FPIC common
stock, the Russell 2000 index and our peer group (the “FPIC Peer Group”) for the five-year
period ended December 31, 2006. The FPIC Peer Group represents a peer group that consists
of ProAssurance Corporation, SCPIE Holdings, Inc., and American Physicians Capital, Inc. The
graph assumes an investment on December 31, 2001, of $100 in each of FPIC common stock,
the stocks comprising the Russell 2000 index and the common stocks of the FPIC Peer Group.
The graph further assumes that all paid dividends were reinvested. The Russell 2000 index and
the FPIC Peer Group are weighted by market capitalization. SNL Financial LC of
Charlottesville, Virginia, prepared the calculations for the information below.

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.

Total Return Performance
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Period Ending
index 12/31/01  12/31/02  12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06
FPiC Insurance Group, Inc. 100.00 46.62 169.53 239.05 234 .46 263.31
Russell 2000 100.00 79.52 117.09 138.55 144.86 171.47

FPIC Peer Group 100.00 84.55 119.57 156.44 20362 222.96
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item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data presented below should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, which are included in /tem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, herein. For additional information with respect to our
business see Iltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Resuits of Operations.

Consolidated Statement of Income (Loss) Data: For the year ended December 31,

(in thousands, except earnings per common share) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Direct and assumed premiums written ' ) $ 251,424 289,022 312,728 340,741 344727
Net premiums written ©’ $ 222423 251814 192532 143,134 140,248
Revenues;

Net premiums earned #’ $ 226965 226,042 149,676 131,665 151,684
Net investment income 32,242 25,005 20,827 18,285 20,793
Net realized investment gains (losses) 80 (980) 3,867 2,052 4,688
Finance charges and other income 485 641 637 945 1,260
Total revenues 259,772 250,708 174,807 152,947 178,425
Expenses:

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 151,648 166,657 125,172 118,974 139,571
Other underwriting expenses '* @ @ 50,983 36,440 12,527 9,443 16,867
Interest expense 4,291 3,495 2,564 5,886 4,762
Other expenses " & 5,729 8,247 7,433 5.445 1,596
Total expenses 212,651 214,839 147 696 139,748 162,796
Income from continuing operations before income

taxes 47,121 35,869 27,111 13,199 15,629
Less: Income tax expense 14,182 10,387 9,256 3,935 5,388
Income from continuing operations 32,939 25,482 17,855 9,264 10,241
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change (net of

income tax benefit) — - — — 29,578
Discontinued operations (net of income taxes) o 18,649 9,540 10,326 7,308 4,635
Net income {loss) $ 51,588 35,022 28,181 16,572 {14,702)
Basic Earnings per Conumnon Share:

Income from continuing operations $ 3.20 2.50 1.79 0.88 1.09
Cumulative effect of accounting change @) —_ — — — (3.15)
Discontinued operations @ 1.82 0.93 1.04 077 0.49
Net income {loss) $ 5.02 3.43 2.83 1.75 (1.57})
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 10,284 10,220 9,973 9,483 9,387
Diluted Earnings per Common Share!

Income from continuing operations $ 3.09 2.37 1.71 0.96 1.09
Cumulative effect of accounting change ©® — — — — (3.14)
Discontinued operations ™ 1.74 0.89 0.99 0.76 0.49
Net income (loss) $ 483 3.26 2.70 1.71 {1.56)

Diluted weighted average shares cutstanding 10,671 10,740 10,420 9,665 9,432
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data: As of December 31,
(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Total cash and investments
Total assets

Liability for losses and LAE
Long-term debt
Revolving credit facility
Term loan
Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity ®

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

5)

(6)

)

)

865,997 764,079 671,116 608,672 526,242
1,219,059 1,308,541 1,271,321 1,182,756 1,026,431
642,955 663,466 635,118 574,529 440,166
46,083 46,083 46,083 46,083 -

— —_ — 37,000
— - — — 10,208
933,805 1,058,951 1,054,201 996,099 860,518
285,254 249,590 217,120 186,657 165,913

4)

P AP DD PN

During 2002 through 2004, our insurance subsidiaries participated in various fronting
programs with other insurance carriers. We retained minimal underwriting risks and
received ceding commissions and/or fronting fees as compensation under these
programs.

Effective July 1, 2002, our subsidiary, First Professionals, entered into a finite quota
share reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re. In accordance with the agreement,
First Professionals ceded quota share portions of its 2002, 2003, and 2004 direct
written premiums, net of other reinsurance. The agreement was terminated effective
June 30, 2004 and commuted effective December 31, 2006. As a result of the
commutation, we will no longer incur the finance charges previously associated with
funds withheld under the agreement.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Financial Accounting Standard (“FAS”)
123(R), Share-Based Payments. Share-based compensation was $2.2 million during
2006, compared to $0.6 million during 2005. Approximately $1.1 million of the
increase in share-based compensation is the result of adopting FAS 123(R).

During 2003, we retired our revolving credit facility and term loan in the amount of
$47.2 million and completed the placement of $10.0 million in senior notes and
created three trusts that issued 30-year trust-preferred securities for which the
proceeds from such issuances together with cash previously contributed to the trusts
were used to purchase junior subordinated debentures from FPIC totaling $36.1
million. In connection with this transaction, we settled and purchased certain
derivative financial instruments. For additional information, see /ltem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, Notes 10, Long-term Debt, and 11, Derivative
Financial Instruments.

During 2006 and 2005, we recorded charges of $0.2 million and $0.8 million,
respectively, for severance and post-employment benefits of certain former officers.

We adopted FAS 142, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, effective January 1, 2002, and
recorded a non-cash charge of $29.6 million, net of an income tax benefit of $18.8
million.

During 2005, we disposed of our TPA operations. During 2006, we disposed of our
insurance management operations. For additional information, see ftem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 17, Discontinued Operations.
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(8) We adopted FAS 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans, effective December 31, 20086, and recorded a non-cash charge
to accumulated other comprehensive loss, a component of shareholders’ equity, of
$1.2 million, net of an income tax benefit of $0.7 million.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

The following management's discussion and analysis ("MD&A") should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements appearing elsewhere in this report. The consolidated financial statements
include the results of all of our wholly owned subsidiaries. Except for the historical information
contained here, the discussions in the MD&A contain forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Qur actual results could differ materially from those discussed here.
Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those
discussed under ltem 1A. Risk Factors.

Business Overview

We operate in the MPL insurance sector of the property and casualty insurance industry.
Our primary insurance products provide protection for physicians, dentists and other healthcare
providers as individual practitioners or as members of practice groups. Qur insurance protects
policyholders against losses arising from professional liability claims and the related defense
costs with respect to injuries alleged to have been caused by medical error or malpractice.
Optional coverage is available for professional corporations under which physicians or dentists
practice. Through our insurance subsidiaries, we are the largest provider of MPL insurance in
Florida. Based on 2005 premium data published by A.M. Best, Florida is the third largest
market for MPL insurance in the United States. We have chosen to focus on selected markets
where we believe we have advantages in terms of our market knowledge, well-established
reputation, significant market presence, and resources.

Our former insurance management operations, which provided insurance management
services in New York and Pennsylvania, were discontinued in September 2006 in connection
with the sale of these operations to a private investor. Our former TPA operations, which
provided administrative and claims management services to employers, primarily in Florida,
were sold in 2005. For additional information on our discontinued operations, see /temn 8.
Financial Statements and Suppfementary Data, Note 17, Discontinued Operations.

Highlights
*  Qur consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased 47%
compared with the same period in 2005. Our consolidated net income for the year ended
December 31, 2005 increased 24% compared with the same period in 2004,

* During 2006, we sold our insurance management operations for $39.1 million in cash,
which reflects a post-closing working capital adjustment of $0.9 million. In connection with
the transaction, we also received a cash distribution of approximately $5.9 million from the
operations prior to the sale. We recognized an $11.6 million after-tax gain on the
disposition of these operations. During 2005, we sold our TPA operations and recognized
a $1.7 million after-tax gain related to the sale.
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*  QOur consolidated income from continuing operations for the year ended December 31,
2006 increased 29% compared with the same period in 2005. Our consolidated income
from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased 43%
compared with the same period in 2004.

*  Qur net premiums written for the year ended December 31, 2006 declined 12%,
compared with the same period in 2005 primarily as a result of a shift in business mix to
lower risk specialties and to a lesser extent, a continued migration to lower policy limits for
Florida-based physicians, a lower number of policyholders compared with the same
period in the prior year and an effective rate decrease of 9.2% at First Professionals
beginning December 1, 2006. Our net premiums written for the year ended December 31,
2005 increased 31% compared with the same period in 2004 primarily as a result of the
termination of cessions under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance
agreement as of June 30, 2004,

* We have continued our targeted market focus, with 2006 policyholder retention in Florida
at 94% and overall policyholder retention at 92% compared to 2005 and 2004 policyholder
retention in Florida at 95% and overall policyholder retention at 94% and 89%,
respectively.

¢ QOur net premiums earned for the year ended December 31, 2006 were flat compared with
the same period in 2005 primarily because of the shift in business mix to lower risk
specialties, a continued migration to lower policy limits for Florida-based physicians and a
lower number of policyholders compared with the same period in the prior year. The
impact of these factors was offset by the termination of cessions under the Hannover Re
net account quota share reinsurance agreement, under which ceded earned premiums
were $8.4 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. Our net premiums
earned for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased 51% compared with the same
period in 2004 primarily as a result of the termination of cessions under the Hannover Re
net account quota share reinsurance agreement.

*  We commuted our net account quota share reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re
effective December 31, 2006, which resulted in the assumption of $84.0 million in loss and
LAE reserves previously ceded under the agreement. Because of the commutation, we
will no longer incur the finance charges previously associated with funds withheld under
the agreement.

* Qur calendar year loss ratio improved to 67% for the year ended December 31, 2006,
(compared to 74% and 84% for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively), as a result of favorable loss experience, including a significant reduction in
reported claims and incidents for the year. The severity of our claims continued to be
within our expectations.

*  We experienced favorable prior year loss development of $5.1 million during 2006,
primarily because of lower expected ultimate losses for the 2004 and 2005 accident years.

* For the year ended December 31, 2006, our expense ratio was 22% compared to 16%
and 8% for the same periods in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our other underwriting
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 included two state guaranty fund
assessments totaling $9.4 million {$5.8 million after-tax) related to the insolvency of the
insurance subsidiaries of Poe Financial Group. No assessments were levied in 2005 or
2004.
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* Portfolio growth and a higher overall yield contributed to a 29% increase in our net
investment income for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to a 21% increase
for the same period in 2005.

* Qur shareholders’ equity increased 14% and our insurance surplus increased 17% as of
December 31, 2006 compared to the balances as of December 31, 2005.

* We repurchased 683,955 shares of our common stock during 2006 at an average price of
$38.05 per share; as of March 2, 2007, an additional 166,890 shares of our common stock
have been repurchased, including 116,890 shares through our Rule 10b5-1 plan, at an
average price of $39.48 per share; 437,635 shares remain available for repurchase under
the current stock repurchase program.

During 2006, Fitch assigned an A- (strong) insurer financial strength rating to our
insurance subsidiaries.

Recent Developments

* During February 2007, our subsidiary, First Professionals, entered into an agreement with
Physicians' Reciprocal Insurers (“PRI") to commute, effective January 1, 2007, ali
assumed reinsurance treaties with PRI where First Professionals acted as a reinsurer.
These treaties covered excess of loss reinsurance and reinsurance for PRI's death,
disability and retirement risks. Under the terms of the agreements, First Professionals
paid cash and delivered securities with an aggregate value of approximately $87.7 million
to PRI as full settlement of all past and future obligations for policy risks previously
reinsured by First Professionals. The corresponding net liabilities related to these
agreements carried by First Professionals as of December 31, 2006 totaled $103.4
million. This transaction will be reflected in our first quarter 2007 financial statements.

* The Florida QIR is considering assertions made by the Consumer Advocate that Florida
MPL insurance rates should be significantly lowered. In addition, bills have been
introduced in the Florida Senate and House of Representatives that, if passed and
enacted into law, would, among other things, require a prospective reduction in MPL rates
for policies issued or renewed on or after October 1, 2007 to rate levels that are at least
25 percent less than the rates for the same coverage that were in effect on October 1,
2004 (under the Florida Senate bill) or September 15, 2003 (under the Florida House of
Representatives bill). We cannot predict what, if any, future regulatory or legisiative action
may be taken with respect to Florida MPL premium rates or what effect any such action
may have on our operations, but we believe that our premium rates are appropriate.

* On February 20, 2007, A.M. Best upgraded the financial strength rating of our insurance
subsidiaries to "A-* (Excellent) with a stable outlock from a financial strength rating of
‘B++" (Good) with a stable outlook.

Industry Overview
For a discussion of industry factors affecting us, see ftem 1. Business — industry
Overview.

Business Strategy
For a discussion of our business strategy, see lfern 1. Business — Business Strategy.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition, results of operations and liquidity and
capital resources is based upon the consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us
to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. We generally
base our estimates on historical experience or other appropriate assumptions that we believe
are reasonable and relevant under the circumstances and evaluate them on an ongoing basis.
The results of these estimation processes form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the critical accounting policies discussed in the remainder of this section of
our MD&A affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. These may be further commented upon in applicable
sections on Results of Operations and Liquidity and Capital Resources that follow. Information
about the significant accounting policies we use in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements is included in /tem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 2,
Significant Accounting Policies.

Liability for Losses and LAE — Qur liability for losses and LAE (also referred to as our
loss and LAE reserves) is our largest liability and represents the financial statement item most
sensitive to estimation and judgment. MPL insurance is our primary line of business and
accounted for $630.2 million and $644.8 million, or 98% and 97%, of our total consolidated
liability for losses and LAE as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Our loss and LAE reserves represent management’s best estimate of the amounts we
expect to pay out in the future on account of all insured events as of the end of the period. The
liability comprises estimated case reserves on reported claims plus estimates of insured losses
and LAE incurred but not yet reported (“IBNR”). Also implicit in our foss and LAE reserves is a
provision for case reserve development, which represents an estimate of the aggregate
difference between our individually estimated case reserves and the amount for which they will
ultimately be settled. This provision, which is included in our total IBNR reserves, comprises the
majority of such reserves given our claims-made only policy coverage.
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The following table summarizes our fiability for losses and LAE by line of business:

(in thousands) As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Case Total Case Total
reserves IBNR * reserves reserves IBNR * reserves
Gross basis:
Medical professional liability $ 440,373 189,852 630,225 $ 479,213 165,539 644,752
Other lines 10,563 2,167 12,730 15,266 3,448 18,714
“Total gross reserves $ 450,936 192,019 642,955 $ 494479 168,987 663,466
Net basis:
Medical professional liability $ 347,510 134,803 482,313 $ 281,575 76,930 368,505
Other lines 2,529 (755) 1,774 4,553 (3.439) 1,114
Total net reserves $ 350,039 134,048 484087 $ 286,128 73.491 350,619
* Includes case reserve development

IBNR as a component of our total reserves has increased in recent years as a result of
higher estimates of LAE, such as legal defense and related costs, driven by the stricter claims
philosophy we adopted in 2001, which focuses on aggressively defending non-meritorious
claims in order to lower overall claims costs. While we believe this approach has been
beneficial to our results in total, it has increased our estimates for LAE costs as an individual
component. Establishing case reserves for LAE is inherently difficult since the level of costs
ultimately necessary to resolve a case tends to increase over time and can vary significantly
based on factors such as whether and when a case is taken to trial. Therefore, a substantial
portion of total LAE reserves is reflected in our estimates for case reserve development.
Additionally, our stricter claims philosophy has resulted in a relatively lower number of cases
with an indemnity case reserve, which has also resulted in an increase in IBNR as a component
of total reserves.

Actuarial techniques and primary factors that impact our reserve estimates

We establish loss and LAE reserves taking into account the results of multiple actuarial
techniques applied as well as other assumptions and factors regarding our business. The
actuarial techniques we use that are material to our evaluation of loss and LAE reserves include
the following:

Loss Development Methods (Incurred and Paid Development);

Berquist-Sherman Case Reserve Adjustment Method;

Frequency/Severity Methods;

Allocated Loss Adjustment Expense (“ALAE”) Development Methods (Incurred and
Paid Development);

Bornhuetter-Ferguson Expected Loss Projection Methods; and

* Backward Recursive Method
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Each technique has inherent benefits and shortcomings (i.e., biases), particularly when
applied to company-specific characteristics and trends. For example, certain methods (e.g., the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods) are more relevant to immature accident years, and other
methods (e.g., the loss development methods) provide more meaningful information for years
with a greater level of maturity. Because each method has its own set of attributes, we do not
rely exclusively upon a single method. Rather, we evaluate each of the methods for the
different perspectives that they provide. Each method is applied in a consistent manner from
period to period and the methods encompass a review of selected claims data, including claim
and incident counts, average indemnity payments, and loss adjustment costs.

Using internal actuarial staff, we analyze and develop projections of ultimate losses that
are utilized in establishing our carried reserves. In performing our review, we separate reserves
by line of business, coverage type, layer of coverage, geography, and accident year. By doing
so, we are able to evaluate the unique patterns of development and trends for each line of
business. We then select a point estimate for each line of business with due regard for the age,
characteristics and volatility of the portion of the business, the volume of data available for
review and past experience with respect to the accuracy of estimates for business of a similar
type. This series of selected point estimates, along with other relevant quantitative and
qualitative information, is then evaluated by management to produce our best estimate and our
range of projected uitimate losses based upon the various methods discussed above. We
develop our range by selecting and applying a factor to our best estimate in order to produce
the upper end of our range, which is reflective of the outcomes of higher projections. A similar
method is used to arrive at the low end of our range. In general, the width of a range reflects
the level of variability in the underlying projections, and a typical range of reasonable values for
MPL business is considered to be as wide as 15%. Therefore, in addition to the performance of
the business itself, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows are sensitive to
our reserve estimates and judgments. The range developed for our loss and LAE reserves, net
of reinsurance, at December 31, 2006 was $429.0 million to $498.6 million.

We also utilize and evaluate calculations contained in an actuarial study performed by
an independent actuarial firm as an objective confirmation of the adequacy of our carried
reserves. Our best estimate may differ from the selected reserve estimate of our independent
actuary because of differences in evaluating such things as the impact of historical experience,
legal and regulatory changes, expectations about future claim resuits and trends and certain
other factors as discussed below. While our assessment may differ, our carried reserves
remain within a reasonable actuarial range of the independent actuary’s selected reserve
estimate. The independent review of our reserves plays an important role in our overall
assessment of the adequacy of our reserves. The reserve opinions of our independent actuary
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 have been filed with state insurance
regulators along with the statutory financial statements of our insurance companies.
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The primary factors affecting our estimates of uitimate reserves for insurance claims,
defense, and other related costs, including how much we pay for a given claim, include the
following:

* Freguency and severity trends (numbers of claims and how much we will pay for
each claim on average);

e The timing or pattern of future payments;
The amount of defense costs we will pay for each claim or group of claims;
Frequency of claims closed with indemnity payments (the percentage of claims
received that uitimately result in a loss payment versus those that are settled and
closed without a loss payment), and

e Inflationary trends that are expected to bear on future loss and LAE payments.

These factors, in turn, can be affected by external events, including changes in the
judicial environment and tort-related trends over time. For example, the removal or significant
weakening of one or more of the tort reforms passed in our largest market, Florida, could result
in an unexpected increase in claim frequency and/or severity. In addition, these factors may
also be impacted by internal events, such as changes in our business mix or claims handling
philosophy. Determining whether such events are reasonably likely to occur and attempting to
quantify the impact of an individual event are inherently difficult. We utilize our experience and
judgment and consider these factors as well as historical experience and the results of applied
actuarial techniques when evaluating the adequacy of carried loss and LAE reserves. All of the
above-mentioned factors individually can and will generally vary from one period to the next
over time but are estimated to approximate their ultimate values in setting reserve estimates.

In considering the potential sensitivity of the factors and assumptions underlying
management’s best estimate of loss and LAE reserves, it is also important to understand that
the MPL sector of the property casualty insurance industry is characterized by a relatively small
number of claims with a large average cost per claim. For instance:

* In 2006, we ended the year with 13,402 professional liability policyholders and paid a
total of $53.0 million in loss payments (indemnity only) on 322 claims.

e |n 2005, we ended the year with 14,055 professional liability policyholders and paid a
total of $60.8 million in loss payments (indemnity only) on 381 claims.

Given the magnitude of our reserves and these characteristics, even a relatively small
change in the number of claims we expect to pay (i.e., frequency) or a relatively small
percentage change in the average cost per claim (i.e., severity) could have a significant impact
on our reserves and, correspondingly, our financial position, results of operations and cash
flows. This is the case for other key assumptions as well, such as the frequency of reported
claims and incidents that will ultimately close with an indemnity payment versus those that will
close without an indemnity payment. In addition, due to the relatively small number of claims
ultimately resulting in an indemnity payment and the average cost per claim, any change in the
trends assumed in the ultimate values for these factors could result in a significant change in
our reserve estimates. Because our aggregate loss and LAE reserves are so large, this also
means that virtually any change in the level of our carried reserves will be material to results of
operations and may be material to our financial position.
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Roll forward of consolidated liability for losses and LAE
The following table rolls forward our consolidated liability for losses and LAE, net of

reinsurance.

{in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
' 2006 2005 2004
Net loss and LAE reserves, January 1 $ 359,619 301,699 298,763
Incurred related (o:
Current year 156,711 166,687 124,699
Prior years (5,063) (30) 473
Total incurred 151,648 166,657 125,172
Paid related to:
Current year 10,166 21,023 16,517
Prior years 103,430 97,894 105,719
Total paid 113,596 118,917 122,236
Commutation » 2 &) 86,416 10,180 —
Net loss and LAE reserves, December 31 $ 484,087 359,619 301,699

Gross loss and LAE reserves, December 31 $ 642,955 663,466 635,118
Reinsurance recoverables, December 31 158,868 303,847 333,419

Net loss and LAE reserves, December 31 $ 484,087 359,619 301,699

(1)

{2)

3

Effective December 31, 20086, First Professionals commuted its net account quota
share reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re. Under the terms of the
commutation agreement, First Professionals assumed loss and LAE reserves
previously ceded of approximately $84.0 million and in exchange Hannover Re
released to First Professionals the funds withheld under the agreement of $84.0
million. No gain or loss was recognized on the transaction.

During November 20086, First Professionals entered into an agreement with CX Re to
commute its ceded reinsurance agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, First
Professionals assumed loss and LAE reserves previously ceded of approximately
$2.4 million and received a comparable amount of assets in the form of cash and
investments, resulting in no material gain or loss on the transaction.

During May 2005, First Professionals and APAC entered into agreements to
commute their 25% quota share reinsurance ceded to American Professional
Assurance, Ltd. (“APAL"). Under the terms of the agreement, First Professionals and
APAC assumed loss and LAE reserves previously ceded of approximately $10.2
million and received a comparable amount of assets in the form of cash and
investments, resulting in no material gain or loss on the transaction.
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Losses and LAE related to the current year decreased approximately 6% for the year
ended December 31, 2006 compared to 2005. As noted in our discussion of results of
operations below, our net premiums earned remained flat for the year ended December 31,
2006 compared to 2005. Our loss ratio (defined as the ratio of net losses and LAE to net
premiums eamed) related to the current year decreased to 69% for the year ended December
31, 2006 compared to 74% for the same period in 2005. Our decline in losses and LAE for the
current year reflects favorable claims trends, including a significant reduction in newly reported
claims and incidents. Severity of claims also continued to be within our expectations.

Losses and LAE for claims related to prior years represent the total net change in
estimates charged or credited to earnings in the current year with respect to liabilities
established in prior years. Information regarding losses and LAE is accumulated over time and
the estimates of the liability are revised accordingly, with the change recognized in the period
revisions are made. As noted in the table above, our loss and LAE reserve estimates for prior
years decreased approximately $5.1 million. The favorable prior year loss development reflects
a decline in expected ultimate losses for years prior to 2006, primarily the 2004 and 2005
accident years, as a result of improved claim trends including lower frequency, a lower number
of claims closed with indemnity payment and stable severity.

While we believe that our estimates for ultimate projected losses and LAE in total are
reasonable, there can be no assurance that our estimates will not change in the future given the
many variables inherent in such estimates and the extended period of time that it can take for
claim patterns to emerge.

Loss Reserve development table

The following table sets forth on a calendar year basis, the development of our liability
for losses and LAE, net of amounts recoverable under reinsurance arrangements, for the ten-
year period preceding the year ended December 31, 2006, and the cumulative amounts paid
with respect to such reserves. Development reflects the difference between the amount we
previously established as loss reserves and the re-estimated liability as of the end of each
succeeding year. Favorable development, or redundancy, means that we now believe we will
have to pay less for related claims than we had previously set aside in reserves and have
revised our reserve estimates accordingly. Adverse development, or deficiency, means that we
now believe we will have to pay more for related claims and have increased our reserve
estimates. The table also provides a reconciliation of our liability net of reinsurance to the gross
liability before reinsurance, as it is shown on our consolidated statements of financial position.

The net cumulative redundancy / {deficiency) shown in the table below for each year end
includes accident year development for all years leading up to that year. For example, for the
year ended December 31, 2006, there was $2.2 million of favorable development for accident
year 2004 reserves (for all accident years leading up to 2004). This favorable development
consists of $8.5 million of adverse development for accident years 2003 and earlier, offset by
$10.7 million of favorable development for accident year 2004. Further, the net cumulative
redundancy / (deficiency) shown in the table below also includes development for muitiple
calendar years. For example, the $36.4 million cumulative deficiency in 2003 consists of $8.5
million of development during calendar year 2008, $27.4 million of development during calendar
year 2005, and $0.5 million of development during calendar year 2004.
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As the table below indicates, our reserve estimates can vary over time based on actual
results and our assessment of the impact of recent conditions and trends. For example, the
cumulative net reserves carried at the end of calendar years 1996 through 1998 have been
higher than subsequent payments and re-estimates and have developed downward (i.e.,
redundantly). In contrast, net reserves at the end of calendar years 1999 through 2003 have
increased from the amounts initially carried and have developed upward (i.e., deficiently).
Improvements in recent years have resulted in a redundancy in the cumulative net reserves
carried at the end of 2006 as compared to our prior estimates. The following factors have
contributed to the variation in our historical loss development:

Prior to 1998, reserves represented only those of First Professionals and were
primarily related to MPL insurance business written in Florida. Claim results for this
period were generally favorable and resulted in lower reserve estimates.

Beginning in 1998, the composition of our business and our reserves changed
because of acquisitions, geographic expansion, and increased writings in other lines
of insurance, such as accident and health and assumed reinsurance. These events
contributed additional volatility to our reserve estimates.

We experienced adverse development for accident years 1998 through 2002
because of higher than expected claim trends in Missouri.

We experienced adverse development for accident years 1998 through 2001 in our
core Florida book primarily due to increases in ALAE for those report years as a
result of the stricter claims handling philosophy implemented in 2001. This
philosophy resulted in increases in ALAE costs for open claims including claims for
prior accident years. Although our claims handling philosophy has decreased overall
loss costs, it had an adverse affect on older report years where higher loss
adjustment expenses were not entirely offset by lower indemnity expenses.

We experienced adverse development for accident years 1998 through 2004 due to
a former assumed reinsurance program. This reinsurance program has been in run-
off since 2004 and was commuted effective January 1, 2007 as discussed in ffem 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 19, Subsequent Events.

Accident years 2002 through 2005 have developed favorably overall, in particular
accident years 2003 and 2004. We have experienced favorable development on
these years because of improved claim trends, including lower frequency, a lower
number of claims closed with indemnity payment, and stable severity, in part due to
the strict claims philosophy adopted in 2001.
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Reserve for Extended Reporting Endorsements — A portion of the coverage that
physicians purchase under claims-made policies is for an additional death, disability, and
retirement (‘DD&R") insurance benefit. Coverage is provided to the physician for any prior
incidents occurring during the claims-made policy period that are reported after his or her death,
disability, or retirement. The loss exposure associated with this product is known as extended
reporting endorsement claims. The reserve for extended reporting endorsement claims is
recorded during the term of the original claims-made policy, based on the present value of
future estimated benefits, including assumptions for morbidity, mortality, retirement, interest and
inflation, less the present value of expected future premiums associated with this DD&R
coverage. The reserves for these claims fluctuate based on the number of physicians who are
eligible for this coverage and their age. These liabilities, which possess elements of both loss
reserves and pension liabilities, are carried within unearned premiums. Once an endorsement
is issued because of a triggering event, a liability is established as part of the reserve for losses
and LAE. Any changes in the DD&R reserves are reflected as income or expense in the period
in which we become aware that an adjustment is necessary. At December 31, 2006 and 2005,
our carried DD&R reserves, which include assumed reserves pursuant to a reinsurance
agreement established in the year 2000, were $81.0 million and $72.9 million, respectively,
which include a discount related to the present value calculation of approximately $31.4 million
and $29.4 million, respectively. A one percentage point change in our discount rate of 5%
related to our DD&R reserves as of December 31, 2006, would result in an approximate addition
or reduction in our reserve of approximately $8.6 million. Effective January 1, 2007, we
commuted our assumed DD&R reserves. For additional information, see Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 19, Subsequent Events.

Investments — Our invested assets comprise our largest single asset class and consist
primarily of investment securities in the form of fixed income investments. Our fixed income
securities and short-term investments are carried at their fair values and accounted for $720.7
million or 99% of our total investments and 59% of our total assets as of December 31, 2006,
compared to $664.3 million or 99% of our total investments and 51% of our total assets as of
December 31, 2005. Fair value is determined using the quoted market price of these securities
provided by either independent pricing services, or when such prices are not available, by
reference to broker or underwriter bid indications. Unrealized gains or losses in their fair values
are recorded directly in shareholders’ equity, net of tax effects, as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive (loss) income. Gross unrealized investment gains were $2.3 million and
gross unrealized investment losses were $9.4 million as of December 31, 2006,

GAAP requires that the book value of investments be written down to fair value when
declines in value are considered other-than-temporary. When such impairments occur, the
decrease in value is reported in net income as a realized investment loss and a new cost basis
is established. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, we recorded a pre-tax
charge to earnings for investments that were other-than-temporarily impaired of $0.7 million and
$0.8 million, respectively. No investment impairments were recorded during 2006. We evaluate
our investment portfolio on a quarterly basis to identify securities that may be other-than-
temporarily impaired. Our analysis takes into account relevant factors, both quantitative and
qualitative in nature.
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Among the factors we consider are the following:

e The length of time and the extent to which fair value has been less than cost;

* Issuer-specific considerations, including an issuer’s short-term prospects and
financial condition, recent news that may have an adverse impact on its results, and
an event of missed or late payment or default;

» The occurrence of a significant economic event that may affect the industry in which
an issuer participates; and

¢ Qurintent and ability to hold the investment for a sufficient period to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value.

With respect to securities where the decline in value is determined to be temporary and
the security’s value is not written down, a subsequent decision may be made to sell that security
and realize a loss. If we do not expect a security’s decline in fair value to be fully recovered
prior to the expected time of sale, we would record an other-than-temporary impairment in the
period in which the decision to sell is made.

Because our investment portfolio is the largest component of consolidated assets and a
multiple of shareholders’ equity, adverse changes in economic conditions subsequent to the
statement of financial position date could result in other-than-temporary impairments that are
material to our financial condition and operating results. Such economic changes could arise
from overall changes in the financial markets or specific changes to industries, companies, or
municipalities in which we maintain relatively large investment holdings.

Income Taxes — We operate in income tax-paying jurisdictions and provide for income
taxes in accordance with the provisions of FAS 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are estimated and recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. We determine deferred tax assets and liabiiities
separately for each tax-paying component (an individual entity or group of entities that is
consolidated for tax purposes) in each tax jurisdiction.

A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is estimated and recorded if it is more
likely than not that all or some portion of the benefits related to the deferred tax assets will not
be realized. Valuation allowances are based on estimates of taxable income and the period
over which deferred tax assets wili be recoverable. In the event that actual results differ from
our estimates or those estimates are adjusted in future periods, we may need to establish a
valuation allowance, which would impact our financial position and results of operations. We
have not established a valuation allowance, as we believe it is more likely than not that our
deferred tax assets will be fully realized. For additional information concerning our income
taxes, see ftem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 8, Income Taxes.
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Reinsurance — Reinsurance does not relieve us from our primary obligations to
policyholders. Therefore, the failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in
losses to us. The amounts recoverable from reinsurers on our unpaid losses and LAE are
calculated by applying the terms of the respective reinsurance contracts to our estimates of the
underlying loss and LAE reserves that are subject to reinsurance. Thus, to the extent our
reinsured reserves change or are adjusted, so will the related reinsurance recoverable and our
exposure.

We evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers and monitor concentrations of credit
risk with respect to the individual reinsurers that participate in our ceded programs to minimize
our exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. We hold collateral in the form of
letters of credit or trust accounts for amounts recoverable from reinsurers that are not
designated as authorized reinsurers by the applicable departments of insurance of the states
that have jurisdiction over the underlying business.

Share-Based Payments — On January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of FAS
123(R) using the modified prospective method. Prior period financial statements have not been
restated to reflect fair value share-based compensation expense. Prior to the adoption of FAS
123(R), we followed the intrinsic value method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
("APB"} 25 to account for our employee stock options. Accordingly, no compensation expense
was recognized in connection with the issuance of stock options under our share-based
compensation plans. However, compensation expense was recognized in connection with the
issuance of restricted stock.

Beginning January 1, 2006, we recognized share-based compensation expense for (i) all
share-based payments granted prior to, but not vested as of, January 1, 2006, based on the
grant date fair value originally estimated in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123 and (ii)
all share-based payments granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the grant date
fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123(R). We recognize share-
based compensation expense under FAS 123(R) ratably using the straight-line attribution
method over the expected vesting period. In addition, pursuant to FAS 123(R), we are required
to estimate the amount of expected forfeitures when calculating share-based compensation
costs, instead of accounting for forfeitures as incurred, which was allowed under previous
guidance. As of January 1, 2006, the cumulative effect of adopting the estimated forfeiture
method was not significant as the amount related solely to our January 2005 restricted stock
awards and our financial statements already reflected an appropriate adjustment to
compensation expense for forfeitures. In determining the pool of windfall tax benefits for
purposes of calculating assumed proceeds under the treasury stock method, we exclude the
impact of pro forma deferred tax assets. We elected to use the short-cut method in determining
our pool of windfall tax benefits upon adoption of FAS 123(R). For additional information on our
share-based compensation plans, see ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,
Note 9, Share-Based Compensation Plans.
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The following table shows comparative net income had share-based compensation
expense been recognized in our financial statements under previous accounting guidance.

(in thousands, except earnings per common share} For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Reported net income $ 51,588 35,022 28,181

Share-based compensation expense determined
under the fair value based method, net of income

taxes — {1,166) (1,231)
Comparative net income $ 51,588 33,856 26,950
Basic earnings per common share as reported $ 5.02 3.43 2.83
Basic earnings per common share comparative $ 5.02 3.32 2.71
Basic weighted-average common shares
| outstanding 10,284 10,220 9,973
| Diluted earnings per common share as reported $ 4.83 3.26 2.70
' Diluted earnings per common share comparative $ 4.83 3.15 2.58
' Diluted weighted-average common shares
outstanding 10,671 10,740 10,420

I

i Pension Benefits — In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB") issued FAS 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). In
accordance with FAS 158, we recognized a liability for the under-funded status of our defined
benefit plans for the difference between the plans’ projected benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets. We also recorded all unrecognized prior service costs and credits, unrecognized
actual gains and losses and any unrecognized transition obligations or assets in accumulated
other comprehensive (loss) income. Such amounts are reclassified into earnings as
components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to the current recognition and amortization
provisions of FAS 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions.
FAS 158 requires us to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of our
statement of financial position. As allowed by the standard, we will adopt the measurement
date requirement in fiscal year 2008. We currently use a measurement date of October 1 for
our pension plans. The impact of adopting the measurement date requirement is not expected
to be significant.
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The incremental effect of applying FAS 158 on individual line items in the consolidated
statement of financial position is presented in the table below.

(in thousands)

Additional
Minimum
Before Liability Adjustments After
Application of ("AML") Post AML to adopt FAS Agpplication
As of December 31, 2006 FAS 158 Adjustment Adjustment 158 of FAS 158
Other assets $ 10,825 {(190) 10,635 (21) 10,614
Deferred income taxes $ 35,908 — 35,908 734 36,642
Total assets $ 1,218,536 (190) 1,218,346 713 1,219,059
Other liabilities $ 37,244 {190) 37.054 1,882 38,936
Total liabilittes $ 932,113 (190) 931,923 1,882 933,805
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (4,808) — (4,808) (1,169) {5,977)
Total shareholders' equity $ 286,423 —_ 286,423 (1,169) 285,254

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs and Deferred Ceding Commissions — Deferred
policy acquisition costs consist primarily of commissions and premium taxes, which vary with
and are directly related to the production of new and renewal insurance business. Acquisition
costs are deferred and amortized over the period in which the related premium is earned.
Deferred policy acquisition costs are reviewed to determine if they are recoverable from future
income, including investment income. If such costs are estimated to be unrecoverable, they are
expensed.

We previously had deferred ceding commissions under the Hannover Re net account
quota share reinsurance agreement, which were deferred and earned over the period in which
the related ceded premium was earned by the reinsuring company. We terminated cessions
under the agreement effective June 30, 2004 and then commuted the agreement effective
December 31, 2006. As a result of the termination of cessions under the agreement, there were
no deferred ceding commissions reported in our consolidated statements of financial position as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005. The amortization of the deferred ceding commissions, which
was recorded as a reduction to other underwriting expenses, was $0.8 million and $11.7 million
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — In accordance with FAS 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, we make an annual assessment by reporting unit as to whether the
value of our goodwill is impaired. We completed such assessments in 2006, 2005 and 2004
and concluded that the value of our goodwill was not impaired. We use both a market-based
valuation analysis and a discounted cash flow analysis to estimate the fair value of each
reporting unit. Changes to our assumptions could significantly lower our estimates of fair value
and result in a determination that goodwill has suffered impairment in value. During 2006, we
sold our insurance management operations, which included $8.0 million in goodwill, to a private
investor.

As of December 31, 2005, we recognized an impairment charge of $0.4 million related to
one of our intangible assets, which we believed did not have a remaining useful life. This
impairment charge was incurred within our insurance reporting unit and is reported in other
expenses in the consolidated financial statements. After the recognition of the impairment
charge, there were no remaining intangible assets recorded in our consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2003.
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Derivative Financial Instruments — We account for our derivatives in accordance with
FAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended by FAS
138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities and FAS 149,
Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. We use
derivative financial instruments as cash flow hedges to manage market risks related to the
effects of changes in interest rates on our floating rate long-term debt. The cost of these
contracts is being amortized over their respective maturities. In addition, the remaining
balances are adjusted and carried at their estimated fair values, with the changes therein
reported as unrealized gains or losses in other comprehensive income. The differential, if any,
to be paid or received as interest rates change is accrued and recognized as an adjustment to
interest expense related to the hedged item. The related amount payable to or receivable from
the counterparties is included as adjustments to accrued interest. See ltem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 11, Derivative Financial Instruments, for additional
information on our derivatives.

Revenue Recognition — Premium income, which is our main source of revenue, is
generally recognized pro-rata over the respective period of each policy. Premium receivables
are recorded net of an estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. Unearned premiums
represent the portion of the premium applicable to the unexpired period of the insurance policy.
In the event it is determined that the unearned premium reserve for a book of business will not
be sufficient to recover the future expected losses and LAE and acquisition costs, including
consideration of related investment income, recognition of a premium deficiency would be
required through a write down of deferred policy acquisition costs and corresponding charge to
income. n the event deferred policy acquisition costs are written off entirely, any remaining
premium deficiency would be accounted for as a liability with a corresponding charge to income.

Commitments and Contingencies — For information concerning contingencies, to
which we are subject, including assessments related to insolvencies in the states we operate,
see lfem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 16, Commitments and
Contingencies.

New Accounting Pronouncements — As described in /fem 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data, Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies under the heading “New
Accounting Pronouncements,” there are accounting pronouncements that have recently been
issued but not been implemented by us. Note 2 describes the potential impact that these
pronouncements are expected to have on our consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Resuits of Operations:
Comparison for the Year Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated net income was $51.6 million, or $4.83 per diluted common share, for the
year ended December 31, 2008, an increase of 47% and 48%, respectively, compared with
$35.0 million, or $3.26 per diluted common share, for the year ended December 31, 2005.
Changes in net income are due to the factors discussed in the paragraph below with regard to
consolidated income from continuing operations. In addition, consolidated net income for the
year ended December 31, 2006 included discontinued operations of $18.6 million (including an
$11.6 million gain on the disposal of our former insurance management operations and a $0.4
million gain on the disposal of our former TPA operations). Included in consolidated net income
for the year ended December 31, 2005 was discontinued operations of $9.5 million (including a
$1.7 million gain on the disposal of our former TPA operations).

Consolidated income from continuing operations was $32.9 million, or $3.09 per diluted
common share, for the year ended December 31, 20086, an increase of 29% and 30%,
respectively, compared with $25.5 million, or $2.37 per diluted common share, for the year
ended December 31, 2005. Consolidated income from continuing operations increased
primarily due to higher net investment income and a decline in net losses and LAE. Partially
offsetting these improvements were higher other underwriting expenses and interest expense.

Consolidated revenues were $259.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an
increase of 4%, from $250.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in
consolidated revenues primarily resulted from higher net investment income, which reflects the
growth in our investment portfolio and a higher overal! yield.

Consolidated expenses were $212.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, a
decrease of 1%, from $214.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decrease in
consolidated expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 is primarily due to a decline in
net losses and LAE offset by higher other underwriting expenses and interest expense.
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Consolidated Results of Operations
Comparison for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $35.0 million, or
$3.26 per diluted share, an increase of 24% and 21%, respectively, when compared with net
income of $28.2 million, or $2.70 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2004.
Changes in net income are due to the factors discussed in the paragraph below with regard to
consolidated income from continuing operations. In addition, consolidated net income for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 included discontinued operations totaling $9.5
million and $10.3 million, respectively.

Consolidated income from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2005
was $25.5 million, or $2.37 per diluted share, an increase of 43% and 38%, respectively, when
compared with income from continuing operations of $17.9 million, or $1.71 per diluted share,
for the year ended December 31, 2004. Consolidated income from continuing operations
increased primarily because of an increase in underwriting profits on higher net premiums
earned and higher net investment income. Partially offsetting these increases were net realized
investment losses and higher interest expense.

Consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $250.7 million, an
increase of 43%, from $174.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in
consolidated revenues is primarily due to higher net premiums earned as a result of lower
ceded premiums following the termination of the Hannover Re net account quota share
reinsurance agreement as of June 30, 2004 and higher net investment income as a result of
growth in our invested assets and improved yields. The growth in consolidated revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2005 was offset to some extent by net realized investment losses,
compared with net realized investment gains for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Consolidated expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $214.8 million, an
increase of 45%, from $147.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in
consolidated expenses is mainly the result of increases in net losses and LAE associated with
growth in premiums and higher other underwriting expenses.
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Continuing Operations: Results and Selected Other Information

Our business is made up of our four insurance and certain other subsidiaries. Prior to
the dispositions of our former TPA operations in June 2005 and our former insurance
management operations in September 2006, we operated in multiple segments. Currently, we
engage only in insurance operations. Financial and selected other data related to our
continuing operations is summarized in the table below.

(in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
Percentage Percentage

2006 Change 2005 Change 2004
Direct and assumed premiums
written $ 251,424 -13% 289,022 -8% 312,728
Net premiums written $ 222423 -12% 251,814 31% 192,532
Net premiums earned $ 226,965 0% 226,042 51% 149,676
Net investment income 32,242 29% 25,005 21% 20,627
Net realized investment gains
(losses) 80 108% (980) -125% 3,867
Other income 485 -24% 641 1% 637
Total revenues 259,772 4% 250,708 43% 174,807
Net losses and LAE 151,648 -9% 166,657 33% 125,172
Other underwriting expenses 50,983 40% 36,440 191% 12,527
Interest expense 4,291 23% 3,495 36% 2,564
Other expenses 5,729 -31% 8,247 11% 7.433
Total expenses 212,651 -1% 214,839 45% 147,696
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes 47,121 31% 35,869 32% 27111
Less: Income tax expense 14,182 37% 10,387 12% 9,256
Income from continuing operations 32,939 29% 25,482 43% 17,855
Discontinued operations (net of
income taxes) _ 0% — 0% —
Net income $ 32,939 29% 25,482 43% 17,855

As of December 31,
Percentage Percentage
2006 Change 2005 Change 2004
Professional liability policyholders 13,402 -5% 14,055 -1% 14,158
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Selected direct professional liability claims data is summarized in the table below.

As of December 31,

Percentage Percentage
2006 Change 2005 Change 2004
Net Paid Losses and LAE on Professional
Liability Claims (in thousands):
Net paid losses on professional liability claims
(1), (2). (3} $ 53,049 -13% 60,817 -10% 67,805
Net paid LAE on professional liability claims''*
@), 3) 47,497 7% 50,927 1% 51,500
Total net paid losses and LAE on professional
liability claims®) @ @ $ 100,546 -10% 111,744 6% 119,305
Professional Liability Claims and Incidents
Closed Without Indemnity Payment:
Total professional liability claims closed
without indemnity payment 887 8% 825 -13% 947
Total professional liability incidents closed
without indemnity payment 1,134 -9% 1,240 2% 1,215
Total professional liability claims and incidents
closed without indemnity payment 2,021 294 2,065 4%, 2,182
Total Professional Liability Claims with
Indemnity Payment 322 -18% 391 12% 350
CWIP Ratio ¥ 27% 32% 27%
CWIP Ratio ¥, including incidents 14% 16% 14%
Professional Liability Claims and Incidents
Reported During the Period:
Total professional liability claims reported
during the period 738 21% 940 1% 928
Total professional liability incidents reported
during the period 903 -4% 941 -25% 1,261
Total professional liability claims and incidents
reported during the period 1,641 -13% 1,881 -14% 2,189
Total professional liability claims and incidents
that remained open 3,899 -15% 4,587 -11% 5,145
(1} For the purpose of period over period comparisons, net paid losses and LAE do not

take into account $84.0 million received in connection with the Hannover Re ceded
reinsurance commutation effective December 31, 2006, which would be reflected as

a reduction to reported net paid losses and LAE for 2006.
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(2} For the purpose of period over period comparisons, net paid losses and LAE do not
take into account $2.4 million received in connection with the CX Re ceded
reinsurance commutation during the fourth quarter of 2006, which would be reflected
as a reduction to reported net paid losses and LAE for 2006.

3 For the purpose of period over period comparisons, net paid losses and LAE do not
take into account $10.2 million received in connection with the APAL ceded
reinsurance commutation during the second quarter of 2005, which would be
reflected as a reduction to reported net paid losses and LAE for 2005.

{4) The closed with indemnity payment ("CWIP") ratio is defined as the ratio of total
professional liability claims with indemnity payment to the sum of total professional
liability claims with indemnity payment and total professional liability claims closed
without indemnity payment.

Hannover Re Net Account Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement — Our results include
the effects of a net account quota share reinsurance agreement with the Hannover Re
companies. Effective December 31, 2006, First Professionals commuted the agreement with
Hannover Re. Under the terms of the agreement, First Professionals assumed loss and LAE
reserves previously ceded of approximately $84.0 million and in exchange Hannover Re
released to First Professionals the funds withheld under the agreement of $84.0 million. No
gain or loss was recognized on the transaction. Amounts ceded under the Hannover Re net
account quota share reinsurance agreement are summarized in the table below.

(in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
Percentage Percentage

2006 Change 2005 Change 2004
Ceded premiums written $ — -100% 660 101% (50,357)
Ceded premiums earned $ — 100%  {8.373) 89%  (75,675)
Ceded losses and LAE incurred —_ -100% 5814 -90% 57,538
Ceded other underwriting expenses (153) -105% 2,922 -87% 22,710
Net (decrease) increase in underwriting
margin (153) -142% 363 -92% 4,573
Other expenses (5,221) 21% (6,643) 7% (7,152)
Net decrease in income from continuing
operations before income taxes (5,374} 14% {6,280) -144% (2,579)
Net decrease in net income $ (3,301) 14%  (3,858) -144% (1,582)

Comparison of Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Net income increased for the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily due to higher net
investment income and lower net losses and LAE offset to a certain extent by higher other
underwriting expenses and interest expense.
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The decreases in direct and assumed premiums written and net premiums written for the
year ended December 31, 2006 are primarily the result of a shift in business mix to lower risk
specialties and to a lesser extent, a continued migration to lower policy limits in Florida, a lower
number of policyholders compared with the same period in the prior year and an effective rate
decrease of 9.2% at First Professionals beginning December 1, 2006. The number of
professional liability policyholders was 13,402 at December 31, 2008, down 5% from 14,055 at
December 31, 2005. The policyholder retention rate in our core Florida market was 94% for
2006 and 95% for 2005. National policyholder retention was 92% for 2006, compared to 94%
for 2005.

Net premiums earned for the year ended December 31, 2006 was flat compared with the
same period in 2005 primarily because of the factors mentioned above, offset by the termination
of cessions under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement, under
which ceded earned premiums were $8.4 million for the twelve months ended December 31,
2005.

Investment revenues, which are comprised of net investment income and net realized
investment gains and losses, increased 29% and 108%, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005. Net investment income increased
primarily due to growth in our investment portfolio corresponding with increases in our insurance
business in recent years and a higher overall yield, as well as the receipt of $45.9 million related
to the disposition of our former insurance management segment. Net realized investment gains
(losses) will vary depending on our cash needs and the management of our investment
portfolio.

Net losses and LAE decreased approximately 9% for the year ended December 31,
2006 compared to the same period in 2005. Our calendar year loss ratio (defined as the ratio of
net losses and LAE incurred to net premiums earned) decreased to 67% for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to 74% for the same period in 2005. Our lower loss ratio reflects
an improved current year loss ratio and favorable claims trends, including a significant reduction
in newly reported claims and incidents during the year and favorable prior year loss
development of $5.1 million, primarily as a result of lower expected ultimate losses for accident
years 2004 and 2005. Severity of claims continued to be within our expectations.

Selected direct professional liability insurance claims data

The decrease in net paid losses and LAE for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared with the same period in 2005 is primarily due to a lower number of claims with an
indemnity payment, offset to some extent by lower reinsurance recoveries under the Hannover
Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement on claims paid during 2006. Lower net paid
LAE also contributed to the decline mainly because of a lower number of pending claims and
incidents. The improvement in our CWIP ratio and CWIP ratio, including incidents during 2006
reflects the continued positive impact of our strict claims handling philosophy, which focuses on
aggressively defending non-meritorious cases. The number of reported claims and incidents
during 2006 declined compared to 2005 primarily as a result of the continued trend of lower
frequency in our Florida market that began in the fourth quarter of 2003 and a slight decline in
policyholders during 2006. Because of the decline in reported claims and incidents and the
resolution of pending claims and incidents, our inventory of open claims and incidents has
declined to its lowest level since 2001.
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Other underwriting expenses increased 40% for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to the same period in 2005. The increase in other underwriting expenses during
2006 is primarily due to state guaranty fund assessments of $9.4 million related to the
insolvency of the insurance subsidiaries of Poe Financial Group and a decrease in ceding
commissions resulting from the termination of the Hannover Re net account quota share
reinsurance agreement. In addition, during 2005, we received return management fees of $1.7
million because of a litigation settlement, which did not recur during 2006. Finally, share-based
compensation increased $1.7 million during 2006, compared to the same period in 2005.
Approximately $1.1 million of the increase in share-based compensation is the result of adopting
FAS 123(R), effective January 1, 2006. For the year ended December 31, 2008, our expense
ratio was 22% compared to 16% for the same period in 2005. Excluding the impact of the items
discussed above, our expense ratio for the year ended December 31, 2006 was nearly
unchanged compared to the same period in 2005.

The increase in interest expense was due to increases in the three-month LIBOR, which
is the base rate used to determine the interest on our long-term debt. The increase in interest
expense also reflects interest on our initial investment in trust-preferred securities and senior
notes for which there is a corresponding amount reflected in net investment income as we earn
interest on the amounts invested in the statutory capital trusts. The amortization of the initial
cost of the hedging agreements also contributed to the increase in interest expense. The
interest rates on our long-term debt ranged from 9.2% to 9.6% as of December 31, 2006.
However, the hedging instruments that we have in place with maturity dates in 2008 essentially
limited the maximum floating rate interest cost at 8.6% for those long-term debt arrangements
where the interest rate was higher.

Other expenses are comprised primarily of finance charges associated with funds
withheld under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement, which were
$5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $6.6 million for the same
period 2005. The decrease in these finance charges corresponds with the decrease in the
amount of funds withheld for business ceded under the agreement as we exercised our option
to terminate future cessions as of June 30, 2004. We commuted our net account quota share
reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re effective December 31, 2006. Because of the
commutation, we will not incur finance charges related to funds withheld during 2007. In
addition, other expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 include charges for
compensation and benefits costs associated with the resignation of certain former officers in
accordance with the terms of their respective employment agreements. Finally, during 2005, we
recorded an impairment charge of $0.4 million related to one of our intangible assets.
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Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased because of lower
tax-exempt interest as a percentage of income before taxes. Our effective tax rate was 30% for
the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 29% for the same period in 2005. During
2005, we reached a settiement with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) with regard to the
examination of our income tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001. The
settlement was approved by the Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation during the first
quarter of 2006. We had previously accrued for income tax liabilities related to the examination,
and consequently there was no income tax impact to our consolidated financial statements
because of the settlement. During 2008, the IRS commenced an examination of our 2004 tax
return. The examination was closed in February 2007 with no significant adjustments. Our
income tax returns for 2003 and 2005 have not been examined by the IRS and remain open
under the applicable statute of limitations.

Comparison of Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Net income increased for the year ended December 31, 2005 primarily due to increases
in underwriting and operating profits on higher net premiums earned and higher net investment
income. The improvement in our net losses and LAE relative to net premiums earned is
primarily the result of rate increases and other improvement in our underwriting results. The
increases in underwriting profit were partially offset by higher other underwriting expenses due
mainly to a reduction in ceding commissions earned and to a lesser extent, lower fronting fees,
net of related expenses, under former fronting programs. The decrease in ceding commissions
resulted primarily from the elimination of further cessions under the Hannover Re net account
quota share reinsurance agreement effective June 30, 2004. Partially offsetting the increases in
net income were net realized investment losses in 2005, compared with net realized investment
gains for 2004, and higher interest expense on debt.

Direct and assumed premiums written decreased 8% for the year ended December 31,
2005 compared to the same period in 2004 primarily due to our planned exits from fronting
programs and certain non-core states. We began exiting our fronting programs in 2002 to
create capacity for our core MPL insurance business. All of these programs are now in run-off.
The decrease was partially offset by the effects of pricing improvements.

Net premiumns written increased 31% for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared
to the same period in 2004 and reflects the termination of cessions under the Hannover Re net
account quota share reinsurance agreement, which resulted in a decrease in ceded written
premiums of $51.0 million and a corresponding increase in net premiums written. As cessions
under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement were terminated as of
June 30, 2004, the agreement did not have a significant impact on net premiums written for the
year ended December 31, 2005 and net premiums written during the second half of 2004.
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Net premiums earned increased 51% for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared
to the same period in 2004 primarily as the result of the termination of cessions under the
Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement, under which ceded earned
premiums were $8.4 million and $75.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The decrease in ceded earned premiums earned under the agreement
resulted in a corresponding increase in net premiums earned. Partially offsetting the increase in
net premiums earned was the non-renewal, effective July 1, 2004, of the excess of loss
reinsurance treaty under which First Professionals had previously assumed reinsurance from
PRI.

Our investment revenues, which are comprised of net investment income and net
realized investment gains and losses, decreased 2% for the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to the same period in 2004 primarily as a result of net realized investment losses
compared with net realized investment gains for the year ended December 31, 2004. Included
in net realized investment losses for the year ended December 31, 2005 was an other-than-
temporary impairment charge of $0.7 million related to certain of our corporate fixed income
securities. The net realized investment gains for the year ended December 31, 2004 were
partially generated in the process of repositioning our portfolio to increase our mix of tax-exempt
investments. Also included in net realized investment gains for the year ended December 31,
2004 was a gain of $2.1 million related to the sale of an investment in a limited partnership.

Net losses and LAE increased 33% for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
the same period in 2004. The growth in net losses and LAE is associated with the growth in
premiums. Our loss and LAE ratios (defined as the ratio of net losses and LAE to net premiums
earned) were 74% and 84% for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The smaller increase in our net losses and LAE relative to the net premiums earned and
corresponding decrease in our loss ratio primarily reflect pricing and other improvements in our
insurance business and the resulting improvement in our underwriting results. The
improvement in our loss and LAE ratio for the year ended December 31, 2005 reflects the
impact of pricing improvements and underwriting actions and favorable claims results, mainly
lower numbers of newly reported claims and incidents and stable severity.
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Selected direct professional liability insurance claims data

Net paid losses and LAE on professional liability claims decreased 6% for the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to the same period in 2004. The number of claims closed
with an indemnity payment increased 12% to 391 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
350 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The CWIP ratio, including incidents for the year
ended December 31, 2005 was 16%, compared to 14% for the year ended December 31, 2004.
The lower closed claim measures reported for the year ended December 31, 2005, including net
paid losses and LAE on professional liability claims, and claims and incidents closed are
primarily due to our stricter claims philosophy and a decrease in frequency. Also contributing to
the lower net paid losses and LAE on professional liability claims was the lower retention after
reinsurance in prior years, which reflects the inherent time lag between when premiums are
earned and related claims are paid and closed. The number of professional liability claims with
indemnity payment was slightly higher; however this was primarily due to an increase in the
number of claims closed that were already in inventory, as opposed to adverse loss experience.
Such fluctuations among periods are not unusual and although the current percentage of CWIP
to all claims and incidents closed is slightly higher, it remains within a reasonable range of
outcomes for the period relative to our carried reserves.

Other underwriting expenses increased 191% for the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to the same period in 2004. The increase in other underwriting expenses is primarily
the result of a decrease in ceding commissions resulting from the termination of the Hannover
Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement. In addition, the exit of our fronting
programs has resulted in lower fronting fees, net of related expenses, resulting in a
corresponding increase in other underwriting expenses. Other underwriting expenses also
include return management fees of $1.7 million, which represents the proceeds from the
settlement of litigation.

Interest expense increased 36% for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the
same period in 2004. The increase is due to increases in the three-month LIBOR, which is the
base rate used to determine the interest on our long-term debt. The interest rates on our long-
term debt ranged from 8.09% to 8.61% as of December 31, 2005. We have hedging
instruments in place, with maturity dates in 2008, which essentially limit the maximum floating
rate interest cost at 8.6% for those long-term debt arrangements where the interest rate was
higher.

Income taxes increased 12% for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the
same period in 2004. The increase in income tax expense reflects our higher income from
continuing operations before income taxes. Our effective income tax rates were 28% and 34%
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The decrease in our effective
income tax rate is primarily due to an increase in tax-exempt investment income as a
percentage of income before taxes and non-recurrence of a $0.75 million provision for income
tax contingencies identified in an IRS examination that was included in income tax expense for
the year ended December 31, 2004. During 2005, we reached a settlement with the IRS with
regard to the examination of our income tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2000
and 2001. The settlement was approved by the Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation
during the first quarter of 2006. We had previously accrued for income tax liabilities related to
the examination, and consequently there was no income tax impact to our consolidated financial
statements because of the settiement.
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Other expenses are comprised primarily of finance charges associated with funds
withheld under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement, which were
$6.6 million and $7.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As discussed elsewhere, we exercised our option to terminate future cessions under the
agreement as of June 30, 2004. Other expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 also
includes a charge for compensation and benefits costs associated with the resignation of certain
former officers in accordance with the terms of their respective employment agreements and an
impairment charge associated with one of our intangible assets.

Discontinued Operations: Insurance Management and Third Party Administration

Our insurance management operations were comprised of our subsidiaries in New York
and Pennsylvania that provided insurance management services to other MPL insurers. The
aggregate purchase price for these operations was $39.1 million in cash, which reflects a post-
closing working capital adjustment of $0.9 million. In connection with this transaction, we also
received approximately $5.9 million in cash from these operations prior to the sale. We
recognized an $11.6 million after-tax gain on disposition of these operations in 2006. The
results of operations and gain on sale of our former insurance management operations are
reported as discontinued operations.

Our TPA operations were comprised of our former wholly owned subsidiary, Employers
Mutual, Inc. ("EMI”). On May 9, 2005, EMI's employee benefits administration business was
sold effective April 30, 2005. An after-tax gain of $0.2 million was recognized on the sale. On
May 31, 2005, the remaining TPA operations were sold to a private investor. An after-tax gain
of $1.5 million was recognized on the sale. During the third quarter of 2006, we recorded an
additional gain on the sale of discontinued operations of $0.4 million related to the finalization of
our 2005 tax return, which reflected the sale of our former TPA operations. The results of
operations and gain on sale of the former TPA operations are reported as discontinued
operations.

For additional information on our discontinued operations, see /fem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 17, Discontinued Operations. Financial data related
to our discontinued operations is summarized in the table below.

{in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
Percentage Percentage
2006 Change 2005 Change 2004
Income from continuing operations $ — 0% — 0% -—

Discontinued Operations
Income from discontinued operations (net of

income taxes) $ 6,637 -15% 7.807 -24% 10,326
Gain on discontinued operations {net of income
taxes) 12,012 593% 1,733 0% —

Discontinued operations $ 18,649 95% 9,540 -8% 10,326
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Ligquidity is a measure of a company’s ability to generate cash flows sufficient to meet
short-term and long-term cash requirements of its business operations. As a holding company,
we possess assets that consist primarily of the stock of our subsidiaries and of other
investments. The sources of liquidity available to us for the payment of operating expenses,
taxes, and debt-related amounts include management fees and dividends from our insurance
subsidiaries. Management fees from our insurance subsidiaries are based upon agreements in
place with First Professionals and APAC, pursuant to which we provide substantially all
management and administrative services. In accordance with limitations imposed by Florida
and Missouri laws, our insurance subsidiaries are permitted, within insurance regulatory
guidelines, to pay us dividends of approximately $22.8 million during 2007 without prior
regulatory approval.

Under the terms of the management agreements with First Professionals and APAC, we
receive management fees equal to 115% of the costs incurred. The additional 15% provision in
the First Professionals and APAC management fees is intended to cover overhead, corporate
expenses and profit and is eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. In the case of
the agreement with APAC, the total annual management fees are also limited to an amount not
to exceed those that would have been paid under the terms of its former management
agreement. The payment of losses and LAE and insurance operating expenses (including
reinsurance costs) in the ordinary course of business are the principal needs for our insurance
subsidiaries’ liquid funds. The principal sources of cash from their operations to meet ongoing
liquidity requirements are the premiums collected for the insurance sold, and income on the
investment of those funds.

A number of factors could cause unexpected changes in our consolidated liquidity and
capital resources, including, but not limited to, the following:

¢ Unexpected changes in premium revenue due to higher or lower than expected new
business or retention of insurance policies in force resulting in unanticipated changes
in liquidity provided by our insurance subsidiaries;

e Unexpected changes in the amounts needed to defend and settle claims at our
insurance subsidiaries;

¢ Unexpected changes in operating costs, including new assessments or increased
taxes;

e Failure of one or more of our reinsurers leading to uncollectible reinsurance
recoverables; and

¢ Possible impairment of any of our investments.

Furthermore, liquidity and capital risks can come about as the result of the broader
business and financial risks facing us, including the uncertainties and factors disclosed in the
item 1A, Risk Factors, above. Many, if not most, of these types of uncertainties could have a
corresponding and materially negative effect on our liquidity and capital resources, as well as
our financial condition and results of operations.
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Sources of liquidity include cash from operations, proceeds from the sale of subsidiaries,
routine sales of investments and financing arrangements. As reported in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, net cash provided by operating activities was $75.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 compared to $90.4 million and $58.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The decline in net cash flows provided by
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 2005 is due to a decline
in premiums receivable associated with a decline in written premiums. Higher operating
expenses and higher income taxes also contributed to the decline in net cash provided by
operating activities during 2006. Partially offsetting these declines were lower net paid losses
and LAE, higher investment income and lower commissions paid to our agents.

Net cash flows used in investing activities was $27.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to $130.8 million and $22.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The changes in net cash provided by or used in
investing activities are due primarily to transactions involving fixed income securities and short-
term investments, which are dependent on our cash flows from operating activities and the
management of our investment portfolio. Net purchases of fixed income securities and short-
term investments, were $61.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to
$133.1 million and $25.1 for the same period in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Net cash flows
used in investing activities also reflect proceeds from the disposition of our former insurance
management and TPA operations, net of cash paid, of $34.4 million and $3.1 million during
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Net cash flows used in financing activities was $16.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to net cash flows provided by financing activities of $2.1 and
$3.2 million for the same period in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The net cash used in financing
activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily due to the repurchase of
common shares under our stock repurchase program, which totaled $24.6 million. During 2005,
we used $1.5 miliion for the repurchase of our common shares under our repurchase program.
Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 also includes $2.9
million for excess tax benefits from share-based compensation as a result of the adoption of
FAS 123(R), effective January 1, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, we had cash and invesiments of $866.0 million. Included
within cash and investments were cash and cash equivalents of $138.7 million and short-term
investments and fixed income securities, available for sale, with a fair value of approximately
$29.8 million and $27.5 million, respectively, with scheduled maturities during the next 12
months. We believe that our cash and investments as of December 31, 2006, combined with
expected cash flows from operating activities and the scheduled maturities of investments, will
be sufficient to meet our cash needs for operating purposes for at least the next 12 months.

Capital Resources

Capital resources consist of funds deployed or available to be deployed to support our
business operations. We believe our financial strength provides us with the flexibility and
capacity to obtain funds externally through debt or equity financing on both a short-term and
long-term basis. Our ability to access the capital markets is dependent on, among other things,
market conditions. We have accessed the debt market on certain occasions in the past.




FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. Form 10-K: 54

Annual Report on Form 10-K

The foliowing table summarizes the components of our capital resources:

(in thousands) As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Long-term debt $ 46,083 46,083
Shareholders' equity $ 285,254 249,590
Ratio of debt to total capitalization 14% 16%

Long-term debt — During 2003, we completed the placement of $10.0 million in senior
notes and created three trusts that issued 30-year trust-preferred securities for which the
proceeds from such issuances together with cash previously contributed to the trusts were used
to purchase junior subordinated debentures from FPIC totaling $36.1 million. The debentures
that we issued, which are reported as long-term debt in the consolidated statements of financial
position, to the three trusts are subordinated {o all senior indebtedness, including the senior
notes, and are equal in standing with one another. In accordance with the guidance given in
FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Variable Interest Entities,” we have not consolidated these
subsidiary trusts.

The securities are uncollateralized and bear floating interest rates equal to the three-
month LIBOR plus spreads ranging from 3.85% to 4.20% (the interest rates ranged from 9.2%
to 9.6% as of December 31, 2006). The floating interest rates are adjustable quarterly with
changes in the three-month LIBOR, and in the case of two offerings, the maximum rate that may
be charged under the securities within the first five years is 12.50%. We have also purchased
interest rate collars designed to maintain the ultimate floating rate interest cost on all of these
securities within a stated range for five years from closing. We have the option to call the trust-
preferred securities and senior notes at par or its equivalent beginning five years from closing.
The trust-preferred securities also contain features that allow us the option, under certain
conditions, to defer interest payments for up to 20 quarters and to redeem the securities before
the first optional call date in five years. In the case of the potential earlier call date, the
redemption or call price payable by us may be different than par. The securities have stated
maturities of 30 years and are due in May and October 2033.

Other Significant Financial Position Accounts

Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses was $158.9 million as of December 31, 2006, a
decrease of 48%, from $303.8 million as of December 31, 2005. The decrease is primarily due
to a decrease of $110.0 million under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance
agreement, including an $84.0 million decrease as a result of the commutation of the agreement
effective December 31, 2006. In addition, ceded loss and LAE reserves under former fronting
programs also decreased $28.7 million. The remaining decline in due from reinsurers on unpaid
losses is primarily attributable to ceded amounts under our primary reinsurance program, which
are impacted by changes in our direct book of business including decreases in premiums and a
reduction in policy limits.
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We purchase reinsurance from a number of companies to mitigate concentrations of
credit risk. Our reinsurance broker assists us in the analysis of the credit quality of our
reinsurers. We base our reinsurance buying decisions on an evaluation of the then current
financial strength and stability of prospective reinsurers. However, the financial strength of our
reinsurers, and their corresponding ability to pay us, may change in the future due to forces or
events we cannot control or anticipate. At December 31, 2006 our receivables from reinsurers
totaled $176.9 million. We have not experienced difficulty in collecting amounts from reinsurers
due to the financial condition of the reinsurers. Should future events lead us to believe that any
reinsurer is unable to meet its obligation, adjustments to the amounts recoverable would be
reflected in the results of current operations. We hold collateral in the form of letters of credit or
trust accounts for amounts recoverable from reinsurers that are not designated as authorized
reinsurers by the applicable departments of insurance of the states that have jurisdiction over
the underlying business. The table below identifies our reinsurers from which our recoverables
(net of amounts due to the reinsurer} are $5.0 million or more as of December 31, 2006.

Amount Recoverable as  Armount Recoverable as
A M. Best Rating as of December 31, 2006 (in  of December 31, 2005

Reinsurer of December 31, 2006 thousands) (in thousands)

Physicians' Reciprocal Insurers Not Rated * $ 36,023 65,346
Hannover Ruckversicherungs A 32,706 37,622
Lloyd's Syndicate A 22,761 33,720
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company A+ 20,925 19,352
Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S. A+ 13,409 11,732
Berkley Insurance Company A 7,238 6,528
Aspen Insurance Not Rated * 5113 3,686
QOther reinsurers 38,681 49,932
Total $ 176,856 227,918

We hold collateral in the form of letters of credit or trust accounts for amounts
recoverable from reinsurers not rated or authorized.

Reinsurance payable was $10.7 million as of December 31, 2006, a decrease of 90%,
from $104.6 million as of December 31, 2005. The decline in reinsurance payable as of
December 31, 2006 is primarily due to the continued run-off of the Hannover Re net account
quota share reinsurance agreement during 2006 along with a reduction of $84.0 million as a
result of the commutation of the agreement effective December 31, 2006. As a result of the
commutation, we no longer had funds withheld under the agreement as of December 31, 2006.
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Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have various contractual obligations that are recorded as liabilities in our
consolidated financial statements. We also have items that represent contractual obligations,
commitments and contingent liabilities that are not recorded or that are considered to possess
off-balance sheet risks beyond their respective amounts otherwise reflected in our consolidated
financial statements. These include: (1) derivative financial instruments, which are used to
hedge interest rate risk, (2) employee benefit plans, and (3) guarantees by us and contractual
obligations related to the trust-preferred securities issued by separately created, unconsolidated
trusts. We were not a party to any unconsolidated arrangement or financial instrument with
special purpose entities or other vehicles at December 31, 2006 that would give rise to
previously undisclosed market, credit, or financing risk.

(1) Derivative financial instruments — As noted above, we use interest rate collars as a
hedge to maintain the total borrowing costs of our long-term debt (interest expense on the debt
instruments, plus or minus cash flows under the interest rate collar instruments) to within
specified ranges. Our total borrowing costs on long-term debt combined with the corresponding
cash flows under the related interest rate collars, including the amortization of the initial costs of
the hedging instruments, can fluctuate between $2.3 million and $4.4 million annually, until the
interest rate collars expire. The interest rate collars are set to expire on dates corresponding
with the first dates under the respective long-term debt agreements at which they can be retired
by us at our option, which is five years from the date of issue in each case.

(2} Employee benefit plans — We provide pension benefits to eligible employees through
various defined benefit plans that we sponsor. For additional information about our employee
benefit plans, see ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 13, Employee
Benefit Plans.

The costs and liabilities that we record for our defined benefit plans are significantly
affected by changes in assumptions used to calculate those costs and liabilities. The
assumptions include discount rates, benefits earned, interest cost, expected return on plan
assets and other factors. Significant changes in these factors may result in volatility in pension
costs and liabilities. Also, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and
amortized over future periods and, therefore, generally affect recognized expense in future
periods. While we believe that the assumptions used are appropriate, changes in assumptions
or differences in actual experience may affect our future pension costs.

Historical returns of multiple asset classes were analyzed to develop a risk-free rate of
return and risk premiums for each asset class included within our defined benefit plans. The
overall rate for each asset class was developed by combining a long-term inflation component,
the risk-free real rate of return, and the associated risk premium. A weighted average rate was
developed based on those overall rates and the target asset allocation of the plans.
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The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a change in the discount rate for our
defined benefit plans as of December 31, 2006:

Impact to
Pension Impact to the
Expense, Pre- Projected Benefit
(in thousands) Tax Obligation
25 basis point increase in the discount rate $ (183) (541)
25 basis point decrease in the discountrate  $ 156 623

(3} Guarantees and contractual obligations of our trust-preferred securities — We
guarantee the floating rate interest and principal obligations under the trust-preferred securities
issued by three separately created, unconsolidated trusts. In addition, the indenture
agreements relating to our junior subordinated debentures and trust-preferred securities contain
limitations, under certain circumstances, as to (i) the declaration or payment of dividends, or
distributions thereon, or the redemption, purchase, acquisition or liquidation with respect to any
capital stock of FPIC or its affiliates; (ii) the payment, in certain circumstances, of principal,
premium or interest on, or the repayment, repurchase or redemption of, debt securities of FPIC
or its affiliates that rank in equal standing with or are junior in interest to the debentures; or (iii)
the payment, in certain circumstances, under any guarantees of FPIC or its affiliates that rank in
equal standing with, or are junior in interest to, capital securities guarantees relating to the
issuance of the debentures. Circumstances that would result in such limitations include a
continuing event of default, as defined by the indenture agreements, a default with respect to
payment of any obligations under capital securities guarantees, or a continuing interest deferral
election by FPIC. See ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 10, Long-
term debt, for additional disclosures about our trusts and junior subordinated debentures.

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations and commitments
as of December 31, 2006, and the future periods in which such obligations are expected to be
settled in cash. In addition, the table reflects the timing of principal payments on outstanding
borrowings. Additional information regarding these obligations is provided in /fem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 10, Long-term debt, Note 13, Employee Benefit
Plans, and Note 16, Commitments and Contingencies.

Less Than Cne to Three to More Than
Contractual Obligations (in thousands): Totat One Year Three Years Five Years  Five Years
Liability for losses and LAE $ 642,955 202,579 258,127 106,893 75,356
Long-term debt obligations " 46,083 — — — 46,083
Interest on leng-term debt® , 110,093 3,840 7,680 7,680 90,893
Capital lease obligations — — — — —
Operating lease obligations 1,812 593 917 302 —
Employee benefit plan obligations® 5,916 5,916 — — —
Purchase obligations — — —_ — —
Other long-term liabilities 211 99 112 o —

Total $ B07,070 213,027 266,836 114,875 212,332
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(N All long-term debt is assumed to be settled at its contractual maturity.

2) Interest on long-term debt is calculated using implied forward rates for variable rate
debt.

(3 Employee benefit plan obligations are comprised of approved plan contributions and

our unfunded obligation as of December 31, 2006.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market and economic
conditions and is directly influenced by the volatility and liquidity in the markets in which the
related underlying assets are traded. We have exposure to two principal types of market risk:
interest rate risk and credit risk. Our market risk sensitive instruments are acquired for
purposes other than trading.

Interest rate risk — fixed income securities and short-term investments. Interest
rate risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in interest rates.
Our exposure to interest rate fluctuations results from our significant holdings of fixed income
securities and short-term investments, which comprised $720.7 million, or 99%, of the fair value
of all our investment securities as of December 31, 2006. Fluctuations in interest rates have a
direct impact on the market valuation of these securities and could have an impact on the
results of our operations and cash flows. Generally, in a rising interest rate environment the
market value of fixed income securities decline, and in a declining interest rate environment the
market value of fixed income securities increase. Some of our fixed income securities have call
features. In a declining interest rate environment, these securities may be called by their issuer
and replaced with securities bearing lower interest rates. |n a rising interest rate environment,
we may sell these securities (rather than holding them to maturity) and receive less than we
paid for them,

We manage risks associated with the changes in interest rates by attempting to manage
the duration of our investments in relation to the duration of our anticipated liabilities (principally
claim payments and related defense costs) in such a way to minimize the likelihood of having to
liquidate investments at a loss before their maturity. Effective duration is a standard measure of
interest rate sensitivity that takes into account, among other things, the effect that changing
interest rates will have on prepayments and the re-investment of these funds. The effective
duration of our fixed income securities and short-term investments as of December 31, 2006
was approximately 3.2.

In accordance with the SEC's Financial Reporting Release No. 48, we performed a
sensitivity analysis to determine the effects that market risk exposures could have on future
earnings, fair values, or cash flows of our investment portfolio as of December 31, 2006. The
following table shows the interest rate sensitivity of our fixed income securities and short-term
investments assuming a range of increases and decreases in market interest rates. For
purposes of this interest rate analysis ‘", each market interest rate change is assumed uniform
across the portfolio.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

Hypothetical Hypothetical Hypothetical Hypothetical
Decrease Decrease Current Increase Increase
— {200 bps) — (100 bps) Market +100bps  + 200 bps
Fair value (in thousands) $ 768227 744,328 720,709 697,071 673,809
Fair value / Reported value 107% 103% 100% 97% 93%
(1) This risk management analysis and the estimated amounts generated from the

sensitivity analysis represent forward-looking statements about market risk assuming
certain adverse market conditions occur. The analysis provided by us to illustrate the
potential impact of changes in interest rates should not be considered projections of
future events or losses.

Interest rate risk — long-term debt obligations and derivative financial
instruments. |n addition to interest rate risk associated with our investments, we are also
subject to interest rate risk associated with our long-term debt and derivative financial
instruments. As of December 31, 2006, we had long-term debt obligations of $46.1 million,
comprised of $10.0 million in senior notes and $36.1 million in junior subordinated debentures.
Our long-term debt obligations are uncollateralized and bear floating interest at rates equal to
the three-month LIBOR plus an interest rate spread ranging from 3.85% to 4.20%. Our floating
interest rates are adjusted quarteriy.

We use interest rate collars to manage our total borrowing costs on our debt to within
specified ranges. The interest rate collars and terms as of December 31, 2006, are presented
below with their corresponding effects on the floating rate interest costs associated with our
long-term debt.

Notional Amount Maturity LIBOR LIBOR Floor Cap
(in thousands) Date Floor ") Cap!") Rate Rate
$ 15,000 5/15/2008 1.20% 4.40% 5.30% 8.50%
$ 5,000 5/23/2008 1.20% 4.40% 5.40% 8.60%
] 10,000 5/23/2008 1.20% 4.40% 5.40% 8.60%
$ 15,000 10/29/2008 1.00% 4.65% 4.85% 8.50%

{1 Based on three-month LIBOR

The interest rate collars are designed to maintain our ultimate fioating rate interest costs
on our trust-preferred securities and unsecured senior notes within a specified interest range for
five years from the closing date of those liabilities. The interest rate collars place floors and
caps on the three-month LIBOR floating interest on noticnal principal corresponding with the
principal amounts of each offering, until their respective maturity dates in 2008 or until such time
that we exercise our option to call the securities.
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Under the interest rate collars, when the three-month LIBOR interest rate exceeds the
specified cap rate or falls below the specified floor rate, we receive or pay, respectively, the
related cash flow equal to the difference in percentage times the notional principal under the
respective contracts. The two portions of each contract working together, therefore, form a
hedge against the effects of a rising three-month LIBOR rate above the cap or a falling three-
month LIBOR rate below the floor. The notional amounts of the contract are not exchanged.
Therefore, working together, the excess of the interest expense on our securities over the cap
rate, or the shortfall in interest expense under the floor, are offset by related receipts of excess
interest under the caps, or the payment of the interest shortfall below the floor, respectively. No
other cash payments are made unless the contract is terminated prior to maturity, in which case
the amount paid or received in settliement is established by agreement at the time of
termination, and usually represents the net present value, at current interest rates, of the
remaining obligations to exchange payments under the terms of the contract.

We have designated the interest rate collars as cash flow hedges. They are reflected at
fair value in our consolidated statements of financial position and the effective portion of the
related gains or losses on the agreements are recognized in shareholders’ equity (as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net). The net effect of this
accounting on our operating results is that interest expense on the floating interest rate debt
being hedged is recorded based on a range of fixed interest rates.

The following table provides information about our long-term debt obligations and
derivative financial instruments, namely our interest rate collars, which are sensitive to changes
in interest rates.

{in thousands) December 31, 2006 Projected Cash Flows
Fair Value 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total
Long-term debt:
Variable rate debt "’ $ 46,083 —_ — — — — 46,083 $ 46,083
Average interest rate & 9.2%  9.2% 8.9% 9.0% 9.1% 9.2% 9.3%
Interest rate collars:
Receive amount @ $ 523 300 a3 — — — — % 393
Average pay rate ) 0.0%  0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Average receive rate @ 0.9% 0.7% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
(1) For debt obligations, the table presents principal cash flows.
{2) For interest rate collars, the table presents notional amounts and weighted average

interest rates by expected (contractual) maturity dates. Notional amounts are used to
calculate the contractual payments to be exchanged under the contract.

3 Weighted average variable rates are based on implied forward rates in the LIBOR
yield curve as of December 31, 2006.

For additional information on our long-term debt obligations and our interest rate collars,
see the sections entitled /tem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations: Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet
Arrangements and Liquidity and Capital Resources.
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Credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that issuers of securities owned by us will default, or
other parties, primarily our insureds and reinsurers that owe us money, will not pay. Financial
instruments that potentially expose us to concentrations of credit risk consist of fixed income
investments, premiums receivable, depaosits with reinsurers, and assets carried for reinsurance
recoverable related to unpaid losses and LAE and unearned premiums. Reinsurers that are
neither authorized nor accredited by applicable state insurance departments (“unauthorized
reinsurers”) are required to provide collateral in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit or
investment securities held in a trust account to collateralize their respective balances due to us.
For additional disclosures concerning the credit risk associated with our reinsurance
recoverables, see ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.

Our fixed income securities and short-term investments currently reflect an average
Moody’s credit quality of “Aa1” (High Quality). We primarily invest in securities with investment
grade credit ratings, with the intent to minimize credit risks. Approximately 50% of our fixed
income securities and short-term investments consist of tax-exempt securities. The balance is
diversified through investments in treasury, agency, corporate, mortgage-backed and asset-
backed securities.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The financial statements and supplementary data required to be included in this Item 8
are set forth on the pages indicated in ltem 15 of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

There were no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and
financial disclosure matters.

ftem 9A. Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined by Rule 13a-15(e)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) was completed as of December 31, 2006, by our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Based on such evaluation, our disclosure controls
and procedures were found to be adequate and effective in ensuring that material information
relating to FPIC and its consolidated subsidiaries, as required to be disclosed by us in our
periodic reports filed with the SEC, is accumulated and made known to the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and other management, as appropriate, to allow for timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of
any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and
the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective
disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their
control objectives, and management necessarily is required to use its judgment in evaluating the
cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

There have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting identified in
connection with such evaluation that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2006 that have
materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial
reporting.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting is set forth on the
page indicated in Item 15 of this report. In addition, both our management's assessment and
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent registered certified public accounting firm.
Their unqualified report is included in the Report of Independent Registered Certified Public
Accounting Firm set forth on the pages indicated in Item 15 of this report.

Item 9B. Other Information
There is no information required to be disclosed in a report on Form 8-K, which has not
been reported.

Part lli

item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our Code of Ethics, which applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, is
posted on our Internet website at hitp://www.fpic.com. We intend to post any amendments or
waivers thereto on our website within four business days following such amendment or waiver.

The information required in this item with respect to directors and executive officers will
appear under the headings “Proposal 1. Election of Directors” and “Executive Officers,” in our
Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is
incorporated herein by reference.

The information required in this item with respect to the Audit Committee of our Board of
Directors and Audit Committee financial experts will appear under the heading “Corporate
Governance,” "Report of the Audit Committee," and “Proposal 3. Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

The information required in this item with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is incorporated herein by reference to the
discussion under the heading "Section 16(a} Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in
our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is
incorporated herein by reference.

There have been no material changes in the manner by which security holders may
recommend nominees to our Board of Directors from those described in our Proxy Statement
filed in connection with our 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required in this item will appear under the headings “Director
Compensation” and “Executive Compensation” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

Under our equity compensation plans, we may grant incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options and restricted stock to individuals. The number of securities remaining
available for future issuance under equity compensation plans includes stock option and
restricted stock grants. Information concerning our securities authorized for issuance under
equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2006 is provided below.

Number of Securities Remaining
Number of Securities to  Weighted-Average Exercise  Available for Future Issuance Under

be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Qutstanding Equity Compensation Plans
of Qutstanding Options, Options, Warrants and {Excluding Securities Reflected in
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Rights " Column (a))
(a) (b (c}
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 913253 $ 19.29 1,030,195
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders — % — —
Total 913,253 % 19.29 1,030,195
(1 Under our equity compensation plans, we have granted shares in the form of

restricted stock awards. As of December 31, 2006, there were 88,071 issued and
outstanding shares of such awards under these plans. Because there is no exercise
price associated with restricted share awards, which are granted to employees and
directors at no cost, such shares are not included in the weighted average exercise
price calculation.

Other information required in this item will appear under the heading “Beneficial
Ownership of FPIC Common Stock” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, which information is incorporated herein by reference. See ftem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 9, Share-Based Compensation Plans, for
information about our equity compensation plans.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required in this item will appear under the heading “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required in this item will appear under the heading “Proposal 3.
Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - Principal
Accountant Fees and Services” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
1. Financial Statements of FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.:

Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm F-2
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting F-4
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, F-6
2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December  F-7
31, 20086, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, F-8
2005 and 2004

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F-10

2. Financial Statement Schedules:
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Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm

To Board of Directors and Shareholders of
FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.:

We have completed integrated audits of FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.’s consolidated
financial statements and of its internalt control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under
ltem 15(1) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of FPIC Insurance Group,
Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In
addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedules listed in the index appearing under
ltem 15(2) present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in
conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and
financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement
schedules based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial
statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (R), “Share-Based Payment,”
effective January 1, 2006.
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| Internat control over financial reporting
Also, in our opinion, management's assessment, included in “Management’s Report on

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting” appearing under Item 15(1), that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on
criteria established in Internal Control - integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOQ), is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.
' The Company’'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
| reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the
i effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of
internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as
we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

| reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

| financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

| principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and

: procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

| financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

- receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

! authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Jacksonville, Florida PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
March 9, 2007
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.’s (“FPIC") management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. Based on our assessment of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, we have determined that FPIC
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting based on criteria established in
Internal Controf - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

FPIC’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP”). FPIC's internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management's assessment of the effectiveness of FPIC’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
an independent registered certified public accounting firm, as stated in their report that appears
herein.

March 9, 2007 FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.

By: /s/ John R. Byers
President and Chief Executive Officer

By: s/ Charles Divita, Ill
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

{in thousands, except shares authorized, issued and outstanding) As of
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

Assets
Investments:

Fixed income securities, available for sale, at fair value $ 690,895 617.716

Short-term investments, at fair value 29,814 46,608

Other invested assets 6,600 6,785

Total investments (Note 6) 727,309 671,109
Cash and cash equivalents 138,688 92,970
Premiums receivable (net of an allowance of $400 at December 31,
2006 and 2005) 84,227 94,847
Accrued investment income 8,969 8,813
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 17,097 14,586
Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses and advance premiums 158,868 303,847
Ceded unearned premiums 11,608 14,062
Deferred policy acquisition costs 14,204 14,550
Deferred income taxes 36,642 29,828
Goodwill 10,833 10,833
Other assets 10,614 13,225
Assets of discontinued operations —_— 39,871
Total assets $ 1,219,059 1,308,541

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Policy liabilities and accruals:

Losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 642,955 663,466
Unearned premiums 181,695 188,690
Reinsurance payable 10,717 104,577
Paid in advance and unprocessed premiums 13,419 14,468
Total policy liabilities and accruals 848,786 971,201
Long-term debt 46,083 46,083
Other liabilities 38,936 33,047
Liabilities of discontinued operations — 8,620
Total liabilities 933,805 1,058,951

Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)

Preferred stock, $0.10 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized;

none issued — p—
Common stock, $0.10 par vaiue, 50,000,000 shares authorized;

10,063,937 and 10,339,105 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively 1,006 1,034
Additional paid-in capital 37,735 53,627
Unearned compensation — (1,742)
Retained earnings 252,490 200,902
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net {5,977) (4,231)
Total shareholders' equity 285,254 249,590
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1,219,059 1,308,541

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

.
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(in thousands, except earnings per common share)
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For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Revenues
Net premiums earned 226,965 226,042 149,676
Net investment income 32,242 25,005 20,627
Net realized investment gains (losses) 80 {980) 3.867
Other income 485 641 637
Total revenues 259,772 250,708 174,807
Expenses
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 151,648 166,657 125,172
Other underwriting expenses 50,983 36,440 12,527
Interest expense on debt 4,291 3,495 2,564
Other expenses 5,729 8,247 7,433
Total expenses 212,651 214,839 147,696
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 47121 35,869 27,11
Less: Income tax expense 14,182 10,387 9,256
Income from continuing operations 32,939 25,482 17,855
Discontinued Operations
Income from discontinued operations (net of income taxes) 6,637 7.807 10,326
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations {net of income taxes) 12,012 1,733 —_
Discontinued cperations 18,649 9,540 10,326
Net income 51,588 35,022 28,181
Basic earnings per common share:
Income from continuing operations 3.20 2.50 1.79
Discontinued operations 1.82 0.93 1.04
Net income 5.02 3.43 2.83
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding {in thousands) 10,284 10,220 9,973
Diluted earnings per common share:
Incorme from continuing operations 3.09 2.37 1.71
Discontinued operations 1.74 0.89 0.99
Net income 4.83 3.26 270
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding (in thousands) 10,671 10,740 10,420

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

_{in thousands)

Shares of Additional Accumulated Cther
Common  Common  Paid-in Unearned Retained  Comprehensive
Stock Stock Capital Compensation Earnings Income (Loss), Net Total

Balances at December 31, 2003 9770843 § 0977 $ 43,705 % —  $137699 % 4,276 $ 186,657
Net income —_ — —_ —_ 28,181 —_— 28,181
Minirmumm pension liability adjustrment,
net of tax —_— —_ — —_ —_ (252) (252)
Unrealized loss on investments, net
of tax — — — — _ {1,302) (1,302)
Unrealized loss on derivative
financial instruments, net of tax —_ —_ — _ —_ (360) {360)
Comprehensive income 26,267
lssuance of shares 298,689 30 3,187 — — — 3,217
Income tax reductions relating to
exercise of stock oplions — —_— 979 —_ — — 979
Balances at December 31, 2004 10,069,532 1,007 47.871 - 165,880 2,362 217,120
Net income — — — — 35,022 — 35,022
Minimum pensiecn liability adjustment,
net of tax — —_ — —_ —_— 392 392
Unrealized loss on investments, net
of tax — — _ _ - (7,.019) (7.019)
Unrealized gain on derivative
financial instruments, net of tax — — — —_ — | 34
Comprehensive income 28,429
Restricted slock 76,519 8 2,367 (1.742) — — 633
lssuance of shares 236,524 23 3,590 —_ —_ — 3,613
Repurchase of shares (43,470} {4) (1,536) (1,540)
income tax reductions relating to
exercise of stock options — — 1,335 — — — 1,335
Balances at December 31, 2005 10,339,105 1,034 53,627 (1,742) 200,902 (4,231) 248,590
Neat income — —_ —_ —_ 51,588 — 51,588
Unrealized loss on investments,
net of tax —_ —_ _ _ — {587) {587)
Unrealized gain on derivative
financial instrumeants, net of tax —_ —_— —_ —_ — 10 10
Comprohensive income 51,011
Curnulative adjustment to initially
apply FAS 158, net of tax - — — — — (1,168) {1,169)
Restricted stock 35,408 3 (618) 1,742 — —_ 1,127
Issuance of shares 363,422 36 5,699 —_ —_— —_— 5,735
Repurchase of shares (673,998) (67) (24,827) —_ — - (24,894)
Share-based compensation _ —_ 1,104 — — —_ 1,104
Income tax reductions relating to
exercise of stock options — —_ 2,750 — — — 2,750
Balances at December 31, 2006 10,063,937 $ 1,006 $ 37,735 $ — $252490 § (5,977} $ 285,254

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Operating Activities
Net income $ 51,588 35,022 28181
Less: Discontinued operations 18,649 9,540 10,326
Income from continuing operations 32,939 25,482 17,855
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, amorization and accretion 28,652 27.850 2,707
Net realized (gains) losses on investments (80) 980 (3,867)
Net (gain} loss from equity investments (792) _ 118
Bad debt expense 288 278 43
Deferred policy acquisition costs, net of related
amortization {21,249) (24,090) (13,290)
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (5,475) (2,252) (1,238)
Writedown of intangible assets —_— 375 —
Deferred ceding commission, net of related
amortization — (1,246) 9,828
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (2,914) — —
Share-based compensation 2,224 559 —
Other Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Premiums receivable, net 10,333 (642) 6,937
Accrued investment income {(156) (1,581) (1,079)
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses {2,511) 4,554 (3.190)
Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses and advance
premiums 144,979 29,572 (57,653)
Ceded unearned premiums 2,454 14,085 43,288
Other assets and cther liabilities 9,083 6,086 (367)
Losses and loss adjustment expenses (20,511) 28,348 60,589
Unearned premiums {6,995) 11,687 (432)
Reinsurance payable (93,860) (30,062) {3,069)
Paid in advance and unprocessed premiums {1,049) 389 912
Net cash provided by operating activities 75,360 90,372 58,002
Investing Activities
Proceeds from
Sales of fixed income securities, available for sale 44,419 306,511 489,377
Sales of other invested assets 86 521 3,095
Maturities of fixed income securities, available for
sale 49,476 10,451 9,604
Maturities of short-term investments 47,096 13,825 —
Disposition of subsidiary, net of cash paid 34,350 3,121 —
Purchases of
Fixed income securities, available for sale (171,858) (403,203) {524,068)
Other invested assets {623) (218) (163}
Short-term investments (30,095) (60,712) —
Property and equipment {(114) (1,090) (689)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (27,263) (130,794) (22,844)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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{(in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Financing Activities

Issuance of common stock $ 5,735 3,613 3,217

Repurchase of common stock (24,607) {1,540) —

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 2,914 — —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities {15,958) 2,073 3,217

Discontinued Operations

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,639 14,894 6,824

Net cash used in investing activities (785) (2,101) {2,103)

Net cash provided by financing activities — —_ —

Net cash provided by discontinued operations 3,854 12,793 4,721

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents 35,993 (25,556) 43,186

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

(including discontinued operations) 102,695 128,251 85,085

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (including

discontinued operations) 138,688 102,695 128,251

Less cash and cash equivalents of discontinued

operations at end of period — 9,725 12,853

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

(excluding discontinued operations) $ 138,688 92,970 115,398

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest paid on debt $ 4,195 3,308 2,524

Federal income taxes paid $ 14,309 10,480 12,950

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staternents

1. Organization and Nature of Operations

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. was formed in a reorganization of First Professionals
Insurance Company, Inc., formerly named Florida Physicians Insurance Company, Inc. (“First
Professionals”), in 1996. Our former insurance management operations, which provided
insurance management services in New York and Pennsylvania, were discontinued in
September 2006 in connection with the sale of these operations to a private investor. Our
former third party administration (“TPA”) operations, which provided administrative and claims
management services to employers, primarily in Florida, were discontinued in 2005. For
additional information on our discontinued operations, see Nofe 17, Discontinued Operations.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “our,” “us,” the “Company,” and
“FPIC™ as used in this report refer to FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

We operate in the medical professional liability (*MPL") insurance sector of the property
and casualty insurance industry as an insurance carrier, which bears underwriting risks. Our
primary insurance products provide protection for physicians, dentists and other healthcare
providers as individual practitioners or as members of practice groups. Our insurance protects
policyholders against losses arising from professional liability claims and the related defense
costs with respect to injuries alleged to have been caused by medical error or malpractice.
Optional coverage is available for professional corporations under which physicians or dentists
practice. Through our insurance subsidiaries, we are the largest provider of MPL insurance in
Florida and the thirteenth largest provider nationally. Based on 2005 premium data published
by A.M. Best Company, Florida, our primary market, is the third largest market for MPL
insurance in the United States. We have chosen to focus on selected markets where we
believe we have advantages in terms of our market knowledge, well-established reputation,
significant market presence, and resources.

Prior to our disposition of our former TPA operations in June 2005 and the disposition of
our former insurance management operations in September 2006, we operated in multiple
segments. Currently, we conduct only insurance operations through the following subsidiaries:

* Anesthesiologists Professional Assurance Company (“APAC"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
FPIC

FPIC Insurance Agency, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC
First Professionals, a wholly owned subsidiary of FPIC
¢ The Tenere Group, Inc. ("Tenere”), a wholly owned subsidiary of First Professionals
e Intermed Insurance Company (“Intermed”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tenere
¢ |Interlex Insurance Company (“Interlex”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed
e Insurance Services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed
s Trout Insurance Services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Intermed

As a holding company, we possess assets that consist primarily of the stock of our
subsidiaries, and of other investments. The sources of liquidity available to us for the payment
of operating expenses, taxes, and debt-related amounts include dividends and management
fees from our insurance subsidiaries, which are based upon agreements in place with First
Professionals and APAC, pursuant to which we provide substantially all management and
administrative services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Risks inherent in our operations include legal/regulatory risk, underwriting risk, and
market risk. These risks are discussed below.

Legal/regulatory risk is the risk that changes in the legal or regulatory environment in
which we operate will change or reduce revenues or create additional costs or expenses not
anticipated in pricing our products. That is, regulatory initiatives designed to reduce our profits
or new legal theories, which may reduce revenues or create costs for us as compared with
those currently reflected in the consolidated financial statements. This risk is concentrated in
Florida and Missouri, where we have written most of the insurance business we have retained
for our own account.

Underwriting risk is the risk that actual ultimate losses are higher than the losses we
have estimated in our decisions regarding pricing and selecting of insured risks. Such criteria
are generally based upon the expected loss experience for particular types, classes, and
geographic locations of the insured risks. Unlike most other industries, we must price and sell
our insurance policies before the actual loss costs associated with those policies are known.
Therefore, to the extent the actual insurance-related results, before consideration of investment
income, fail to correspond with the related pricing and/or selection criteria, an underwriting gain
or loss occurs.

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market and economic
conditions and is directly influenced by the volatility and liquidity in the markets in which the
related underlying assets are traded. We have exposure to two principal types of market risk:
interest rate risk and credit risk. Our market risk sensitive instruments are entered into for
purposes other than trading.

Interest rate risk is the risk that a change in interest rates will cause a
decrease in the value of our investments or other assets whose recoverability
may be sensitive to changes in interest rates. To the extent that liabilities
come due more quickly than assets mature, we would have to sell assets prior
to maturity and recognize a gain or loss.

Credit risk is the risk that issuers of securities owned by us will default,
or other parties, primarily our insureds and reinsurers that owe us money, will
not pay. Financial instruments that potentially expose us to concentrations of
credit risk consist of fixed income investments, premiums receivable, deposits
with reinsurers, and assets carried for reinsurance recoverable related to
unpaid losses and LAE and unearned premiums. Reinsurers that are neither
authorized nor accredited by applicable state insurance departments
(“unauthorized reinsurers”) are required to provide coilateral in the form of an
irrevocabie letter of credit or investment securities held in a trust account to
collateralize their respective balances due to us.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation. Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("GAAP™). These financial statements include the accounts of FPIC and our wholly owned
subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates. In preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to
make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from such
estimates.

Revenue Recognition. Premium income, which is our main source of revenue, is
generally recognized pro-rata over the respective period of each policy. Premium receivables
are recorded net of an estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. Unearned premiums
represent the portion of the premium applicable to the unexpired period of the insurance policy.
In the event it is determined that the unearned premium reserve for a book of business will not
be sufficient to recover the future expected losses and LAE and policy acquisition costs,
including consideration of related investment income, recognition of a premium deficiency would
be required through a write down of deferred policy acquisition costs and corresponding charge
to income. In the event deferred policy acquisition costs are written off entirely, any remaining
premium deficiency would be accounted for as a liability with a corresponding charge to income.

Losses and LAE. Qur liability for losses and LAE (also referred to as our loss and LAE
reserves) is our largest liability and represents the financial statement item most sensitive to
estimation and judgment. MPL insurance is our primary line of business and accounted for
$629.5 million and $644.7 million, or 98% and 97%, of our total consolidated liability for losses
and LAE as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Our loss and LAE reserves represent management’s best estimate of the amounts we
expect to pay out in the future on account of all insured events as of the end of the period. The
liability comprises estimated case reserves on reported claims plus estimates of insured losses
and LAE incurred but not reported (“IBNR”). Also implicit in our loss and LAE reserves is a
provision for case reserve development, which represents an estimate of the aggregate
difference between our individually estimated case reserves and the amount for which they will
ultimately be settled. This provision, which is included in our total IBNR reserves, comprises the
majority of such reserves given our claims-made policy coverage.

For additional disclosures on our reserves, see Note 4, Liability for Losses and LAE.
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Reserve for Extended Reporting Endorsements. A portion of the coverage that
physicians purchase under claims-made policies is for an additional death, disability, and
retirement ("DD&R") insurance benefit. Coverage is provided to the physician for any prior
incidents occurring during the claims-made policy period that are reperted after his or her death,
disability, or retirement. The loss exposure associated with this product is known as extended
reporting endorsement claims. The reserve for extended reporting endorsement claims is
recorded during the term of the original claims-made policy, based on the present value of
future estimated benefits, including assumptions for morbidity, mortality, retirement, interest and
inflation, less the present value of expected future premiums associated with this DD&R
coverage. The reserves for these claims fluctuate based on the number of physicians who are
eligible for this coverage and their age. These liabilities, which possess elements of both loss
reserves and pension liabilities, are carried within unearned premiums. Once an endorsement
is issued because of a triggering event, a liability is established as part of the reserve for losses
and LAE. Any changes in the DD&R reserves are reflected as income or expense in the period
in which we become aware that an adjustment is necessary. At December 31, 2006 and 2005,
our carried DD&R reserves, which include assumed reserves pursuant to a reinsurance
agreement established in the year 2000, were $81.0 million and $72.9 million, respectively,
which include a discount of 5% related to the present value calculation of approximately $31.4
million and $29.4 million, respectively. Effective January 1, 2007, we commuted our assumed
DD&R reserves. For additional information, see ftem 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, Note 19, Subsequent Events.

Investments. All of our investments in fixed income securities are classified as available-
for-sale and reported at their estimated fair values, based on quoted market prices, in the
consolidated statements of financial position, with the change in fair values during the period
excluded from earnings and recorded, net of tax, as a component of other comprehensive
income. Short-term investments, which have a maturity of one year or less at acquisition, were
$29.8 million and $46.6 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and are reported at fair
value. Other invested assets include real estate investments, which consist of a building, a
condominium unit and developed land. These investments are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the property
{exclusive of land, which is non-depreciable), using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful life of our building is 39 years. Rental income and expenses are included in net
investment income. Other invested assets also include certain investments in non-public
entities, which are reported at their estimated fair values.

Income on investments includes the amortization of premium and accretion of discount
for debt securities acquired at other than par value. Realized investment gains and losses are
determined on the basis of specific identification.

GAAP requires that the book value of investments be written down to fair value when
declines in value are considered other-than-temporary. When such impairments occur, the
decrease in value is reported in net income as a realized investment loss and a new cost basis
is established. We evaluate our investment portfolio on a quarterly basis to identify securities
that may be other-than-temporarily impaired. Our analysis takes into account relevant factors,
both quantitative and qualitative in nature.
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Among the factors we consider are the following:

¢ The length of time and the extent to which fair value has been less than cost;

s |[ssuer-specific considerations, including an issuer's short-term prospects and
financial condition, recent news that may have an adverse impact on its results, and
an event of missed or late payment or default;

¢ The occurrence of a significant economic event that may affect the industry in which
an issuer participates; and

¢ Qurintent and ability to hold the investment for a sufficient period to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value.

With respect to securities where the decline in value is determined to be temporary and
the security's value is not written down, a subsequent decision may be made to sell that security
and realize a loss. If we do not expect for a security’s decline in fair value to be fully recovered
prior to the expected time of sale, we would record an other-than-temporary impairment in the
period in which the decision to sell is made.

See Note 6, Investments for additional disclosures concerning investments.

Reinsurance. Net premiums written, net premiums earned, losses and LAE, and
underwriting expenses are reported in the consolidated statements of income net of the
amounts for reinsurance ceded to other companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
including those related to the portions of the liability for losses and LAE and unearned premiums
ceded to them are reported as assets in the consolidated statements of financial position.
Reinsurance recoverables related to unpaid losses and LAE are estimated in a manner
consistent with the terms of each respective reinsurance agreement. Reinsurance assumed
from other companies including assumed premiums written and earned, losses and LAE and
underwriting expenses, principally ceding commissions, are accounted for in the same manner
as direct insurance written.

Reinsurance does not relieve us from our primary obligations to policyholders.
Therefore, the failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to us. We
evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers and monitor concentrations of credit risk with
respect to the individual reinsurers that participate in our ceded programs to minimize our
exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. We hold collateral in the form of
letters of credit or trust accounts for amounts recoverable from reinsurers that are not
designated as authorized reinsurers by the applicable departments of insurance of the states
that have jurisdiction over the underlying business.

Income Taxes. We operate in income tax-paying jurisdictions and provide for income
taxes in accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standard (“FAS") 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are estimated and recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. We determine deferred tax assets and liabilities
separately for each tax-paying component (an individual entity or group of entities that is
consolidated for tax purposes) in each tax jurisdiction.
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A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is estimated and recorded if it is more
likely than not that all or some portion of the benefits related to the deferred tax assets will not
be realized. Valuation allowances are based on estimates of taxable income and the period
over which deferred tax assets will be recoverable. We believe it is more likely than not that our
deferred tax assets will be fully realized. In the event that actual results differ from our
estimates or those estimates are adjusted in future periods, we may need to establish a
valuation allowance, which would impact our financial position and results of operations.

Share-Based Payments. In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") issued FAS 123(R), Share-Based Payment, which is a revision of FAS 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board
(“APB"} Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and its related
implementation guidance. On January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of FAS 123(R) using
the modified prospective method. Prior period financial statements have not been restated to
reflect fair value share-based compensation expense. FAS 123(R) focuses primarily on
accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based
payment transactions and requires entities to recognize compensation expense for awards of
equity instruments to employees based on the grant-date fair value of those awards (with limited
exceptions). FAS 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized
compensation expense to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating
cash flow as prescribed under the prior accounting rules. This requirement reduces net
operating cash flows and increases net financing cash flows in periods after adoption. Total
cash flow remains unchanged from what would have been reported under prior accounting
rules. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded additional financing cash flows
of $2.9 million as the result of adopting FAS 123(R). In determining the pool of windfall tax
benefits for purposes of calculating assumed proceeds under the treasury stock method, we
exclude the impact of pro forma deferred tax assets. We elected to use the short-cut method in
determining our pool of windfall tax benefits upon adoption of FAS 123(R).

Prior to the adoption of FAS 123(R), we followed the intrinsic value method in
accordance with APB 25 to account for our employee stock options. Accordingly, no
compensation expense was recognized in connection with the issuance of stock options under
our share-based compensation plans. Compensation expense was however, recognized in
connection with the issuance of restricted stock.
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Beginning January 1, 2006, we recognized share-based compensation expense for (i) all
share-based payments granted prior to, but not vested as of, January 1, 2006, based on the
grant date fair value originally estimated in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123 and (ii)
all share-based payments granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the grant date
fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123(R). We recognize share-
based compensation expense under FAS 123(R) ratably using the straight-line attribution
method over the expected vesting period. In addition, pursuant to FAS 123(R), we are required
to estimate the amount of expected forfeitures when calculating share-based compensation
costs, instead of accounting for forfeitures as incurred, which was allowed under previous
guidance. As of January 1, 20086, the cumulative effect of adopting the estimated forfeiture
method was not significant as the amount related solely to our January 2005 restricted stock
awards and our financial statements already reflected an appropriate adjustment to
compensation expense for forfeitures. It is our policy to issue shares when options are
exercised. We may repurchase shares of our common stock to offset the dilutive effect of
shares issued under our stock incentive plans.

The following table shows comparative net income had share-based compensation
expense been recognized in our financial statements under previous accounting guidance.

(in thousands, except earnings per common share) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Reported net income $ 51,588 35,022 28,181

Share-based compensation expense determined
under the fair value based method, net of income

taxes — (1,166) (1,231)
Comparative net income $ 51,588 33,856 26,950

Basic earnings per common share as reported $ 5.02 3.43 2.83

Basic earnings per common share comparative $ 5.02 3.32 2.71

Basic weighted-average common shares

outstanding 10,284 10,220 9,973

Diluted earnings per common share as reported $ 4.83 3.26 2.70

Diluted earnings per common share comparative $ 4.83 3.15 2.58

Diluted weighted-average common shares

outstanding 10,671 10,740 10,420

See Note 9, Share-Based Compensation Plans, for additional information.
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Pension Benefits. In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS 158, Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). In accordance with FAS 158, we recognized a
liability for the under-funded status of our defined benefit plans for the difference between the
plans’ projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. We also recorded ali
unrecognized prior service costs and credits, unrecognized actual gains and losses and any
unrecognized transition obligations or assets in accumulated other comprehensive income.
Such amounts are reclassified into earnings as components of net periodic benefit cost
pursuant to the current recognition and amortization provisions of FAS 106, Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions. FAS 158 requires us to measure
plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of our statement of financial position. As
allowed by the standard, we will adopt the measurement date requirement in fiscal year 2008.
We currently use a measurement date of October 1 for our pension plans. The impact of
adopting the measurement date requirement is not expected to be significant. The incremental
effect of applying FAS 158 on individual line items in the consolidated statement of financial
position is presented in the table below.

{in thousands)

Additional
Minimum
Before Liability Adjustments After
Application of {"AML"™) Post AML to adopt FAS Application

As of December 31, 2006 FAS 158 Adjustment Adjustment 158 of FAS 158
Other assets 3 10,825 {120} 10,635 21) 10,614
Deferred income taxes $ 35,908 — 35,908 734 36,642
Total assets $ 1,218,536 (190) 1,218,346 713 1,219,059
Other liabilities $ 37,244 (190) 37,054 1,882 38,936
Total liabilities $ 932113 (190) 931,923 1,882 933,805
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 3 (4.808) — (4,808) (1,169) (5.977)
Total shareholders' equity 3 286,423 — 286,423 (1,169) 285,254

For additional disclosures on our pension plans, see Note 13, Employee Benefit Plans.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. We have made acquisitions in the past that have
included goodwill. In accordance with FAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we make
an annual assessment by reporting unit as to whether the value of our goodwill is impaired. We
completed such assessments in 2006, 2005, and 2004 and concluded that the value of our
goodwill assets was not impaired. We use both a market-based valuation analysis and a
discounted cash flow analysis to estimate the fair value of each reporting unit. Changes to our
assumptions could significantly lower our estimates of fair value and result in a determination
that goodwill has suffered impairment in value. During 2006, we sold our insurance
management operations, which included $8.0 million in goodwill, to a private investor.

As of December 31, 2005, we recognized an impairment charge of $0.4 million related to
one of our intangible assets, which we believed did not have a remaining useful life. This
impairment charge was incurred within our insurance operations and is reported in other
expenses in the consolidated financial statements. After the recognition of the impairment
charge, there were no remaining intangible assets recorded in our consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2005.
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Derivative Financial Instruments. We account for our derivatives in accordance with
FAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended by FAS
138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities and FAS 149,
Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. We use
derivative financial instruments as cash flow hedges to manage market risks related to the
effects of changes in interest rates on our floating rate long-term debt. The cost of these
contracts is being amortized over their respective maturities. In addition, the remaining
balances are adjusted and carried at their estimated fair values, with the changes therein
reported as unrealized gains or losses in other comprehensive income. The differential, if any,
to be paid or received as interest rates change is accrued and recognized as an adjustment to
interest expense related to the hedged item. The related amount payable to or receivable from
the counterparties is included as adjustments to accrued interest. See Note 11, Derivative
Financial Instruments, for additional information on our derivatives.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs and Deferred Ceding Commissions. Deferred policy
acquisition costs consist primarily of commissions and premium taxes, which vary with and are
directly related to the production of new and renewal insurance business. Such acquisition
costs are deferred and amortized over the period in which the related premium is earned and
reviewed to determine if they are recoverable from future income, including investment income.
If such costs are estimated to be unrecoverable, they are expensed.

We previously had deferred ceding commissions under the Hannover Re net account
quota share reinsurance agreement, which were deferred and earned over the period in which
the related ceded premium was earned by the reinsuring company. We terminated cessions
under the agreement effective June 30, 2004 and then commuted the agreement effective
December 31, 2006. As a result of the termination of cessions under the agreement, there were
no deferred ceding commissions reported in our consolidated statements of financial position as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005. The amortization of the deferred ceding commissions, which
was recorded as a reduction to other underwriting expenses, was $0.8 million and $11.7 million
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include all demand deposits,
overnight investments and other liquid instruments with an original maturity of three months or
less when acquired.

Per Common Share Data. Basic earnings per common share are calculated by dividing
net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per common share are calculated using the weighted average combination of
dilutive common share equivalents and common shares outstanding during the period.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts for 2005 and 2004 have been reclassified to conform
to the 2006 presentation.
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New Accounting Pronouncements.

In July 20086, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"), which clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position
taken in a tax return. We must determine if it is “more-likety-than-not” that a tax position will be
sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes,
based on the technical merits of the position. Once it is determined that a position meets the
“more-likely-than-not” recognition threshold, the position is measured to determine the amount
of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective as of
the beginning of our 2007 fiscal year, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting
principle recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. The adoption of FIN 48 is not
expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In September 20086, the FASB issued FAS 157, Fair Value Measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. FAS 157 is applicable to all other
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements and therefore does
not require any new fair value measurements. The standard is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those
years. The adoption of FAS 157 is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC") issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”} 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements, to address diversity in
quantifying financial statement misstatements. SAB 108 requires that we quantify
misstatements based on their impact on each of our financial statements. SAB 108 is effective
for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2008, and early application is encouraged. The
adoption of SAB 108 did not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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3. Reconciliation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
The table below presents data with respect to our basic and diluted earnings per

common share,

{in thousands, except earnings per common share)

Form 10-K: F-20

For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Net Income:
Income from continuing operations $ 32,939 25,482 17,855
Discontinued operations 18,649 9,540 10,326
Net income $ 51,588 35,022 28,181
Basic Earnings per Common Share:
Income from continuing operations $ 3.20 2.50 1.79
Discontinued operations 1.82 0.93 1.04
Net income $ 5.02 343 2.83
Diluted Earnings per Common Share:
Income from continuing operations $ 3.09 2.37 1.71
Discontinued operations 1.74 0.89 0.99
Net income $ 4.83 3.26 270
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 10,284 10,220 9,973
Common stock equivalents 387 520 447
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 10,671 10,740 10,420
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4.

Liability for Losses and LAE
The following table rolls forward our consolidated liability for losses and LAE, net of

reinsurance.

(in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Gross balance, January 1 $ 663,466 635,118 574 529
Less reinsurance recoverables 303,847 333,419 275,766
Net balance, January 1 359,619 301,699 298,763
Incurred Related To:
Current year 156,711 166,687 124,699
Prior years (5,063) (30) 473
Total incurred 151,648 166,657 125,172
Paid Related To:
Current year 10,166 21,023 16,517
Prior years 103,430 97,894 105,719
Total paid 113,596 118,917 122,236
Commutation ' @ ©) 86,416 10,180 —
Net balance, December 31 484,087 359,619 301,699
Plus reinsurance recoverables 158,868 303,847 333,419
Gross balance, December 31 $ 642955 663,466 635,118

(1)

(2)

3)

Effective December 31, 20086, First Professionals commuted its net account quota
share reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re. Under the terms of the
commutation agreement, First Professionals assumed loss and LAE reserves
previously ceded of approximately $84.0 million and in exchange Hannover Re
released to First Professicnals the funds withheld under the agreement of $84.0
million. No gain or loss was recognized on the transaction.

During November 2008, First Professionals entered into an agreement with CX Re to
commute its ceded reinsurance agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, First
Professionals assumed loss and LAE reserves previously ceded of approximately
$2.4 million and received a comparable amount of assets in the form of cash and
investments, resuiting in no material gain or loss on the transaction.

During May 2005, First Professionais and APAC entered into agreements to
commute their 256% quota share reinsurance ceded to American Professional
Assurance, Ltd. (“APAL"). Under the terms of the agreement, First Professionals and
APAC assumed loss and LAE reserves previously ceded of approximately $10.2
million and received a comparable amount of assets in the form of cash and
investments, resulting in no material gain or loss on the transaction.




FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. Form 10-K. F-22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Losses and LAE related to the current year decreased approximately 6% for the year
ended December 31, 2006 compared to 2005. Our net premiums earned remained nearly
unchanged for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 2005. Our loss ratio (defined
as the ratio of net losses and LAE to net premiums earned) related to the current year
decreased to 69% for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 74% for the same period
in 2005. Our decline in losses and LAE for the current year reflects favorable claims trends,
including a significant reduction in newly reported claims and incidents.

Losses and LAE for claims related to prior years represent the total net change in
estimates charged or credited to earnings in the current year with respect to liabilities
established in prior years. Information regarding losses and LAE is accumulated over time and
the estimates of the liability are revised accordingly, with the change recognized in the period
revisions are made. As noted in the table above, our loss and LAE reserve estimates for prior
years decreased approximately $5.1 million. The favorable prior year loss development reflects
a decline in expected ultimate losses for years prior to 2006, primarily the 2004 and 2005
accident years, as a result of improved claim trends including lower frequency, a lower number
of claims closed with indemnity payment and stable severity.

While we believe that our estimates for ultimate projected losses and LAE in total are
reasonable, there can be no assurance that our estimates will not change in the future given the
many variables inherent in such estimates and the extended period of time that it can take for
claim patterns to emerge.

Actuarial techniques and primary factors that impact our reserve estimates

We establish loss and LAE reserves taking into account the results of multiple actuarial
techniques applied as well as other assumptions and factors regarding our business. The
actuarial techniques we use that are material to our evaluation of loss and LAE reserves include
the following:

Loss Development Methods (Incurred and Paid Development),
Berquist-Sherman Case Reserve Adjustment Method;

Frequency/Severity Methods;

Allocated Loss Adjustment Expense Development Methods (Incurred and Paid
Development};

Bornhuetter-Ferguson Expected Loss Projection Methods; and

* Backward Recursive Method

Each technigque has inherent benefits and shortcomings (i.e., biases), particularly when
applied to company-specific characteristics and trends. For example, certain methods (e.g., the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods) are more relevant to immature accident years and other
methods (e.g., the loss development methods) provide more meaningful information for years
with a greater level of maturity. Because each method has its own set of attributes, we do not
rely exclusively upon a single method. Rather, we evaluate each of the methods for the
different perspectives that they provide. Each method is applied in a consistent manner from
period to period and the methods encompass a review of selected claims data, including claim
and incident counts, average indemnity payments, and loss adjustment costs.




O

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. Form 10-K: F-23
Notes to the Consolfdated Financial Statements

Using internal actuarial staff, we analyze and develop projections of ultimate losses that
are used to establish our carried reserves. In performing our review, we separate reserves by
line of business, coverage type, layer of coverage, geography, and accident year. By doing so,
we are able to evaluate the unique patterns of development and trends for each line of
business. We then select a point estimate for each line with due regard for the age,
characteristics and volatility of the portion of the business, the volume of data available for
review and past experience with respect to the accuracy of estimates for business of a similar
type. This series of selected point estimates, along with other relevant quantitative and
qualitative information, is then evaluated to produce an overall best estimate of our total liability
for losses and LAE.

We also utilize and evaluate calculations contained in an actuarial study performed by
an independent actuarial firm as an objective confirmation of the adequacy of our carried
reserves. Our best estimate may differ from the selected reserve estimate of our independent
actuary because of differences in evaluating such things as the impact of historical experience,
legal and regulatory changes, expectations about future claim results and trends and certain
other factors as discussed below. While our assessment may differ, our carried reserves
remain within a reasonable actuarial range of the independent actuary’s selected reserve
estimate. A typical range of reasonable values for MPL reserve estimates is considered as wide
as 15%; thus, in addition to the performance of the business itself, our results of operations and
financial position are very sensitive to our reserve estimates and judgments.

The range developed for our loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance, at December
31, 2006 was $429.0 million to $498.6 million. The independent review of our reserves plays an
important role in our overall assessment of the adequacy of our reserves. The reserve opinions
of our independent actuary for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 have been filed
with state insurance regulators along with the statutory financial statements of our insurance
companies. The primary factors affecting our estimates of how much we will pay and therefore
our reserve for insurance claims, defense, and other related costs are:

¢ Frequency and severity trends (numbers of claims and how much we will pay for
each claim on average);

e The timing or pattern of future payments;

¢ The amount of defense costs we will pay for each claim or group of claims;

¢ Frequency of claims closed with indemnity payments (the percentage of claims
received that ultimately result in a loss payment versus those that are settled and
closed without a loss payment); and

» Inflationary trends that are expected to bear on future loss and LAE payments.
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These factors, in turn, can be affected by external events, including the judicial
environment and tort-related trends over time. For example, the removal or significant
weakening of one or more of the tort reforms passed in our largest market, Florida, could result
in an unexpected increase in claim frequency and/or severity. In addition, these factors may
also be impacted by internal events, such as changes in our business mix or claims handling
philosophy. Determining whether such events are reasonably likely to occur and attempting to
quantify the impact of an individual event are inherently difficult. We utilize our experience and
judgment and consider these factors as well as historical experience and the results of applied
actuarial techniques when evaluating the adequacy of carried loss and LAE reserves. All of the
above-mentioned factors individually can and will generally vary from one period to the next
over time but are estimated to approximate their ultimate values in setting reserve estimates.

In considering the potential sensitivity of the factors and assumptions underlying
management’s best estimate of loss and LAE reserves, it is also important to understand that
the medical professional liability sector of the property casuaity insurance industry is
characterized by a relatively small number of ctaims with a large average cost per claim. For
instance,

¢ In 2006, we ended the year with 13,402 professional liability policyholders and paid a
total of $53.0 million in loss payments (indemnity only) on 322 claims.

e In 2005, we ended the year with 14,055 professional liability policyholders and paid a
total of $60.8 million in loss payments (indemnity only) on 391 claims.

Given the magnitude of our reserves and these characteristics, even a relatively small
change in the number of claims we expect to pay (i.e., frequency) or a relatively small
percentage change in the average cost per claim (i.e., severity) could have a significant impact
on our reserves and, correspondingly, our financial position and results of operations. This is
the case for other key assumptions as well, such as the frequency of reported claims and
incidents that will ultimately close with an indemnity payment versus those that will close without
an indemnity payment. in addition, due to the relatively small number of claims ultimately
resulting in an indemnity payment and the average cost per claim, any change in the trends
assumed in the ultimate values for these factors could result in a significant change in our
reserve estimates. Because our aggregate loss and LAE reserves are so large, this also means
that virtually any change in the level of our carried reserves will be material to results of
operations and may be material to our financial position.
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5. Reinsurance
The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned and losses and LAE is
presented in the table below.

(in thousands) For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned

Direct and assumed $ 251424 258,420 280,022 277,335 312,728 313,160
Ceded {29,001) (31,455) (37,208) (51,293) (120,196) (163,484)
Net $ 222423 226,965 251,814 226,042 192,532 149,676
(in thousands) For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Losses and LAE $ 171,739 233,246 261,413
Reinsurance recoveries {20,091) (66,589) (136,241)
Net losses and LAE $ 151,648 166,657 125,172

We purchase reinsurance from a number of companies to mitigate concentrations of
credit risk. Our reinsurance broker assists us in the analysis of the credit quality of our
reinsurers. We base our reinsurance buying decisions on an evaluation of the then current
financial strength and stability of prospective reinsurers. However, the financial strength of our
reinsurers, and their corresponding ability to pay us, may change in the future due to forces or
events we cannot control or anticipate. At December 31, 2006 our receivable from reinsurers
was approximately $176.9 million. We have not experienced any difficulty in collecting amounts
due from reinsurers related to the financial condition of the reinsurer. Should future events lead
us to believe that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations, adjustments to the amounts
recoverable would be reflected in the results of current operations.

The table below displays certain aspects of the coverage provided by our excess of loss
reinsurance program:

Treaty Year: 2004 20056 20086 2007

Coverage A Losses * of $2.5 Losses * of $2.5 Losses * of $2.5 Losses * of $4.5
million in excess million in excess rmillion in excess million in excess
of $0.5 million of $0.5 million of $0.5 million of $0.5 million

Coverage B Losses * of $4.0 Losses * of $4.0 Losses * of $4.0 Losses " of $4.0

{(applies to million in excess million in excess million in excess million in excess

policies with limits  of $1.0 million of $1.0 million of $1.0 million of $1.0 million

in excess of $1.0

million)

Loss Corridor None FPIC retains None None

ceded losses
between 80% and
110% of ceded
premiums

* Losses include 90% of extra-contractual obligations and losses in excess of policy limits
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The table below identifies our reinsurers from which our recoverables (net of amounts

due to the reinsurer) are $5.0 million or more.

Amount Recoverable as
AM. Best Rating as of December 31, 2006 (in

Amount Recoverable as
of December 31, 2005

Reinsurer of December 31, 2008 thousands) (in thousands)

Physicians' Reciprocal Insurers Not Rated * $ 36,023 65,346
Hannover Ruckversicherungs A 32,706 37,622
Lloyd's Syndicate A 22,761 33,720
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company At 20,925 19,352
Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S. A¥ 13,409 11,732
Berkley Insurance Company A 7,238 6,528
Aspen Insurance Not Rated * 5,113 3,686
Other reinsurers 38,681 49,832
Total $ 176,856 227,918

-

recoverable from reinsurers not rated or authorized.

We hold collateral in the form of letters of credit or trust accounts for amounts

APAL Commutation. During May 2005, First Professionals and APAC entered into

agreements to commute their 25% quota share ceded reinsurance with APAL. Under the terms
of the agreements, the two companies assumed loss and LAE reserves previously ceded under
the contracts of approximately $10.2 million and received a comparable amount of assets in the
form of cash and investments, resulting in no material gain or loss on the transaction.

Hannover Re Net Account Quota Share Reinsurance. We terminated future cessions
under the Hannover Re net account quota share reinsurance agreement effective June 30,
2004. Effective December 31, 2006, First Professionals commuted the agreement with
Hannover Re. Under the terms of the agreement, First Professionals assumed loss and LAE
reserves previously ceded of approximately $84.0 million and in exchange Hannover Re
released to First Professionals the funds withheld under the agreement of $84.0 million. No
gain or loss was recognized on the transaction. Amounts ceded under the Hannover Re net
account quota share reinsurance agreement are summarized in the table below.
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{in thousands) For the year ended December 31,

Percentage Percentage
2006 Change 2005 Change 2004

Ceded premiums written $ — -100% 660 101% (50,357)
Ceded premiums earned $ — 100%  (8,373) 89%  (75,675)
Ceded losses and LAE incurred —_ -100% 5814 -90% 57,538
Ceded other underwriting expenses (153) -105% 2,922 -87% 22,710
Net (decrease) increase in underwriting
margin (153) -142% 363 -92% 4,573
Other expenses (5,221) 21% (6.643) 7% (7.152)
Net decrease in income from continuing
operations before income taxes (5,374) 14% (6,280) -144% (2,579)
Net decrease in net income $ (3,301) 14% (3,858) -144% (1.582)

6. Investments
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed income securities, available for sale,
and short-term investments were as follows:

(in thousands) As of December 31, 2006
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

States, municipalities and political
subdivisions $ 365214 1,086 3,918 362,382
Corporate securities 146,251 649 2,359 144,541
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities 138,233 289 2,091 136,431
U.S. Government agencies and authorities 78,100 255 1,000 77,355
Total fixed income securities, available for
sale, and short-term investments $ 727,798 2,279 9,368 720,709
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(in thousands)

As of December 31, 2005
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Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions $ 348,062 1,508 4,151 343,419
Corporate securities 176,593 456 2,592 174,457
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities 81,803 48 1,874 79,977
U.S. Government agencies and authorities 67,189 401 1,119 66,471
Total fixed income securities, available for
sale, and short-term investments $ 671,647 2,413 9,736 664,324

The following tables summarize, for all fixed income securities, available for sale, and
short-term investments in an unrealized loss position, the aggregate fair value and gross
unrealized loss by length of time the securities have continuously been in an unrealized loss

position.

(in thousands)

As of December 31, 2006

Total Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions $ 271,433 3,918 55,932 159 215,501 3,759
Corporate securities 100,388 2,359 18,304 128 82,084 2,231
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities 109,298 2,091 48,830 250 60,468 1,841
U.S. Government agencies and authorities 40,381 1,000 7,861 66 32,520 934
Total fixed income securities, available for
sale, and short-term investments $ 521,500 9,368 130,927 603 390,573 8,765
(in thousands) As of December 31, 2005
Total Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions $ 260,148 4,181 180,985 1,850 79,161 2,301
Corporate securities 155,698 2592 100,020 899 55678 1,693
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities 74,454 1,874 47,632 1,112 26,822 762
U.S. Government agencies and authorities 50,110 1,119 24,641 443 25,469 676
Total fixed income securities, available for
sale, and short-term investments $ 540,408 9,736 353,278 4,304 187,130 5,432

The unrealized losses at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were primarily attributable to the
impact of increases in interest rates on our fixed income securities and short-term investments.
We have the intent and ability to hold these securities to recover their value, which may be until
their respective maturity dates. Therefore, we do not consider any of the securities carried in an
unrealized loss position to be other-than-temporarily impaired. During the fourth quarter of
2005, we did recognize an other-than-temporary impairment charge related to certain of our
corporate securities, which reduced the cost basis of those securities and reclassified the
unrealized loss from accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income to net realized investment
losses. No investment impairments were recorded during 2006.
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‘ Realized investment gains (losses) and net investment income are summarized below:

{in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Fixed income securities, available for sale,
and short-term investments:

Gross realized gains $ 393 1,177 6,042
Gross realized losses (372) (1,459) (3,522)
Other-than-temporary impairments _ (698) —

Gross realized gains 59 — 2,134
Gross realized losses — — —

Other-than-temporary impairments — — {(787)
Net realized investment gains (losses) 3 80 (980) 3,867

(in thousands)
For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Fixed income securities, available for sale $ 24,206 22,350 21,099
Short-term investments 1,618 929 —_

Other invested assets 1,641 797 533
Cash and cash equivalents 6,851 2,778 717
Total investment income 34,316 26,854 22,349
Less: Investment expense (2,074) (1,849) (1,722)
Net investment income $ 32,242 25,005 20,627

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed income securities, available for sale,
and short-term investments by contractual maturity are shown below. Expected maturities will
differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay these
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

(in thousands) As of December 31, 2006
Amortized Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or less $ 57,380 57,265
Due after one year through five years 341,482 337,973
Due after five years through ten years 148,100 146,520
Due after ten years 42,603 42,520
589,565 584,278
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 138,233 136,431

Total fixed income securities, available for sale,
and short-term investments $ 727,798 720,709

|
|
|
|
Other invested assets:
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, investments in securities and cash with an
amortized cost of $16.1 million and $15.8 million, respectively and a fair value of $16.1 million
and $16.4 million, respectively, were on deposit with the insurance departments in various
states as required by law.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, investment securities and cash with an amortized
cost of $127.3 million and $186.0 million, respectively, and a fair value of $126.3 million and
$185.4 million, respectively, were held in trust accounts as collateral for reinsurance assumed
as required by law in certain states in which we assume insurance business. During February
2007, First Professionals entered into an agreement with Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers (“"PRI”}
to commute, effective January 1, 2007, all assumed reinsurance treaties with PRI where First
Professionals acted as a reinsurer. These treaties covered excess of loss reinsurance and
reinsurance for PRI's death, disability and retirement risks. As a result of the commutation,
investment securities and cash with an amortized cost of $120.7 million and a fair value of
$119.8 million as of December 31, 2006 were released from the trust accounts. For additional
information on the commutation, see Note 19, Subsequent Events.

7. Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The components of other comprehensive income (loss}, along with their allocated tax
effects, are presented in the tables below.

{in thousands) For the year ended December 31, 2006
Tax
Before- Tax (Expense) or Net-of-Tax
Amount Benefit Amount

Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments
Unrealized holding gains (losses} arising during period $ 17 (M 10
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized in
net income — — —
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial
instruments 17 (N 10
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities
Unrealized holding gains {losses) arising during period 315 (121) 194
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains {losses) realized in
net income 80 {31) 49
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 235 (90) 145

Unrealized gains (losses) on other invested assets

Unrealized holding gains {losses) arising during period (1,191) 459 (732)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized in

net income —_ —_ —
Net unrealized gains (losses} on other invested assets (1,191) 459 {732)

Other comprehensive loss $ (939) 362 {577)
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(inn thousands) For the year ended December 31, 2005
Tax
Before- Tax (Expense)or Net-of-Tax
Amount Benefit Amount
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financiat instruments
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period $ 56 (22) Y
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized in
. net income — — —
. Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial
, instruments 56 (22) 34
: Unrealized gains {losses) on available-for-sale securities
| Unrealized hotding gains (losses) arising during period (12,635) 4,874 (7.761)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized in
net income (980) 378 {602)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities (11,855) 4,496 (7,159)

Unrealized gains (losses) on other invested assels

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period 228 (88) 140
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized in
net income — — —
Net unrealized gains (losses) on other invested assets 228 (88) 140
Minimum pension liability 431 (39) 392
Other comprehensive loss $ (10,940) 4,347 {6,593)
(in thousands} For the year ended December 31, 2004
Tax
Before- Tax (Expense)or  Net-of-Tax
Amaount Benefit Arnount

Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period $ (586) 226 (360)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized in
net income — — —
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial
instruments {586) 226 {360)
Unrealized gains {losses) on available-for-sale securities
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period 271 {(139) 132
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized in
net income 2,520 (972) 1,548
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities (2,249) 833 {(1,416)

Unrealized gains (losses) on cther invested assets

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period 187 (73) 114
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized in

net income — —_ —
Net unrealized gains (losses) on other invested assets 187 (73) 114
Minimum pension liability (203) (49) (252)

Other comprehensive loss $ (2,851} 37 (1,914}
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Changes, net of tax, in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are presented
in the table below:

{in thousands}

Net Net Net
Unrealized  Unrealized Unrealized Cumulative
Gains Gains Gains Adjustment
(Losses)on {Losses)on (Losses)on to Initially Accumulated
Derivative Availabie- Other Minimum Apply FAS Other
Financial For-Sale Invested Pension 158, Net of Comprehensive
Instruments  Securities Assets Liability tax (Loss) Income
Balance, December 31, 2003 $ (60) 4,026 450 (140) — 4,276
Period Change (360) {1,416) 114 (252) — {1,914)
Balance, December 31, 2004 (420) 2610 564 {392) — 2,362
Period Change 34 (7,093} 74 392 — {6,593)
Balance, December 31, 2005 (386) {4,483} 638 — — {4,231)
Period Change 10 39 (626) — {1,169) {1,746)
Balance, December 31, 2006 $ (376) (4,444) 12 — {1,169) {5,977)

8. Income Taxes
Our provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

{in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Current expense:

Federal $ 17,206 11,256 8,482

State 2,451 1,383 2,012

Total 19,657 12,639 10,494

Deferred (benefit} expense:

Federal (5,170)  (2.481)  (1,142)
State (305) 229 {96}
Total (5475)  (2,252) _ (1,238)
Total income tax expense $ 14,182 10,387 9,256

The tax benefit related to employee stock options, which is treated differently for book
and tax purposes, has been recorded directly to shareholders’ equity as an addition to additional
paid-in capital. The tax benefit for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
$2.8 million, $1.3 million, and $1.0 million, respectively.
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The provision for income taxes differs from the statutory corporate tax rate of 35% as
follows:

(in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Computed "expected” tax expense $ 16,492 12,554 9,489
Tax-exempt interest (3,477) (3,100) (2,206)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 1,395 1,049 1,246
Prior year adjustments based upon Internal

Revenue Service examination —_ — 750
Other, net (228) (116) {23)
Actual income tax expense $ 14,182 10,387 8,256

The significant components of the net deferred tax asset were as follows:

{in thousands) As of December 31,
2006 2005

Deferred tax assets arising from:

Loss reserve discounting $ 20,613 16,724
Goodwill and intangible assets 349 453
Unearned premiums 10,823 12,131
Net operating loss carry forwards 1,305 1,628
Benefit plans 2,461 1,209
Guarantee fund assessment 1,805 —_
Unrealized losses on securities 2,621 2,330
Other 2,383 1,839
Total deferred tax assets 42,360 36,314

Deferred tax liabilities arising from:

Deferred policy acquisition costs 5,469 5,597
Other 249 889
Total deferred tax liabilities 5718 6,486
Net deferred tax asset $ 36,642 29,828

Net deferred tax assets and federal income tax expense in future years can be
significantly affected by changes in enacted tax rates or by unexpected adverse events that
would influence management’s conclusions as to the ultimate realizability of deferred tax assets.
In our opinion, it is more likely than not that we will realize the benefit of the deferred tax assets
and therefore, no valuation allowance has been established.

We have remaining net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $3.1 million as of
December 31, 2006 that may be used to offset taxable income in future years subject to an
annual limitation imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. These net operating loss carry
forwards expire in the years 2018 and 2019.
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During 2005, we reached a settlement with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) with
regard to the examination of our income tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2000
and 2001. The settlement was approved by the Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation
during the first quarter of 2006. We had previously accrued for income tax liabilities related to
the examination, and consequently there was no income tax impact to our consolidated financial
statements because of the settlement. During 2006, the IRS commenced an examination of our
2004 tax return. The examination was closed in February 2007 with no significant adjustments.
Our income tax returns for 2003 and 2005 have not been examined by the IRS and remain open
under the applicable statute of limitations.

9. Share-Based Compensation Plans

We maintain three share-based compensation plans: (i) a plan for officers and key
employees (the “Omnibus Plan™); (ii) a plan for non-employee directors (the “Director Plan”); and
(i) an employee stock purchase plan (the “ESPP”).

The Omnibus Plan:

Under the Omnibus Plan, we may issue stock options (both non-qualified stock options
and incentive stock options), contingent stock, and restricted stock and stock appreciation rights
upon approval by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Previous awards
made under the Omnibus Plan have consisted only of stock options and restricted stock. The
exercise price of a stock option may generally not be less than 100% of the fair market value of
the underlying shares on the date of grant. Restricted stock becomes unrestricted as the
awards vest. Awards made under the Omnibus Plan generally vest over a three-year period,
which represents the requisite service period for such awards. Under the plan, individuals who
receive a restricted stock award are permitted to redeem an adequate number of shares from
such award upon vesting to satisfy any tax withholding liability. Awards are generally made
annually.

The Director Plan:

Under the Director Plan, we may issue non-qualified stock options, contingent stock,
restricted stock, and stock appreciation rights upon approval by the Board of Directors. Stock
option grants made under the Director Plan are at a price not less than 100% of the fair market
value of the underlying stock on the grant date. Shares of restricted stock become unrestricted
as the awards vest.

The Board of Directors has authorized annual awards pursuant to the Director Plan to
each non-employee member of the Board of Directors, as of the date of the annual
shareholders meeting, of 1,000 shares of restricted stock, which will fully vest on the first
anniversary of the date of grant, which represents the requisite service period for such awards.
in June 2005 and 2008, awards of 1,000 shares of restricted stock were also made to each non-
employee director of our First Professionals subsidiary who was not a member of our Board of
Directors.

The Board of Directors has also authorized awards pursuant to the Director Plan to new
non-employee directors, upon their initial election, of 1,000 shares of restricted stock, which wil
fully vest on the first anniversary of the date of grant, which represents the requisite service
period for such awards.
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The ESPP:

We offer the ESPP to eligible employees, including executive officers. Under the terms
of the ESPP, employees are allowed to purchase FPIC’s common stock at 85% of the market
value on the first or last day of the offering period, whichever is lower. FPIC common stock

issued in connection with the ESPP for the plan year ended December 31, 2006 totaled 4,565
shares.

The following table presents the number of shares authorized for future awards in
connection with our share-based compensation plans.

As of
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
The Omnibus Plan 714,982 728,002
The Director Plan 232,801 239,801
The ESPP 82,412 86,977
Shares authorized for awards 1,030,195 1,054,780

We use historical data and projections to estimate expected employee behaviors related
to stock option exercises and forfeitures. We estimate the fair value of each stock award on the
grant date using the Black-Scholes valuation model incorporating the assumptions noted in the
following table. Stock valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, and
changes in assumptions used can materially affect the fair value estimate. Expected volatility
and dividends are based on historical factors related to our common stock. Expected term
represents the estimated weighted-average time between grant and employee exercise. The
risk-free rate is based on U.S. Treasury rates appropriate for the expected term.

December December December

Assumptions related to stock option awards: 31, 2006 31, 2005 31, 2004

Expected volatility 60.00% 67.11% 61.65%

Expected dividends — — —

Expected term 5.3 years 5.0 years 5.0 years

Risk-free rate 4.28% 3.68% 3.89%
December

Assumptions related to ESPP awards: 31, 2006

Expected volatility 29.00%

Expected dividends —

Expected term 1.0 year

Risk-free rate 4.33%
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Reported share-based compensation for all plans was classified as follows:

(in thousands)

For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Other underwriting expenses $ 2,225 559 —
Discontinued operations 6 74 —
Total share—based compensation 2,231 633 —
Income tax benefit {861) (244) —
Net share-based compensation $ 1,370 389 —

The following table presents the

status of, and changes in, stock options.

Weighted-
Average Total
Remaining Aggregate
Weighted- Contractual Intrinsic
Average Term in Value (in
Shares Exercise Price Years thousands)
Stock options:
Qutstanding, January 1, 2006 1,258,474 $ 17.90
Granted 38605 % 35.27
Exercised (329,833) % 14.07
Forfeited (563,993) $ 30.29
Outstanding, December 31, 2006 913,253 $ 19.29 46 $ 18,207
Exercisable at December 31, 2006 842414 $ 18.27 42 $ 17,672

For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Weighted-average grant date fair value
of stock options granted $ 19.93 17.86 15.29
Total intrinsic value of options
exercised (in thousands) $ 7.674 3,508 2,889

The following table presents the status of, and changes in, restricted stock.

Weighted-
Average Total
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average  Contractual Intrinsic
Grant Date Term in Value (in
Shares Fair Value Years thousands)

Restricted stock:
Non-vested, January 1, 2006
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

76,519 $  31.04
55115 $ 3558
(23,856) $  30.22
(19,707) $  33.13

Non-vested, December 31, 2006

88,071 $ 33.63 15 § 3,432
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As of December 31, 2006, there was $2.6 million of total unrecognized compensation
cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under our various
plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 4.3 years.
The total fair value of shares vested during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $2.2
million. Cash received from option and stock exercises under all share-based arrangements
during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $4.6 million. The actual tax benefit realized for
tax deductions from stock option exercises and the vesting of restricted stock totaled $2.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

The following table summarizes data for stock options outstanding and exercisable as of
December 31, 2006:

Options QOutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Non- Weighted- Average Weighted-

Vested vested Average Remaining Average

Range of Prices Number of Number of Exercise Contractual Number of Exercise
per Share Shares Shares Price Life Shares Price
$ 0.00-11.99 180,501 — % 878 4.8 180,501 $ 878
$ 12.00-15.99 305,008 — 13.97 4.1 305,008 13.97
$ 16.00-19.99 15,200 — 17.33 3.9 15,200 17.33
$ 20.00-35.99 309,205 70,839 26.33 5.0 309,205 25.16
$  36.00-60.99 32,500 — 46.20 1.9 32,500 46.20

842,414 70,839 $ 19.29 4.6 842,414 $18.27
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10. Long-Term Debt
Our outstanding long-term debt consisted of the following:

Trust-Preferred Subordinated Debentures, uncollateralized
and bearing a floating interest rate, adjustable quarterly, at three-

month LIBOR plus 3.85% to 4.2% (in thousands)

Rate as of December 31, Balance as of December 31,
Due 2006 2005 2006 2005
May 15, 2033 (callable by FPIC
beginning May 15, 2008) 9.47% 8.43% $ 15,464 15,464
May 23, 2033 (callable by FPIC
beginning May 23, 2008) 9.57% 8.61% 5,155 5,155
Octaober 29, 2033 (callable by FPIC
beginning October 29, 2008) 9.23% 8.09% 15,464 15,464

36,083 36,083

Senior Notes, uncollateralized and bearing floating rate interest
at three-month LIBOR plus 4.2% (in thousands)

Rate as of December 31, Balance as of December 31,
Due 2006 2005 2006 2005
May 23, 2033 (callable by FPIC
beginning May 23, 2008) 9.57% 8.61% 10,000 10,000
Total long-term debt $ 46,083 46,083

We established three wholly owned, but not consolidated, trusts, FPIC Capital Trust |,
FPIC Capital Statutory Trust I, and FPIC Capital Statutory Trust HI, during 2003 for the sole
purpose of issuing the trust-preferred securities. The proceeds received by the three trusts
were used to purchase junior subordinated debentures from FPIC of the same amounts,
maturities and other applicable terms and features. The debentures issued by FPIC to the three
trusts are subordinated to all senior indebtedness, including the senior notes, and are equal in
standing to one another. Issuance costs for all three offerings in the aggregate amount of
approximately $1.4 million were capitalized and are being amortized over their respective stated
maturity periods of 30 years.

The floating interest rate charged under the trust-preferred subordinated debentures is
adjustable quarterly with changes in the three-month LIBOR, and in the case of the first two
offerings, the maximum rate that may be charged within the first five years is 12.5%. We
purchased hedging instruments designed to maintain the ultimate floating rate interest cost on
all of these securities within a stated range for five years from closing. For additional
information on our hedging instruments, see Note 11, Derivative Financial Instruments. We
have the option to call the trust-preferred securities and senior notes at par or its equivalent
beginning five years from closing. The trust-preferred securities also contain features that allow
us the option, under certain conditions, to defer interest payments for up to 20 quarters and to
redeem the securities before the first optional call date in five years. In the case of the potential
earlier call date, the redemption or call price payable by us may be different than par. The
securittes have stated maturities of 30 years and are due in May and October 2033.
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Indenture agreements, relating to our junior subordinated debentures and trust-preferred
securities, contain limitations, under certain circumstances, as to (i) the declaration or payment
of dividends, or distributions thereon, or the redemption, purchase, acquisition or liquidation with
respect to any capital stock of FPIC or its affiliates; (ii) the payment, in certain circumstances, of
principal of, premium or interest on, or the repayment, repurchase or redemption of, debt
securities of FPIC or its affiliates that rank in equal standing with or are junior in interest to the
debentures; or (iii) the payment, in certain circumstances, under any guarantees of FPIC or its
affiliates that rank equal in standing with or junior in interest to capital securities guarantees
relating to the issuance of the debentures. Circumstances that would result in such limitations
include a continuing event of default, as defined by the indenture agreements, a default with
respect to payment of any obligations under capital securities guarantees, or a continuing
interest deferral election by FPIC.

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2006, we had four interest rate collars. The initial costs of these
hedging instruments of $1.1 million, in aggregate, have been capitalized and are being
amortized over their respective five-year maturity periods. The interest rate collars and terms as
of December 31, 2006 are presented in the table below with their corresponding effects on the
floating rate interest costs associated with the trust-preferred securities and senior notes.

National Amount Maturity LIBOR LIBOR Floor Cap
(in thousands) Date Floor (") Cap ! Rate Rate
$ 15,000 5/15/2008 1.20% 4.40% 5.30% 8.50%
$ 5,000 5/23/2008 1.20% 4.40% 5.40% 8.60%
$ 10,000 5/23/2008 1.20% 4.40% 5.40% 8.60%
$ 15,000 10/29/2008 1.00% 4.65% 4.85% 8.50%

m Based on three-month LIBOR

The interest rate collars are designed to maintain our ultimate floating rate interest costs
on our trust-preferred securities and unsecured senior notes within a specified interest range for
five years from the closing date of those liabilities. The interest rate collars place floors and
caps on the three-month LIBOR floating interest on notional principal corresponding with the
principal amounts of each offering, until their respective maturity dates in 2008 or until such time
that we exercise our option to call the securities.
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Under the interest rate collars, when the three-month LIBOR interest rate exceeds the
specified cap rate or falls below the specified floor rate, we receive or pay, respectively, the
related cash flow equal to the difference in percentage times the notional principal under the
respective contracts. The two portions of each contract working together, therefore, form a
hedge against the effects of a rising three-month LIBOR rate above the cap or a falling three-
month LIBOR rate below the floor. The notional amounts of the contract are not exchanged.
Therefore, the excess of the interest expense on our securities over the cap rate, or the shortfall
in interest expense under the floor, are offset by related receipts of excess interest under the
caps, or the payment of the interest shortfall below the floor, respectively. No other cash
payments are made unless the contract is terminated prior to maturity, in which case the
amount paid or received in settlement is established by agreement at the time of termination,
and usually represents the net present value, at current interest rates, of the remaining
obligations to exchange payments under the terms of the contract.

We have designated the interest rate collars as cash flow hedges. They are reflected at
fair value in our consolidated statements of financial position and the effective portion of the
related gains or losses on the agreements are recognized in shareholders’ equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

In accordance with FAS 133, as amended by FAS 138, and FAS 149, we document the
relationships between the hedging instruments and the underlying long-term debt instruments.
We also assess the effectiveness of the hedging instruments on a quarterly basis. If it is
determined that the hedging instruments are no longer highly effective, the change in the fair
value of the ineffective portion of the interest rate collars would be included in net income rather
than other comprehensive income. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
the net gain or loss on the ineffective portion of the agreements was not significant.

12. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates are made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information. Quoted market prices are used
where available. In other cases, fair values are based on estimates using valuation techniques,
such as discounting estimated future cash flows using a rate commensurate with the risks
involved or other acceptable methods. These techniques involve uncertainties and are
significantly affected by the assumptions used and the judgments made regarding risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, prepayments, discount rates, estimates of future
cash flows, future anticipated loss experience, and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could significantly affect these estimates. Independent market data may not be available to
validate those fair value estimates that are based on internal valuation techniques. Moreover,
such fair value estimates may not be indicative of the amounts that could be realized in an
immediate sale of the instrument. Also, because of differences in methodologies and
assumptions used to estimate fair values, the fair values of our financial instruments may not be
comparable to those of other companies. Fair value estimates are based on existing financial
instruments without attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future business and the
value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instruments. Accordingly, the
aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent our underlying value.
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each
class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

» Fixed income securities, available for sale — Fair value was estimated based on
prices from a third party service organization providing administrative services for
investments. -

¢ Short-term investments — Fair value was estimated based on prices from a third
party service organization providing administrative services for investments.

e Other invested assets — For limited partnership investments, fair value was
determined based on our interest in the underlying investment. For real estate, fair
value was based on an independent appraisal.

e Cash and cash equivalents — Carrying value approximates the fair value because of
the short maturity of these instruments.

¢ Interest rate collars — Fair value was estimated using quotes from an institutional
broker and represents the cash requirement if the existing agreement had been
settied at year-end.

e Long-term debt — Carrying value approximates the fair value.

The following table presents the carrying values and estimated fair values of our
financial instruments.

(in thousands) As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Fixed income securities, available for sale $ 690,895 690,895 617,716 617,716
Short-term investments 29,814 29,814 46,608 46,608
Other invested assets 6,600 6,600 6,785 6,785
Cash and cash equivalents 138,688 138,688 92,970 92,970
Interest rate collars 220 523 483 506
Total financial assets $ 866,217 866,520 764,562 764,585
Financial liabilities:

Long-term debt $ 46,083 46,083 46,083 46,083
Total financial liabilities $ 46,083 46,083 46,083 46,083
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13. Employee Benefit Plans
We provide pension benefits to eligible employees through various defined contribution
and defined benefit plans, which we sponsor.

Defined Conltribution Plans:

We have defined contribution plans that are available to employees upon meeting
certain eligibility requirements. The plans allow employees to contribute to the plan a
percentage of their pre-tax annual compensation. Under the terms of the plans, we will match
the employee contributions up to a maximum of 2.5% of the employee’s annual compensation.
We may also make annual profit sharing contributions to the plans, depending on an annual
financial performance. The contributions to the plans are invested at the election of the
employee in one or more investment options provided by a third party plan administrator. We
contribute the matching portion to the plan at the same time as the employee elections. Our
contributions to the plans totaled $1.3 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005 and $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. We expect to contribute
approximately $1.3 million to the plans during 2007.

We have a deferred compensation plan, which is offered to key employees selected by
the Board of Directors who are also participants in the holding company's qualified defined
contribution plan and whose contributions are limited by the Internal Revenue Code. Key
employee participants may defer into the plan all or a portion of their compensation. In addition,
at the discretion of the Board of Directors, we may match contributions made by key employees
and may make discretionary incentive contributions for key employees. Participants’ account
balances generally will be paid, as adjusted for investment gains or losses, following termination
of employment. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we made a discretionary
contribution of less than $0.1 million to the deferred compensation plan. We did not make any
discretionary or matching contributions during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

We have a money purchase plan that is available to the employees of Tenere upon
meeting certain eligibility requirements. Under the terms of the plan, we contribute to the plan to
provide benefits to employees based on years of service. Contributions are made for each year
of service untii the employee retires. The contributions are equal to 6.0% of the employee’s
annual compensation plus 5.7% of the employee’'s annual compensation in excess of the Social
Security taxable wage base. Our contributions totaled $0.1 million for each of the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Defined Benefit Plans:

We have defined benefit plans that are available to employees upon meeting certain
eligibility requirements. There is a plan available to all employees, a supplemental executive
retirement plan ("“SERP”) available only to certain executives and an excess benefit plan
available only to certain employees that are not covered by the SERP. The SERP and excess
benefit plan are not funded. It is our policy to contribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum
funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws plus such additional
amounts as may be determined to be appropriate. We did not contribute to these plans for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2004. The contributions to these plans totaled $1.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2005, We expect to contribute approximately $1.9
million to these plans during 2007.
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The following tables provide the status of our defined benefit plans.

(in thousands) |
As of December 31, '

Change in benefit obligation: 2006 2005
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 10,961 8,827
Service cost 1,044 741
Interest cost 579 498
Actuarial (loss} gain . (1,043) 959
Benefits paid (63) (64)
Benefit obligation at end of year 11,478 10,961
Change in fair value of plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 5,024 3,464
Actual return on plan assets 137 236
Employer contributions —_ 1,388 |
Benefits paid {63) (64)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 5,098 5,024
Funded status at end of year $ (6,380) (5,937)

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $8.4 million
and $7.7 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following table presents information on our defined benefit plans with an
accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets.

(in thousands) As of December 31,
2006 2005
Projected benefit obligation $ (4,701) (4,212)
Accumulated benefit obligation $ (3,624) (3,107)
Fair value of plan assets $ — —

Assumptions used in the accounting for net periodic benefit cost of our defined benefit
plans were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Discount rates 5.3% 5.5% 5.5%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.9% 5.9% 5.6%

Return on assets 7.0% 7.0% 7.5%
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Assumptions used in the accounting for the benefit obligation of our defined benefit
plans were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Discount rates 5.7% 5.3% 5.5%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.9% 5.9% 5.9%
Return on assets 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%

The following table provides the amounts recognized in accumulated cther
comprehensive income that have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic benefit
cost.

(in thousands) As of December 31,
2006 2005
Net loss $ 1,218 —_
Prior service cost $ 646 —
Net transition obligation $ 39 —

The estimated net loss, prior service cost, and net transition obligation for our defined
benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net
periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $0.1 million, $0.04 million, and $0.04 million,
respectively.

The following table provides the actuarially computed components of net periodic
pension cost and other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other
comprehensive income for our defined benefit plans.

{(in thousands)
For the year ended December 31,

Net Periodic Benefit Cost: 2006 2005 2004
Service cost $ 1,044 741 660
interest cost 579 498 421
Expected return on plan assets {(331) (246) (223)
Amortization of prior service cost 47 47 47
Amortization of net transition obligation 31 31 31
Amortization of net loss 240 114 445
Net periodic benefit cost 1,610 1,185 1,381

Other changes in plan assets and benefit
obligations recognized in other comprehensive

income:

Net loss (gain) 1,218 — —

Amortization of prior service cost 646 — —

Amortization of net transition obligation 39 — —
Total recognized in other comprehensive 1,903 — —

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost
and other comprehensive income $ 3,513 1,185 1,381
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Historical returns of multiple asset classes were analyzed to develop a risk-free rate of
return and risk premiums for each asset class. The overall rate for each asset class was
developed by combining a long-term inflation component, the risk-free real rate of return, and
the associated risk premium. A weighted average rate was developed based on those overall
rates and the target asset allocation of the plans.

The investment policy for our defined benefit pension plan involves employing a
| sufficient level of flexibility to capture investment opportunities as they occur, while maintaining
| reasonable parameters to ensure that prudence and care are exercised in the execution of the
investment programs. We employ a total return on investment approach, whereby a mix of
equity securities, debt securities and other assets, is targeted to maximize the long-term return
on assets for a given level of risk. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing
basis by plan trustees through periodic portfolio reviews and annual liability measurements.
The following table provides the composition of our defined benefit plan investments:

{(in thousands) As of December 31,
2006 2005
Debt securities $ 3,810 3,848
Equity securities 1,260 1,151
Convertible debt securities 28 25
Total $ 5,098 5,024

The debt securities were comprised mainly of money market, bond and mortgage-
backed securities. The equity securities were comprised of a diversified portfolio of large,
medium, and small cap investments, with a modest international component. We do not expect
significant changes in the allocation of investments; however the allocations may change after
the periodic meetings of the plan trustees based on their reviews of historical investment return
and risk.

Estimated benefit payments expected to be paid during the next 10 years, based on the
assumptions used to measure the benefit obligation as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

(in thousands)

2007 $ 920
2008 94
2009 110
2010 130
2011 240
2012-2016 3,581

Total $ 4,245
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14.  Statutory Accounting

First Professionals, APAC, Intermed, and Interlex are required to file statutory-basis
financial statements with state insurance regulatory authorities. The insurance subsidiaries are
restricted under the Florida and Missouri Insurance Codes as to the amount of dividends they
may pay without regulatory consent. In 2007, and based on the amounts of capital and surpius
of our insurance subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, dividends of $22.8 million may be paid
to the holding company, without regulatory consent. Our consolidated insurance subsidiaries’
statutory surplus exceeded applicable regulatory and risk-based capital requirements as of
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. Restricted net assets, statutory surplus and statutory net
income are presented in the tables below.

(in thousands)

Restricted net assets as of December 31, 2006 2005

First Professionals $ 180,400 155,353

APAC $ 22,758 18,531

Intermed $ 36,634 31,142

Interlex $ 8,981 8,216

{in thousands)

Statutory surplus as of December 31, 2006 2005

First Professionals $ 200,444 172,853

APAC 25,539 20,731

Intermed 41,479 34,602

Interlex 9,979 9,129

Combined statutory surplus 277,441 237,315

Less: Intercompany eliminations (51,458) (43,731)
Consolidated statutory surplus $ 225,983 193,584

(in thousands)

Statutory net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
First Professionals $ 19,488 9,926 9,063
APAC 3,005 2,002 (45)
Intermed 4,845 2,869 {446)
Interlex 966 1,029 1,103

Total statutory net income $ 28,304 15,826 9,675
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15. Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs
Changes in deferred policy acquisition costs were as follows:

{in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Beginning balance $ 14,550 11,280 6,209
Additions 21,249 24,090 13,488
Amortization expense (21,595) (20,820) (8,417)
Ending balance $ 14,204 14,550 11,280

16. Commitments and Contingencies

We have entered into various lease arrangements for office facilities and equipment.
We generally account for operating leases on a straight-line basis in accordance with FAS 13.
Total rental expense was $1.1 million, $1.1 million and $1.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The future minimum annual rentals under
our non-cancelable operating leases are included in the table presented below:

(in thousands)

2007 3 593
2008 515
2009 402
2010 197
2011 105
Thereafter —_

Total $ 1,812

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and
penalties and other sources are recorded when it is determined to be probable that a liability
has been incurred and the amount of the assessment and/or remediation can be reasonably
estimated. In addition, our insurance subsidiaries may become subject to claims for extra-
contractual obligations or risks in excess of policy limits in connection with their insurance
claims. These claims are sometimes referred to as “bad faith” actions as it is alleged that the
insurance company acted in bad faith in the administration of a claim against an insured. Bad
faith actions are infrequent and generally occur in instances where a jury verdict exceeds the
insured’s policy limits. Under such circumstances, it is routinely alleged that the insurance
company failed to negotiate a settlement of a claim in good faith within the insured’s policy limit.
We have discontinued our reinsurance for bad faith claims, other than coverage provided as
part of our primary excess of loss program. An award for a bad faith claim against one of our
subsidiaries in excess of the applicable reinsurance could have an adverse affect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We have evaluated such exposures as
of December 31, 2006, and believe our position and defenses are meritorious. However, there
can be no absolute assurance as to the outcome of such exposures.
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Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to assessment by the financial guaranty
associations in the states in which they conduct business for the provision of funds necessary
for the settlement of covered claims under certain policies of insolvent insurers. Generally,
these associations can assess member insurers on the basis of written premiums in their
particular states.

In June 2006, the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation (the “Florida OIR") levied a two
percent assessment on our 2005 Florida direct written premiums at the request of the Florida
Insurance Guaranty Association (“FIGA”) as a result of the insclvency of a group of Florida-
domiciled homeowner’s insurance companies owned by Poe Financial Group that reportedly
sustained more than $2 billion in gross losses from the 2005 and 2004 hurricane seasons.
FIGA based its request on its estimate that the estimated deficiencies from these insolvencies
may range between $110 million and $391 million, with an indicated “best” estimate of $239
million. The $4.7 million assessment was paid during July 2006. As allowed by Florida law, our
insurance subsidiaries that write direct business in Florida have the ability to recoup this
assessment from their Florida policyholders and have made the necessary filings to do so.

In December 20086, the Florida OIR levied an additional two percent emergency
assessment on our 2005 Florida direct written premiums at the request of FIGA related to
additional development of loss deficiencies of the Florida-domiciled homeowner’s insurance
companies owned by Poe Financial Group. The $4.7 million emergency assessment was paid
during January 2007. As allowed by Florida law, our insurance subsidiaries that write direct
business in Florida have the ability to recoup this assessment from their Florida policyholders
and have made the necessary filings to do so. Loss deficiencies in excess of FIGA's best
estimate could result in the need for additional assessments by FIGA. Such additional
assessments or assessments related to other property and casualty insurers that may become
insolvent because of hurricane activity or otherwise, could adversely impact our financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows. Currently, we are not aware of any additional
assessments.

In addition to standard guaranty fund assessments, the Florida and Missouri legislatures
may also levy special assessments to settle claims caused by certain catastrophic losses.
Medical malpractice policies have been exempt from assessment by the Florida Hurricane
Catastrophe Fund, aithough this exemption expires on May 31, 2007. No special assessments
for catastrophic losses were made in 2004, 2005, or 2006.
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17. Discontinued Operations
Insurance Management

On September 29, 2006, we completed the sale of our insurance management
operations to AJB Ventures Inc. (the "Purchaser"), a corporation the principal stockholder of
which is Anthony J. Bonomo, who had been and continues to be the business leader of these
operations. The aggregate purchase price for these operations was $39.1 million in cash, which
reflects a post-closing working capital adjustment of $0.9 million. Prior to September 29, 2006,
these operations had distributed $5.9 million in cash to us. We recognized an $11.6 million
after-tax gain on disposition of these operations in 2006. In accordance with the reporting
requirements of FAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assels, the
resuits of the insurance management operations have been reported as discontinued operations
and are summarized in the tables below.

(in thousands, except earnings per common share) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Total revenues $ 35,947 44,049 45,616
Total expenses 24,645 31,279 29,406
Income from discontinued operations (net of income taxes) 6,637 7.478 9,081
Gain on disposal of discontinued cperations (net of income
taxes} 11,609 — —
Discontinued operations % 18,246 7,478 9,081

Basic earnings per common share:
Discontinued operations $ 1.78 073 0.91
Basic weighted average common shares cutstanding 10,284 10,220 9,973

Diluted earnings per cormmon share:

Discontinued operations $ 1.70 0.69 0.87
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 10,671 10,740 10,420
(in thousands) As of
December December
Assets 31, 2006 31, 2005
Cash $ — 9,725
Deferred tax asset — 9,492
Goodwill —_ 8,037
Other assets — 12,617
Total assets $ — 39,871
Liabilities
Other liabilities $ -~ 8,620

Total liabilities $ — 8,620
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Third Party Administration

Our TPA operations were comprised of our former wholly owned subsidiary, Employers
Mutual, Inc. (“EMI”). On May 9, 2005, EMI's employee benefits administration business was
sold effective Aprit 30, 2005. An after-tax gain of $0.2 million was recognized on the sale. On
May 31, 2005, the remaining TPA operations were sold to a private investor. An after-tax gain
of $1.5 million was recognized on the sale. In accordance with the reporting requirements of
FAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, the results of
operations and gain on sale of the former TPA operations are reported as discontinued
operations. During the three months ended September 30, 2006, we recorded an additional
gain on the sale of our former TPA operations of $0.4 million related to the finalization of our
2005 tax return, which included the sale of our former TPA operations. Financial data for our
former TPA operations is summarized in the tables below.

(in thousands, except earnings per common share) For the year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Total revenues $ —_ 5,149 16,384
Total expenses —_— 4 606 14,336
Income from discontinued operations (net of income taxes) — 329 1,245
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations (net of income
taxes) 403 1,733 -—
Discontinued operations $ 403 2,062 1,245

Basic earnings per common share:
Discontinued operations $ 0.04 0.20 0.12
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 10,284 10,220 9,973

Diluted earnings per common shars;
Discontinued operations $ 0.04 0.19 0.12
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 10,671 10,740 10,420
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18.  Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited)
Our quarterly consolidated results of operations are summarized in the tables below.
Quarterly and year-to-date computations of per share amounts are made independently;
' therefore, the sum of per share amounts for the quarters may not equal per share amounts for
the year. For additional information on discontinued operations, see Note 17, Discontinued
Qperations.

(in thousands, except earnings per common share) December 31, 2006
First Second Third Fourth

Direct and assumed premiums written $ 75,790 57,876 69,835 47,923
Net premiums written $ 67,243 51,328 61,953 41,899
Net premiums earned $ 58,878 55,940 57,274 54,871
Net investment income $ 7,032 8,242 8,120 8,848
Total revenues $ 66,214 64,299 65,467 63,790
Income from continuing operations $ 7,385 7,071 8,546 9,936
Discontinued operations $ 2,092 2,284 14,780 {505)
Net income $ 9,477 9,355 23,326 9,431
Basic earnings per common share:

Income from continuing operations $ 0.72 0.68 0.83 0.97

Discontinued operations $ 0.20 0.23 1.43 (0.05)

Net income $ 0.92 0.91 2.26 0.92
Diluted earnings per common share:

Income from continuing operations $ 0.69 0.66 0.80 0.94

Discontinued operations $ 0.19 0.21 1.38 {0.05)

Net income $ 0.88 0.87 218 0.89
(in thousands, except earnings per common share) December 31, 2005

First Second Third Fourth

Direct and assumed premiums written $ 84,138 67,160 78,937 58,787
Net premiums written $ 74113 58,280 69,3692 50,052
Net premiums earned $ 50,195 53,882 57,981 63,984
Net investment income $ 5,652 6,266 6,223 6,864
Total revenues $ 56144 60,117 64,246 70,201
Income from continuing operations $ 4,550 6,704 6,762 7,466
Discantinued operations $ 2267 3,605 1,827 1,841
Net income $ 6816 10,310 8,590 9,306
Basic earnings per common share:

Income from continuing operations 5 0.45 0.66 0.66 0.72

Discontinued operations 5 0.22 0.35 0.18 0.18

Net income $ 0.67 1.01 0.84 0.90
Diluted earnings per common share:

Income from continuing operations $ 0.43 0.63 0.63 0.69

Discontinued operations $ 0.21 0.34 0.17 0.17

Net income $ 0.64 097 0.80 0.86
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(in thousands, except earmings per common share)

Direct and assumed premiums written

Net premiums written

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Total revenues

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net income

Basic earnings per common share:
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Net income
Diluted earnings per common share;
Income from continuing cperations

Discontinued operations
Net income

19. Subsequent Events

December 31, 2004

Form 10-K: F-32

First Second Third Fourth
$ 98604 77,102 77,179 59,843
$ 43,604 33,327 65,118 50,483
$ 35012 31,668 38,873 44 123
$ 5,587 4,551 5,002 5,487
$ 43574 37,023 43,959 50,251
$ 5,471 4213 4,009 4,162
% 1,638 2,246 3,519 3,023
$ 7,009 6,459 7.528 7.185
$ 0.55 0.42 0.40 042
5 0.16 0.23 0.35 0.30
$ 0.71 0.65 0.75 0.72
$ 0.53 0.40 0.38 0.39
% 0.15 0.22 0.34 0.29
$ 0.68 0.62 0.72 0.68

During February 2007, our subsidiary, First Professionals, entered into an agreement
with PRI to commute, effective January 1, 2007, all assumed reinsurance treaties with PRI
where First Professionals acted as a reinsurer. These treaties covered excess of loss
reinsurance and reinsurance for PRI's death, disability and retirement risks. Under the terms of
the agreements, First Professionals paid cash and delivered securities with an aggregate value
of approximately $87.7 million to PRI as full settlement of all past and future obligations for
policy risks previously reinsured by First Professionals. The corresponding net liabilities related
to these agreements carried by First Professionals as of December 31, 2006 totaled $103.4

million,
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Schedule I: Summary of Investments Other Than Investments in Related Parties

As of December 31, 2006

(in thousands) Costor Fair Amount in Statement
Amortized Cost Value of Financial Position

Corporate securities $ 146,251 144,541 144,541

United States Government agencies and

authorities 78,100 77,355 77,355

States, municipalities and political

subdivisions 365,214 362,382 362,382

Mortgage-backed and asset-backed

securities 138,233 136,431 136,431

Total fixed income securities, available for

sale, and short-term investments 727,798 720,709 720,709

Other invested assets 6,646 9,126 6,600

Total investments $ 734,444 729,835 727,309

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2005

(in thousands)

2006 2005
Assets
Investments in subsidiaries™ $ 270,390 274,107
Other invested assets 1,083 1,083
Total investments 271,473 275,190
Cash and cash equivalents 56,632 13,867
Due from subsidiaries, net” 9,849 8,725
Deferred income taxes 4,808 2,503
Other assets 8,096 6,233
Total assets $ 350,857 306,518
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Long-term debt $ 46,083 46,083
Other liabilities 19,520 10,845
Total liabilities 65,603 56,928
Preferred stock, $0.10 par value, 50,000,000 shares
authorized; none issued —_ —
Common stock, $.10 par value, 50,000,000 shares
authorized, 10,063,937 and 10,339,105 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively 1,006 1,034
Additional paid-in capital 37,735 53,627
Unearned compensation — (1,742)
Retained earnings 252,490 200,902
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (5,977) (4,231)
Total shareholders' equity 285,254 249,590
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 350,857 306,518

*  Eliminated in consolidation

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.

Schedule II: Parent Company Only Condensed Statements of Income
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{in thousands)

Form 10-K: S-4

2006 2005 2004
Revenues
Management fees from subsidiaries™ $ 34,687 32,405 28,757
Net investment gain (loss) 409 {195) (663)
Net realized investment gain (loss) 44 —_ (787)
Other income —_ 3 1
Total revenues 35,140 32,213 27,308
Expenses
Management fees due to subsidiaries* —_ — 15
Other underwriting expenses 28,528 26,371 24,447
Interest expense 4,291 3,495 2,564
Other expenses 247 992 —
Total expenses 33,066 30,858 27.026
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
and equity in net income of subsidiaries 2,074 1,355 282
Less: Income tax expense 565 150 1,144
Income from continuing operations before equity in net
income of subsidiaries 1,509 1,205 (862)
Equity in net income of subsidiaries” 31,430 24,277 18,717
Income frem continuing operations 32,939 25,482 17,855
Discontinued operations (net of income taxes) 18,649 9,540 10,326
Net income $ 51,588 35,022 28,181

*

Eliminated in consolidation

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




O

Form 10-K: 5-5
FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.
Schedule li: Parent Company Only Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(in thousands)
2006 2005 2004
Operating Activities
Net income $ 51,588 35,022 28,181
Less: Discontinued operations 18,649 9,540 10,326
Income from continuing operations 32,939 25,482 17,855
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Equity in net income of subsidiaries* (31,430) (24,277) (18,717)
Cash dividend from subsidiaries™ 10,261 14,612 13,105
Depreciation and ameortization 1,070 944 905
Realized loss (gain) on investments (44) — 787
Realized loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment (1) {3) —
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense {886) 1,511 (1,107)
Bad debt expense — 201 —
Share-based compensation 2,163 543 —
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (2,584) — —
Other Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Due from subsidiaries* (2,293) (1,806) (5,516)
Other assets and other liabilities 9,955 5,177 2,891
Net cash provided by operating activities 19,151 22,384 10,203
investing Activities
Proceeds from
Sale of property and equipment 1 3 —_
Disposition of subsidiary 40,000 3,500 —_
Purchases of
Property and equipment {99) (1,077) (684)
Capital contribution to subsidiaries™ — {20,000) (16,000}
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 39,902 {(17,574) (16,684)
Financing Activities
Issuance of common stock 5,736 3,613 3,217
Repurchase of common stock (24,607) (1,540) —
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 2,584 — —
Net cash {used in) provided by financing activities (16,287) 2,073 3,217
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 42,765 6,883 (3,264)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 13,867 6,984 10,248
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 56,632 13,867 6,984
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid on debt $ 4,195 3,308 2,524
“Federal income taxes paid $ 14,309 10,480 12,950

*  Eliminated in consolidation
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




Form 10-K: §-6

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.
Schedule Ill: Supplementary Insurance Information
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(in thousands) Medical Professional and Other Liability
2006 2005 2004

Deferred pelicy acquisition costs ("DPAC™") $ 14,204 14,550 11,280
Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses ("LAE™) $ 642,955 663,466 635,118
Unearned premiums $ 181,695 188,690 177,003
Net premiums earned $ 226,965 226,042 149,676
Net investment income $ 32,242 25,005 20,627
Net losses and LAE $ 151,648 166,657 125,172
Amortization of DPAC $ 21,595 20,820 8,417
Qther expenses $ 35,116 23,867 11,542
Net premiums written $ 222,423 251,814 192,532

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.
Schedule IV: Reinsurance
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(in thousands) Medical Professional and Other Liability
2006 2005 2004

Gross premiums earned $ 256,998 275,710 303,308

Ceded premiums earned to other companies (31,455) (51,293) (163,484)

Assumed premiums earned from other

companies 1,422 1,625 9,852

Net premiums earned $ 226,965 226,042 149,676

Percentage of assumed premiums earned to
net premiums earned 1% 1% 7%

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.
Schedule V: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(in thousands) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
2006 2005 2004
Balance, beginning of period $ 400 400 400
Amounts charged to costs and expenses 288 77 43
Deductions (288) (77) (43)
Balance, end of period $ 400 400 400

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Form 10-K:58-7

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.

Schedule VI: Supplemental Information Concerning Property-Casualty Insurance Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(in thousands) Consalidated Insurance Subsidiaries
2006 2005 2004

Deferred policy acquisition costs ("DPAC") $ 14,204 14,550 11,280
Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses ("LAE") $§ 642,955 663,466 635,118
Unearned premiums $ 181,695 188,690 177,003
Net premiums earned $ 226,965 226,042 149,676
Net investment income $ 32,242 25,005 20,627
Net losses and LAE, current year $ 156,711 166,687 124,699
Net losses and LAE, prior years $ {5,063) (30} 473
Amortization of DPAC $ 21,595 20,820 8,417
Net paid losses and LAE $ 11,351 118,917 122,236
Net premiums written $ 222,423 251,814 192,532

See accompanying notes lo the consolidated financial statements
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12 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

A Certification of John R. Byers, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

3t.2 Certification of Charles Divita, Ill, Chief Financia! Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of
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** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.




Shareholder Information

ANNUAL MEETING

The 2007 shareholders’ meeting will be held Thursday,
May 31st at 10:30 a.m. in the Jacksonville Room,
Omni Hotel, 245 Water Street,

Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

FINANCIAL PUBLICATIONS

Information about FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.,
including copies of the Annual Report to Shareholders
and the Annual Report on Form 10-K may be requested
through the Company’s website at http://www.fpic.com
or via e-mail at ir@fpic.com or by calling Investor
Relations at 904-354-2482 Ext. 3612 or by writing to:

Investor Relations

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.
225 Water Street, Suite 1400
Jacksonville, FL 32202
904-354-2482 Ext. 3612

Our website also provides access to our interactive
e-mail notification service simply by adding your
¢-mail address to the “e-mail alert” section of our
website. You will automatically be alerted to any
new press releases, earnings reports and SEC filings
via e-mail.

TRANSFER AGENT

Computershare Investor Services, LLC
Stock Transfer Department

730 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 840
Atlanta, GA 30308

800-568-3476 or 312-588-4993
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CORPORATE OFFICERS
John R. Byers, Esq.*
President and Chief Executive Officer, FPIC

Charles Divita, III, CPA*
Chief Financial Officer, FPIC
Robert E. White, Jr.*

President, First meessionals Insurance Company, Inc.

T. Malcolm Graham, Esq.

General Counsel and Secretary, FPIC
Pamela Deyo Harvey, CPA

Vice President and Controller, FPIC

Becky A. Thackery
Vice President and Director of Internal Audit, FPIC

*Executive Officers

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

50 North Laura Street, Suite 3000
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

CONSULTING ACTUARY

Huggins Actuarial Services

111 Veterans Square, Second Floor
Media, Pennsylvania 19063
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